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D EPARTMENT OF FINANCE 

November 1, 2018 

TO THE CITIZENS OF THE TOWN OF APEX: 

We are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Town of Apex for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 201 8. This report is issued to fulfill the requirement of North 
Carolina state law that every local government has an annual audit of its financial statements 
performed by a certified public accountant. 

The Town of Apex management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of 
the information contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal 
control it has established for this purpose. The concept of internal controls assumes their costs 
should not exceed their anticipated benefits, and their objective is to provide reasonable, rather 
than absolute, assurance that the fmancial statements are free of material misstatements. 

Joyce and Company, Certified Public Accountants, has issued an unmodified ("clean") opinion on 
the Town of Apex's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018. The independent 
auditor's report is located at the front ofthe financial section of this report. 

This letter of transmittal should be read in conjunction with Management's Discussion and 
Analysis (MD&A), which immediately follows the independent auditor's report in the Financial 
Section. MD&A provides a narrative overview and analysis of the basic financial statements. 

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT 

The Town of Apex, incorporated in 1873, is located in central North Carolina, less than 10 miles 
from Raleigh, the state capital. From its humble beginnings as a small railroad stop (the name 
"Apex" comes from being the highest point on the rail line), the Town has grown to a population 
of53,862 and a land area of22.73 square miles. 

The Town operates under a Council-Manager form of government. Policy-making and legislative 
authority rest with the Town Council, consisting of the mayor and five other members. All are 
elected on a town-wide basis to a four year term, with three members elected every two years. The 
Council appoints the Town Manager, who is responsible for hiring department heads and 
managing day to day operations. 

TOWNOFAl'EX 

The Peak of Good Living 
PO Box 250 Apex, NC 27502 I (919) 249-3400 I www.apexnc.org 



The Town provided a full range of services during the 2018 fiscal year including police, fire and 
EMS protection, sanitation, water, sewer, and electric services, construction and maintenance of 
streets and infrastructure, and recreational activities and events. EMS protection services have 
now been transferred to Wake County. Various other local entities such as The Wake County 
Public School System, WakeMed Apex Healthplex, and The Wake County Public Libraries do not 
meet established criteria for inclusion as part of the Town as a reporting entity and are therefore 
excluded from this report. 

State law requires that the Town Council approve an atmual budget prior to July 1. The budget 
ordinance authorizes all fmancial transactions of the Town except those authorized by a project 
ordinance or conducted through a trust or agency fund. The budget is prepared by fund and 
department. Department heads may transfer resources within a department and the Town Manager 
may transfer between departments, but any change which increases or decreases a fund's overall 
budget requires approval of the Council. 

LOCAL ECONOMY 

Economic activity and the construction industry remain very strong. Revenues for building 
permits and inspection fees were up approximately 14.7% over the preceding year. The Town 
issued 1,551 permits for new residential construction this year, an increase of219 permits or 16.4% 
from the previous year, and the total construction value for those permits was up 25.8%. 
Commercial construction also increased. The Town issued 63 commercial building permits, 39 
more than the previous year, and the total value of those permits increased from $29.1 million to 
$82.2 million. Overall, new construction (residential and commercial) totaled 1,614 permits with 
a value of$431.7 million, compared with 1,356 and $307 million in the preceding year. 

Due to the residential growth in Apex, property taxes have come to provide a greater share of the 
Town's revenues. In 2008, total ad valorem tax revenue was $11. 7 million as compared to $24.7 
million in 2018. The 2018 fiscal year tax rate was less, at .38 cents per $100, as compared to.40 
cents this time 10 years ago but our tax revenue has more than doubled. Construction and 
development within the Town is continuing to support the growth in tax base and thus the tax 
revenue. The appraised value of the Town's tax base as of January 1,2018 was nearly $7 billion 
compared to $4.1 billion ten years earlier. 

During the 2018 fiscal year other economically sensitive revenues were also strong. Sales tax 
collections increased by 7.4% and other state collected local revenues continued to increase. 
Within all major revenue categories, compared to 2008 results, there has been a significant 
mcrease. 

Apex continues to benefit from its location, which makes it a residential and retail center for 
employees of Research Triangle Park (RTP). RTP is primarily dependent on firms in relatively 
stable, growing industries such as technology, healthcare, and financial services. In addition, the 
Town's proximity to Raleigh, with several universities and the state government complex, also 
serves to provide a stable employment base. Because of the presence of these major employers, 
the local unemployment rate has stayed below the state and national figures. 



Looking back over the past 10 years, the Town's total General Fund revenues and expenditures 
have more than doubled. Much of this increase is understandable, as the Town's population has 
grown 56.6% in the same period. The most obvious trend during this timeframe has been the 
continued emphasis on public safety. The costs to provide these services have climbed from $8.8 
million in 2008 to $19.7 million in 2018. 

Since moving from largely volunteer departments to Town provided services, the Town has 
assumed a greater responsibility for Fire Protection and EMS using more full time employees. 
This increase is supported by the Town's steady population growth and commitment for citizen's 
safety and wellbeing. In September 2015 Money Magazine named Apex the best place to live in 
America. 

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING 

The Town, for many years now, has maintained solid cash reserves and fairly modest debt levels. 
This has enabled it to proceed with some major projects financed by various types of long-term 
debt despite the current economic climate. During the past year the Town has undertaken a number 
of street and parks projects. The Town has an agreement with Cary to undertake a number of 
water and sewer projects. In November, 2017 voters authorized the Town to issue up to $48 million 
of general obligation bonds for parks and recreation projects. The Town entered into an installment 
purchase financing agreement for $6 million to acquire land for future parks during the 2018 fiscal 
year 

In the spring of 2018 the Town issued $23 million of debt. Of that amount $20 million will be 
used for parks and recreational facility projects for a community center, greenways and Pleasant 
Park. The remainder of the debt will be used for design and construction of additional sections of 
the Apex Peakway. The Town continues to have needs in a number of areas due to growth. The 
Town's goal is to maintain a minimum of 25% of expenditures in unassigned fund balance in the 
General Fund. Funds in excess of that amount are available to be used for one time expenditures, 
such as smaller improvements or constmction projects. At June 30, 2018, the Town's unassigned 
fund balance was $2 1.9 million, or roughly 44.4% of the year's General Fund expenditures. 

MAJOR INITIA>TIVES 

In addition to addressing major needs in the Water and Sewer Fund, the Town is also evaluating 
its options to fmance park and recreation projects, public safety projects, street and sidewalk 
improvements and electric utility projects. 

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded 
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Town of Apex for its 
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30,2017. This was the twenty 



fourth consecutive year that the Town has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded 
a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently 
organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted 
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for 
a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive annual financial report 
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting 
it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

The preparation of this report on a timely basis was made possible by the dedicated service and 
cooperation of Joyce and Company CPA, and the Town's Finance, Planning, and Construction 
Management departments. We would like to extend special thanks to Suzanne Parmentier for her 
work and to the Mayor and Town Council for their support for maintaining the highest standards 
of professionalism in the management of the Town's [mances. 

Vance Holloman 
Finance Officer 
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Joyce and 

Company, 
CPA 

104 Brady Court, Cary, N0I1h Carolina 27511 
Phone 919-466-0946 Fax 919-466-0947 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the Town Council 
Town of Apex, N0I1h Carolina 

Report o n the Financial Statements 

Cettified Public Accountants 

Ind epe nd ent A udito r 's Report 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activ ities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Apex, North Carolina, 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the rel ated notes to the linancia l statements, wh ich collectively 
comprise the Town's basic finan c ial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsib le for the preparation and fa ir presentation of these financ ial statements in accordance 
with accou nting pr inc iples genera lly accepted in the Un ited States of America; this includes the design, 
implem entation, and maintenance of intema l contro l relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financ ial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's. Responsibility 
Our responsibil ity is to express opinions on these fina nc ial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
aud it in accorda nce with aud iting standard s genera ll y accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
app licable to financial audits conta ined in Govemmel7l Alidilil7g Slal7dards, issued by th e Comptroll er General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the aud it to obtain reasonable ass urance 
about whether the financial statements are free of materia l misstate men!. 

An audi t involves perform ing procedures to obtain audit ev idence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financia l statements, whethe r due to fraud or error. In maki ng those risk 
assessments, the auditor cons iders internal control re levant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
tinancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of express ing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal contra\. Accordingly, we express 
no such opi nion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as eva luating the overa ll 
financial statement presentation of the financial statements. 

We be lieve that the audit evide nce we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a bas is for our audit 
opinion. 

Opini o n 
In ou r opinion, based on ou r audit, the financial statements referred to above present fa irly, in a ll material 
respects, the respective financial posit ion of the governmental activities, the business-type ac tivities, each major 
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Apex , Nort h Carolina as of June 30, 2018, 
and the respect ive changes in financial position and cas h flows, where appropriate, thereof and the respective 
budgetary com parison for the General Fund fo r the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States or America. 

Ml!lTIbers: American [nstirute of Celtified Public Accountants · N011h Carolina Association of Certi fied Public Accountants 



Other Matters 
Required Supplem entary Informat io n 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require th at the Management 's 
Discuss ion and Analysis, the Other Postemployme nt Benetits' Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 
and Related Ratios, the Local Government Employees' Retirement System's Sched ules of the Propoliionate 
Share of the Net Pension Liabili ty and Contribut ions, and the Law Enforceme nt Officers' Spec ial Separation 
Allowance Schedules of the C hanges in Total Pension Li ability and Tota l Pension L iabi lity as a Percentage of 
Covered Payroll be presented to supplement the basic financ ia l statements. Such information, although not a 
required part of the basic finan cial s tatements, is requi red by the Governmental Accoun ting Standa rds Board who 
conside rs it to be an essential part of fi nanc ial repolting for p lac ing the basic financ ial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or hi's torical context. We have applied celiain limited procedures to the 
required supp lementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in th e United 
States of America, whi ch cons isted of inqu iries of management about the methods of preparing the in format ion 
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiri es, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtain ed during our audit of the basic financia l statements . We do not 
express an op ini on or provide any assura nce on the in formation because the li mited procedures do not provide us 
with suffic ient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary and Other Information 
Our aud it was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the finan cial statements that collectively 
compri se the bas ic financial statements of the Town of Apex , North Caro lina, The combin ing and indiv idual 
fund statements, budgetary sc hedu les, other sc hedules, statistical section, as we ll as the accompany ing Schedule 
of Expend itures of Federal and State Awards as required by Tille 2 Us. Code of Federal Regulalians (CFR) ParI 
200, Uniform Admin istrative Requirements, Cost Princ ipl es, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and 
the State Single Aud it Implementation Act are presented for purposes of additiona l ana lysis and a l'e not a 
requ ired palt of the basic finan cia l statements. 

The combining and individual fund sta tements, budgetary sc hedules, other schedules, and the Schedule o f 
Expenditures of Federa l and State Awards are the responsibility of management and were der ived from and re late 
directly to the unde rlying accou nting a nd othe r record s used to prepare the basic financi a l statements. Such 
info rmation has been subjected to the auditing proced ures app lied in the aud it of the basic financial statements 
and certai n additional procedures, inc luding co mparing and reconciling such infonnation d irect ly to the 
underly ing accounting and other records used to prepare the bas ic finan cial statements or to the basic financia l 
statements them se lves, and o ther additional procedures in accorda nce with aud iting standards generally accepted 
in the Uni ted States of America by us. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures perform ed as desc ribed 
above, the combin ing and individual fund statements, bud ge tary sc hedul es, other schedu les and the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federa l and State Awards are fairly stated, in all materia l respects, in relation to the bas ic 
financ ial statements as a who le. 

Other Reporting Required by Gove rnm ent Au ditin g Sta nd a rds 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have a lso issued our repOit dated November 1,20 18 on 
ou r consideration of Town of Apex's internal contro l over financial reporting and on our tests of its comp liance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and gran ts agreements, and other matters. The purpose of 
the report is to describe the scope of o ur testing of internal control over fin anc ial reporting and compl iance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opin ion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
comp li ance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Governmenl Audiling 
Slandards in considering Town of Apex's interna l contro l over financ ial. report ing and comp liance. 

J¢'YEAND COMPAY, PA 
November I, 20 I 8 Cary, NOl1h Carolina 



MANAGEMENT'S 
DISCUSSION 

AND 
ANALYSIS 

As management of the Town of Apex, we offer readers of the Town's frnancial statements this narrative 
overview and analysis of the fInancial activities of the Town for the fIscal year ended June 30, 2018. We 
encourage readers to read the infonnation presented here in conjunction with the transmittal letter in the 
front of this report and the basic fInancial statements and accompanying notes to the fInancial statements, 
which follow this narrative. 

Financial Highlights 

• The Town's assets and deferred outflows exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at the close 
of the fIscal year by approximately $695 million (net position). Of this amount, $80. 1 million 
(unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the Town's ongoing obligations to citizens and 
creditors. 

• The Town's total net position increased by $ 135.5 million from the prior year. Of that amount 
$98 .8 million resulted from goverrunental activities and $36.7 million resulted from business-type 
activities. Approximately $113 .2 million of street related and utility infrastructure was donated by 
developers with a value of$96.7 million for street and sidewalk related infrastructure and $16.5 
million for utility infrastructure. 

• As of the close of the current fIscal year, the Town's goverrunental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of approximately $70.8 million, an increase of$3 1.6 million compared to 
the prior year. The total fund balance in the General Fund increased $7 million while the total 
fund balance in other goverrunental funds increased $24.6 million primarily due to issuance of 
debt for parks and recreation projects and street projects. 

• At the end of the fIscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund increased to $2 1.9 
million, or 44.4% of total General Fund expenditures for the fIscal year. 

• The Town of Apex's total debt increased by $24 million during the current fIscal year due to the 
issuance of debt for parks and recreation and street projects. 

• The Town's bond rating was upgraded by Moody's Investor Services from Aal to Aaa during the 
fIscal year. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of Apex's basic fmancial 
statements. The Town's basic fmancial statements consist of three components: I) entity-wide fmancial 
statements, 2) fund fmancial statements, and 3) notes to the fmancial statements. The basic fmancial 
statements present two different views of the Town through the use of entity-wide statements and fund 
financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental 
information that will enhance the reader's understanding of tbe fmancial condition oftbe Town of Apex. 

Basic Financial Statements 

The fIrst two statements (Exhibits I and 2) in the basic fmancial statements are the Entity-wide Financial 
Statements. The next statements (Exhibits 3 through 8) are Fund Financial Statements. The next section 
oftbe basic fInancial statements is the Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes explain in detail 
some of the data contained in those statements. The Required Supplemental Information contains 
additional information required by generally accepted accounting principles. After the notes and the 
required supplemental information, additional Supplemental Information is provided. The other 
supplemental information shows details about the Town's individual funds, including budgetary 
information required by North Carolina General Statutes. 
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Entity-wide Financial Statements 

The entity-wide fmancial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview ofthe 
Town's finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The entity-wide 
statements provide short and long-term information about the Town's fInancial status as a whole. 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Town's assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may 
serve as a useful indicator ofwbether the fInancial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Town's net position changed during the 
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise 
to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are 
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., 
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave.) 

Both of the entity-wide fmancial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are 
intended to recover all or a signifIcant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type 
activities). The governmental activities of the Town include general government, public safety, public 
works, environmental protection, and cultural and recreational. The business-type activities of the Town 
are utility system services, specifically electricity and water and sewer. 

In accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board criteria for inclusion in the reporting 
entity, the Town of Apex has no component units that must be included in this report. 

The entity-wide fmancial statements are on Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the Town's most significant activities. A 
fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like all other governmental entities in North 
Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements, such as the General Statutes or the Town's budget ordinance. All of the funds of the Town 
can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fIduciary funds. 

Governmental Funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the entity-wide financial statements. However, unlike the entity­
wide fmancial statements, governmental fund fmancial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows 
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fIscal year. 
Such information may be useful in evaluating the Town's near-tenn financial requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the entity-wide fInancial statements, it is 
useful to compare the information presented for governmental Junds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the entity-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand 
the long-term impact of the Town's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance 
sheet (Exhibit 3) and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balances (Exhibit 4) provide a reconciliation to faci litate this comparison between governmentalJunds and 
governmental activities. 

During the past fiscal year, the Town of Apex maintained eight individual governmental funds: the General 
Fund, one special revenue fund (to account for revenues which are restricted to a specific purpose), five 
capital projects funds (to account for construction projects spaoning more than one annual budget year or 
funds set aside for future projects), and one permanent fund (to account for funds reserved for perpetual 
care of a cemetery). The General Fund and the Recreation Capital Projects Fund are the only governmental 
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funds considered to be major funds. The other govermnental funds are considered to be nomnajor and their 
infonnation is presented in the aggregate. 

The Town of Apex adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison 
statement has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. This 
budgetary statement includes both original and flnal amended budgets. 

The basic govermnental fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits 3 througb 5. Govermnental 
funds considered to be nonmajor are presented as a single column in these statements. 

Proprietary Funds: The Town maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are 
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the entity-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail. The Town uses enterprise funds to account for its electric and water and 
sewer related activities. Both tbe Electric Fund and the Water and Sewer Fund are classified as major 
funds. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally 
among the Town's various functions. Apex uses an internal service fund to account for its self-insurance 
for health and dental claims. Because this fund predominately benefits the govermnental ratber than 
business-type functions, it has been included within governmental activities in the entity-wide statements. 

The basic proprietary fund fInancial statements can be found on Exhibits 6 througb 8 of this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements: Tbe notes provide additional information tbat is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in tbe entity-wide and fund fInancial statements. The notes to the 
financial statements are on pages 32-63 of this report. 

Other Information: In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report 
includes certain required supplementary information concerning the ToVolIl's progress in funding its 
obligations to provide pension benefits to police officers under the Law Enforcement Officers Special 
Separation Allowance under GASB Statement 73, retiree health insurance under GASB Statement 75 and 
pension benefits to its employees through the Local Govermnent Employees' Retirement System. 
Required supplementary information can be found on pages 64-68 of this report. 

Entity-Wide Financial Analysis 

Entity-wide financial statements can provide an excellent overall view of the Town's transactions for the 
year and its financial condition at year end. In particular, comparing current year amounts with the 
previous year's figures can highlight areas in which the Town's finances are improving or deteriorating. 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of the Town's financial condition. 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town bad a positive balance in botb its govermnental and 
business-type activities. Govermnental activities net position increased by $98.8 million to $407 million 
during the year while business-type net position increased by $36.6 million to $287.2 million. 
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The Town of Apex 
Net Position 

(in millions) 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activ ities Activities Total 

20 18 20 17 20 18 2017 20 18 20 17 

Current and Other A ssets $75.2 $44.3 $8 1.9 $60.3 $ 157. 1 $ 104.6 

Cap ital A ssets 420.0 323.2 277.3 262.6 697.3 585.8 

Total Assets 495.2 367.5 359.2 322.9 854.4 690.4 

Deferred Outflows 4.4 5.5 1.3 1.7 5 .7 7.2 

Long-T enn Liabilit ies 79.5 38.3 60. 1 62. 1 139.6 100.4 

Other Liabilit ies 9.8 9.2 12.6 10.3 22.4 19.5 

Total Liabilities 89.3 47.5 72.7 72.4 162.0 11 9.9 

D eferred Inflows 2.8 0.5 0.6 0. 1 3.4 0.6 

Net Pos ition: 
Net Inves tment in Capital Assets 383.8 298.9 220.3 202.6 604. 1 50 1.5 

Restricted 10.4 8.3 10.4 8.3 

Unres tricted 13.3 17.8 66.9 4 9.5 80.2 67.3 
Total Net Position $407.5 $325.0 $287.2 $252. 1 $694.7 $577. 1 

As is the case for many entities, the largest portion of the Town's net position ($604 million or 87 .0%) is 
represented by its net investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, and equipment less any 
related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those assets). These capital assets are used to 
provide services to citizens; consequently, they are not available for future spending. And although the 
Town's net investment in its capital assets is reduced by the outstanding related debt, it should be noted that 
the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets cannot 
be used to pay these related liabilities. 

Approximately $113.2 million of street related and utility infrastructure assets were donated from 
developers, valued at $96.7 million for street and sidewalk related infrastructure and $16.5 million for 
utility infrastructure. Most of the remainder of the Town's net position ($80.2 million or 11.5%) is 
unrestricted, meaning they may be used to meet the Town's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

The Town implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. Statement 75, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, in the fiscal year ending June 
30,2018. The implementation of the statement required the Town to record beginning total OPEB liability 
and the effects on net position of benefit payments and administrative expenses paid by the Town related to 
OPEB during the measurement period (fiscal year ending June 30, 20 17). Beginning deferred outflows and 
inflows of resources associated with the implementation were excluded from the restatement. As a result, 
net position for the governmental activities decreased $16,339,453 and $1,511 ,155 for the business type 
activities. 
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T he T own of Apex 
C hanges in Net Posi tion 

(in mi llions) 

Governmenlal Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 
Revenues: 

Program Revenues: 
Charges for Services $15.6 $14.7 $54.6 $50.7 $70.2 $65.4 
Operating Grants and Contributions 4.3 3.8 4.3 3.8 
Capital Grants and Contributions 98. 1 92.3 37.9 29.9 136.0 122.2 

General Revenues: 
Property Taxes 24.7 23.0 24.7 23.0 
Other Taxes 10.6 9.8 10.6 9.8 
Investment Earnings 0.6 0.2 0.7 0.3 \.J 0.5 
Other 3.5 3.4 3.5 3.4 

Total Revenues 157.4 147.2 93.2 80.9 250.6 228.1 

Expenses: 
General Government 10.6 10.1 10.6 10.1 
Public Safety 21.1 19.6 21.1 19.6 
Public Works 16.5 13.2 16.5 13.2 
Environmental Protection 3.6 3.4 3.6 3.4 
Cultural and Recreation 5.7 5.5 5.7 5.5 
lnterest on Long-Term Debt 1.1 0.8 1. 1 0.8 
Water and Sewer 22.3 20. 1 22.3 20.1 
Electric 34.3 34.2 34.3 34.2 

Total Expenses 58.6 52.6 56.6 54.3 115.2 106.9 

Change in Net Position 98.8 94.6 36.6 26.6 135.4 121.2 

Net Position - Beginning of year 325.0 232.2 252.1 225.5 577.1 457.7 
Restatement GASB #75 (16.3) (1.5) (17.8) 
Restatement GASB #73 (1.8) (1.8) 
Net Position - Beginning of year as restated 308.7 230.4 250.6 225.5 559.3 455.9 

Net Position - End of year $407.5 $325.0 $287.2 $252.1 $694.7 $577.1 

Governmental activities: Revenues related to governmental activities increased $ [0.2 mi ll ion, or 6.9%. 
The majority of this increase came from Capital Grants and Contributions which increased by $5 .8 million 
due to increased developer contributions. Charges for services increased by $.9 million due to increased 
inspection fees and increased recreation subdivision fees. Property tax revenues also increased by $1.7 
mill ion due to an increased tax base. Total expenses were up by 11 .4%. While most areas experiencing 
higher operating costs, the largest part of the increase can be traced to Public Works. Expenses increased 
$3 .3 million of the $6.0 million total increase in expenses due to increased depreciation upon Town 
infrastructure and increased operating costs . The Town made no major changes to its service levels or 
additions of new services. 

Business-type activities: Total business-type activity revenues increased by $ 12.3 million or 15.2% 
during the fiscal year. Increases in charges for services were $3.9 million or 7.7% and there was an 
increase of $8 million or 26% in capital contributions and grants. Capital contributions of water and sewer 
lines from developers decreased $2 million while that was offset by an increase of $1 0 mi ll ion in capital 
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reimbursement fees. There were changes in water and electric rates that were revenue neutral. Sewer rates 
were increased. Spending for business-type activities increased $2.3 million or 4.2%. The greatest change 
being increases in depreciation expense for water and sewer operations. 

Financial Analysis of the Town's Funds 

As noted earlier, the Town of Apex uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
fmance-related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds: The focus of the Town of Apex's governmental funds is to provide information on 
near-tenn inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the 
Town's financing requirements. Specifically, unassignedJund balance can be a useful measure of the 
Town's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. This is the portion of fund 
balance remaining after subtracting the amounts that have been restricted (usually by NC state law) or 
assigned (designated for a specific purpose by the Town's management). 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund oftbe Town of Apex. At the end ofthe fiscal year, 
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $2 1.9 million, while total fund balance increased to 
$34.8 million. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned 
fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. As of June 30, 2018, unassigned fund 
balance was 44.4% of the year's expenditures (compared to 41.5% last year), while total fund balance 
represents 70.7% of that same amount (59.4% in 2017). 

The Town strives to maintain an unassigned fund balance of25% of expenditures. Amounts in excess of 
this minimum may be used for construction projects when the Town wishes to avoid the issuance of 
additional debt, for emergency work needed after natural disasters, or for maintaining a stable tax rate when 
economically dependent revenues (i.e. sales taxes) are less than budgeted amounts. The Town budgeted $3 
million of fund balance for the 2017 -18 fiscal year to help meet the needs of a fast growing community for 
vehicles, equipment and street improvements. Again, revenues ended better than anticipated and 
expenditures were less than anticipated and total fund balance increased by $7 million as a result of fiscal 
year operations. Total revenues were $3.5 million more than the fmal budget, primarily because higher than 
expected revenues from building permits, investment earnings and sale of fixed assets. In addition, total 
departmental expenditures ended the year $6.3 million less than the fmal budget. 

At year end, the governmental funds of Town of Apex reported a combined fund balance of $70.8 million, 
an increase of$3 1.6 million from the prior year. The increase resulted predominately from the issuance of 
debt during the fiscal year. During the year the Town spent $2.9 million for streets projects and $8.3 
million for recreation projects. The General Fund, special revenue fund, and capital projects funds are 
included in this combined fund balance amount. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights: During the fiscal year, the Town revised the budget on several 
occasions. Generally, budget amendments are made to recognize new funding amounts or to increase 
appropriations that become necessary for capital projects or to expand services. 

Overall, General Fund revenues increased by $4.6 million from the prior year, an increase of9.3%. This 
increase came from improvements in three major sources of revenue. Property taxes, sales taxes building 
permit and inspections fees increased by approximately $1.7 million, $.7 million and $.7 million 
respectively due to growth of the Town. Also, garbage and recycling fees, investment earnings and sales of 
fixed assets increased by $.8 million. No major revenue sources decreased during the year. 

General Fund expenditures rose by $2.4 million, or 5 .2%. The majority of the increase carne in 
expenditures for Public Works and Solid Waste. Tbe major initiatives of note were increased operating 
costs and capital outlay across several areas. Also debt service increased by $1 million as a result of a 
current refunding of debt. 

Proprietary Funds: The Town of Apex's proprietary fund fmancial statements provide the same type of 
information found in the entity-wide statements but with each of the two funds broken out separately. 
Unrestricted net positions of the Electric and Water and Sewer Funds at the end of the fiscal year were 
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$4.2 million and $32.4 million, respectively. The change in net position for the Electric Fund was an 
increase of.9 million and an increase of$16.5 million in the Water and Sewer Fund. The increase in the 
Water and Sewer Fund was due to reimbursement fees. 

[n the Electric Fund, operating revenues increased by $2. [ million or 5.8% due to an increase in the number 
of customers. Operating expenses remained flat due to a reduction in the cost of power despite an increase 
in the number of customers. 

In the Water and Sewer Fund, operating revenues increased by $1.8 million or 12.4% due to customer 
growth and increases in sewer rates. Operating expenses increased by $2.2 million or 11.9% predominately 
due to increases in depreciation expense and customer growth. The Fund produced positive cash flow 
operations of $7.3 million. 

Capital Asset and nebt Administration 

Capital assets: The Town of Apex's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business- type 
activities as of June 30, 2018, totaled $697.3 million (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets 
include buildings, streets and sidewalks, land, machinery and equipment including vehicles, park facilities, 
utility plants, electric and water distribution systems, and wastewater collection systems. 

Major capital asset transactions during the year include the following additions (there were no significant 
demolitions or disposals): 

• Construction and additions in the governmental-type activities and additions of$11 \.6 million, 
• Electric distribution system improvements, additions, and other capital assets of$4.7 million, 
• Water and sewer system improvements, additions, and other capital assets of$22.4 million. 

Town of Apex 
Capital Assets 

(in millions) 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 

Land $93.3 $64.7 $53.1 $43.7 $146.4 $108.4 
Construction in Progress 3.9 12.0 3.1 21.4 7.0 33.4 

Total Non-Depreciable Assets 97.2 76.7 56.2 65.1 153.4 141.8 

Buildings and Improvements 47.6 41.4 15.1 15.1 62.7 56.5 
Machinery and Equipment 7.0 6.3 3.7 3.6 10.7 9.9 
Vehicles 11.4 10.2 4.9 4.1 16.3 14.3 
Infrastructure 389.8 307.6 316.9 282.1 706.7 589.7 
Total Depreciable 455.8 365.5 340.6 304.9 796.4 670A 
Accumulated Depreciation (133.0) (119.0) ( 119.5) (107A) (252.5) (226A) 

Total Depreciable Assets, Net 322.8 246.5 221.1 197.5 543.9 444.0 

Total $420.0 $323.2 $277.3 $262.6 $697.3 $585.8 

Additional information on the Town's capital assets can be found in Note 4 of the Notes to the Financial 
Statements starting on page 42. 
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Long-term Debt: As of June 30, 2018, the Town of Apex had total general obligation bonded debt 
outstanding of$69.9 million, including $2.8 million of deferred prenilum, electric revenue bonds 
outstanding of $3.4 million, and installment purchase related debt of $35 .2 nilllion. Of the general 
obligation bonds, $32.8 million, including $1.4 million of deferred premium, is being repaid from utility 
system revenues. The remainder of the Town's general obligation bonds, are being repaid from the 
General Fund. During the year, the Town issued $25. 1 million of general obligation bonds, including $1 
million of deferred premium, and incurred $6 nilllion of installment purchase debt. Of that amount $3 
million was issue for street improvements and the remainder was issued for park and recreational facilities. 
Debt of $6.9 million was retired. 

General Obligation Bonds 
Revenue Bonds 
Instalhnent Purchases 

Total 

Town of Apex Outstanding Debt 
(in nilllions) 

Governmental Bus iness-type 
Activities Activities 

2018 2017 2018 2017 

$37.1 $14.6 $32.8 $33.7 
3.4 3.9 

14.4 9.8 20.8 22.4 

$ 51.5 $ 24.4 $ 57.0 $ 60.0 

Total 
2018 2017 

$69.9 $48.3 
3.4 3.9 

35.2 32.2 

$ \08.5 $ 84.4 

North Carolina general statutes linilt the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can 
issue to 8 percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that Town's boundaries. 
The legal debt margin for Apex is $465 million. However, this statutory limit far exceeds the Town's 
realistic debt capacity. 

In November, 2017 the citizens of Apex overwhelmingly approved a $48 nilllion general obligation bond 
referendum for parks and recreational facilities. Those first $20 million of those bonds were issued during 
the 2018 fiscal year. Additional information regarding the Town of Apex 's long-term debt can be found in 
Note 9 of this report beginning on page 56. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

At June 30, 2018, Apex's population was estimated at 53,862. The residential construction was up over 
10.9% for the fiscal year compared to the prior year based upon construction value. Construction activity 
remains strong in the area. The Town's current 2018-19 budget conservatively projects construction and 
development related revenues to be lower than the fmal figures for 20 17- 18 contained in this report. The 
Town's econonilc outlook will largely be dependent on the overall national economy. 

Employment opportunities are derived from within the Town as well as from Raleigh, the state capital, and 
RTP, which employs over 50,000 in high-technology fields. In addition, the Raleigh-Durham area also 
contains several colleges and universities and major health care facilities. These employers have 
historically been relatively stable and less sensi tive to economic downturns. As a result, the unemployment 
rate has historically been lower than the state and national averages. At year end the rate for Apex was 
2.9% versus the statewide rate of 4% and the U.S. rate of 4.2%. Because of the highly specialized nature of 
many of the citizens' employment, income levels in Wake County have also have been historically above 
the state and national averages. 
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Budget Higillights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018 

Governmental Funds: The General Fund's budget is $59 million. The Town's tax base increased from 
$6.45 billion atJanuary I , 2017 to $6.99 billion at January I, 20 18 as a result of growth. The Town's tax 
rate increased from 38 to 41.5 cents per $100 to provide additional funds for debt service and capital 
expenditures. Revenues estimates for property taxes are 18.9% above the prior year budget. Most other 
revenues were estimated to continue at or slightly below the levels seen during 2017-1 8. Sales tax 
collected for the 2017-18 fiscal year were 7.5% higher than the prior year and the budget projects an 8% 
increase over that amount. There were modest changes in other charges and fees. The budget includes 28 
new positions in the General Fund, 13 of those positions are in public safety and 5 are in parks and 
recreation, Total budgeted revenues were up II % from the original 2017-18 budget to $56.7 million. The 
adopted budget appropriates $2.3 million of fund balance. 

Proprietary Funds: The Town expects continued growth in the number of customers. Rates for sewer 
service were increased by 4.3% and rates for electric services were increased by 2.15%. Revenues in both 
funds are expected to increase from the prior year and keep pace with increased expenditures. The budget 
for the Electric Fund is $40. 1 million which is a 7% increase from the original budget adopted in the prior 
year. The Water and Sewer Fund's budget is at $21.3 million which is a 12% increase from the original 
budget adopted in the prior year. Apex remains committed to a number of water and sewer system 
improvements over the next several years with the Town of Cary. Annually, the Town reviews revised 
estimates of the costs of these projects and the projected revenues and expenses of the Water and Sewer 
Fund's to identify that sufficient capital will be available for project completion. 

Requests for Information 

This report is designed to provide an overview of the Town's finances for those with an interest in this area. 
Questions conceming any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information 
should be directed to the Finance Director, Town of Apex, Post Office Box 250, Apex, North Carolina 
27502. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

June 30, 2018 
Exhibit I 

2018 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 
ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 48,255,206 $ 60,071,387 $ 108,326,593 
Taxes receivables (net) 123,759 123,759 
Accounts receivable (net) 1,183,354 8,792,784 9,976,138 
Due from other governments 3,798,863 3,798,863 
[ntemal balances (216,339) 2 16,339 
Prepaid items 142,177 142,177 
Security deposits 35,100 35,100 
lnventories 29,591 1,535,37 1 1,564,962 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 21,774,521 11 ,295,846 33,070,367 
Note receivable 75,000 75,000 

Capital assets: 

Land, improvements, and construction in progress 97, 158,671 56,227,049 153,385,720 
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 322,802,696 221,100,446 543,903,142 

Total assets 495,162,599 359,239,222 854,401,821 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
OPEB deferrals 649,303 122,147 771,450 
Pension deferrals 3,783,027 1,121,593 4,904,620 

Total deferred outflows of resources 4,432,330 1,243,740 5,676,070 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 5,489,119 8,573 ,896 14,063,015 
Accrued interest payable 315,022 150,930 465,952 
Customer deposits 700,038 700,038 
Current portion of long-term liabilities 4,018,167 3,149,509 7,167,676 

Total current liabilities 9,822,308 12,574,373 22,396,68 1 

Long-term liabilities: 
Due in more than one year 79,495,087 60,132,67 1 139,627,758 

Total liabilities 89,317,395 72,707,044 162,024,439 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Prepaid taxes 34,407 34,407 
OPEB deferrals 2,545,237 478,811 3,024,048 
Pension deferrals 255,466 75,850 331,316 

Total deferred inflows of resources 2,835, 110 554,661 3,389,77 1 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 383,832,937 220,326,961 604,159,898 
Restricted for: 

Nonexpendable 
Perpetual Care 699,968 699,968 

Expendable 
Stabilization by State Statute 8,742,293 8,742 ,293 
Public Safety 275,86 1 275,861 
Construction Management Inspections 621,481 621,48 1 

Unrestricted 13,269,884 66,894,296 80,164,180 
Total net position $ 407,442,424 $ 287,221,257 $ 694,663,681 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these [mancial statements. 

22 



Exhibit 2 

FUNCfIONS/PROGRAMS 
Governmental Activities: 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Environmental protection 
Cultural and recreation 
Interest on long-tenn debt 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Electric 
Water and Sewer 

Total bus iness-type activities 
Total 

N 

'" 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
STATEMENT OF ACfIVlTIES 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position 

Charges for Operating Grants Capital Grants Governmental Business-type 
Expenses Services and Contributions and Contributions Activities Activities Total 

$ 10,583,779 $ 5,638,42 1 $ $ $ (4,945,358) $ $ (4,945,358) 
21,075,981 12,000 3,071,898 (17,992,083) (17,992,083) 
16,523,243 1, 160,761 1,203,92 1 97,849,305 83,690,744 83,690,744 
3,641 ,941 3,62.9,2. 12 (12,729) (12,729) 
5,749,597 5,149,269 226,941 (373,387) (373,387) 
1,0731458 (1,073,458) (1,073,458) 

58 1647,999 15,589,663 4,275,819 98,076,246 59,293,729 59,2.93,729 

34,215,065 38,363,787 4,148,722 4,148,722 
22,334!067 16,260,398 37,863,013 31,789,344 31,789,344 

56,549,132 54,624! 185 37,863,013 35,938,066 35,938,066 

$ 115,197, 131 $ 70,213,848 $ 4,275,819 $ 135,939,259 59,293,729 35,938,066 95,231,795 

General revenues: 

Taxes: 
Property taxes, levied for general purpose 24,664,428 2.4,664,428 

Other laxes 
Local option sales 10,109,296 10,109,296 

Motor vehicle licenses 345,058 345,058 

Miscellaneous 270,879 2.70,879 

Unrestricted intergovernmental 3,028,277 3,028,2.77 

Unrestricted investment earnings 562,3 16 694,338 1,256,654 

Miscellaneous 535,73 1 38,727 574,458 

Total general revenues 39,515,985 733 z065 40,249,050 

Change in net position 98,809,714 36,671,131 135,480,845 

Net position-beginning of year (as previously stated) 324,972,163 252,061,281 577,033,444 

Adj ustment to beginning net position (16,339,453) (1,5 11 ,155) (17,850,608) 

Net position-beginning of year (as restated) 308,632,710 2.50,550, 12.6 559, 182..836 

Net position-ending $ 407,442,424 $ 2.87,2.21.257 $ 694,663,681 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
June 30, 2018 

Exbibit 3 
Major Funds 

Recreation 
Otber Total 

General 
Capital Projects 

Governmental Governmental 
Funds Funds 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 33,24 1,023 $ 2,955 ,63 1 $ 12,009,962 $ 48,206,616 
Restricted cash 897,342 18,467,726 2,409,453 21,774,52 1 
Receivables, net: 

Taxes 87,109 36,650 123,759 
Accounts 393,401 393,401 

Due from other governments 4,297,975 31,279 175,32 1 4,504,575 
Due from other funds 550,004 550,004 
Prepaid items 84,823 84,823 
Inventories 29,591 29,59 1 

Total assets $ 39,581,268 $ 21 ,454,636 $ 14,631,386 $ 75,667,290 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 4,6 18,583 $ 20,798 $ 58,894 $ 4,698,275 

Deferred inflows of resources: 
Property taxes receivable 91,567 91,567 
Prepaid taxes 34,407 34,407 

Total deferred inflows of resources 125,974 125,974 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendable 

Perpetual care 699,968 699,968 
Prepaid items 84,823 84,823 
Inventories 29,591 29,591 

Restricted 
Stabilization by State Statute 8,742,293 8,742,293 
Public Safety 275,861 275,861 

Construction Management Inspections 62 1,481 62 1,481 
Street improvements 1,709,485 1,709,485 
Recreation improvements 18,467,726 18,467,726 

Committed 
Library maintenalJce 117,422 11 7,422 
Street improvements 3,976,409 3,976,409 
RecreatiolJ improvements 2,966,112 2,966,112 
Public Safety improvements 1,043, 121 1,043, 121 
Perpetual care 403,629 403,629 
LEO pension obligation 842,349 842,349 

Assigned 
Recreation improvements 5,857,424 5,857,424 
Street improvements 765,034 765,034 
Subsequent year's expenditures 2,357,400 2,357,400 

Unassigned 21,882,913 21,882,913 
Total fund balances 34,836,711 21,433,838 14,572,492 70,843,041 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources and fund balances $ 39,581,268 $ 21,454,636 $ 14,63 1,386 $ 75,667,290 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
June 30, 2018 

Exhibit 3 

Fund balances-total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 
of net position are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental acti vities are not 
fmancial resources and therefore are not reported in 
the governmental funds 

Governmental capital assets 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are not 
reported in the funds 

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPES are not 
reported in the funds 

Notes receivable are not reported in the funds 

Long-term liabi lities, including bonds payable are not due 
and payable in the current period and therefore are 
not reported in the governmental funds 

Government bonds and notes payable 
Premiums on refunding bonds 
OPES liability 
Compensated absences 
Net pension liabi lity LGERS 
Net pension liability LEO 

An internal service fund is used by the Town to charge the costs of 
insurance to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of this fund are 
included in governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position 

Deferred revenue in governmental funds is susceptible to 
full accrual on the entity-wide statements 

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are not reported in 
the funds 

Deferred inflows of resources related to OPES are not reported in 
the funds 

Other liabi lities are not due and payable in the current period 
and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds 

Accrued interest payable 

Net position of governmental activities 

$ 552,994,229 
( 133,032,862) 

(50, 112,103) 
(1,427,347) 

(23,600,348) 
(1,448,115) 
(4,676,947) 
(2,248,394) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fInancial statements. 
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$ 70,843,04 1 

419,961,367 

3,783,027 

649,303 

75,000 

(83,513,254) 

(1 ,33 1,900) 

91,565 

(255,466) 

(2,545,237) 

(315,022) 

$ 407,442,424 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Exhibit 4 
Major Funds 

Recreation 
Other Total 

General 
Capital Projects 

Governmental Governmental 
Funds Funds 

REVENUES 
Ad valorem taxes $ 24,672,063 $ $ $ 24,672,063 
Other taxes and licenses 10,383,484 345,058 10,728,542 
Unrestricted intergovernmental 3,028,277 3,028,277 
Restricted intergovernmental 4,275,819 226,941 1,113,959 5,6 16,719 
Permits and fees 5,638,221 5,309,725 10,947,946 
Sales and services 4,638,328 4,638,328 
[nvestrnent earnings 369,064 69,284 123,968 562,316 
Miscellaneous 847,885 46 847,931 

Total revenues 53,853,141 296,225 6,892,756 61,042,122 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 9,238,371 9,238,371 
Public safety 18,479,043 18,479,043 
Public works 5,726,894 9,300 5,736,194 
Environmenta l protection 3,4 16,576 3,416,576 
Cultural and recreational 3,884,016 3,884,016 

Capital outlay 3,622,102 8,285,252 3,011,129 14,918,483 
Debt service: 

Principal 3,869,854 3,869,854 
Interest 1,012,079 1,0 12,079 
Total expenditures 49,248,935 8,285,252 3,020,429 60,554,616 

Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures 4,604,206 (7,989,027) 3,872,327 487,506 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers from otber funds 1,868,375 1,971,000 738,400 4,577,775 
Transfers to other funds (738,400) (194,328) (3,645,047) (4,577,775) 
Bond issuance 1,105,000 20,000,000 3,000,000 24,105,000 
Bond premium 160,106 752,978 112,711 1,025,795 
Installment note issuance 6,000,000 6,000,000 

Total other financing sources (uses) 2,395,081 28,529,650 206,064 31,130,795 
Net change in fund balances 6,999,287 20,540,623 4,078,391 31,618,301 

Fund balances, beginning of year 27,837,424 893,215 10,494,101 39,224,740 

Fund balances-end of year $ 34,836,711 $ 21,433,838 $ 14,572,492 $ 70,843,041 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
RECONCILIATION OF TILE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Year Ended JUlie 30, 2018 

Exhibit 4 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are 
different because: 

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement 
of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
reported as depreciation expense. 

Expenditures for capital assets 
Less current year depreciation 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources 
are not reported as revenues in the funds. 

Developer's contributed capital and donations 

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets ( i.e., 
sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net position. 

The issuance of debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while 
the repayment of principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources 
of govermnental funds. Neither transaction has any effect on net position. This 
amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and 
related items. 

Bond issuance 
Premium on bond issuance 
Capital lease issuance 
Amortization of bond premium 
Principal payments 
Change in accrued interest payable 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are not reported in the funds 

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB are not reported in the funds 

Benefit payments paid for the LEOSSA are not included on the Statement of Activities 

Benefit payments paid for the OPEB are not included on the Statement of Activities 

Net loss of internal service funds determined to be governmental-type 

Some ex.penses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current 
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental 

funds. 
Change in deferred revenues 
Change in compensated absences 
Pension ex.pense LOERS 
Pension ex.pense LEO 
OPEB expense 

Total changes in net position of governmental activities 

$ 14,918,483 
(14,618,369) 

(24,105,000) 
(1 ,025,795) 
(6,000,000) 

63,541 
3,869,854 
(124,921) 

(7,555) 
(50,556) 

(1 ,592,662) 
(207, 125) 

$ 31,618,301 

300,1 14 

96,735,346 

(312,200) 

(27 ,322,321) 

1,548,364 

566,268 

75,341 

284,763 

(518,466) 

(2 ,307,898) (4,165,796) 

$ 98,809,714 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPEND ITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30, 20 18 

Exhibit 5 

General Fund 
Variance with 
Final Budget -

Positive 
Original Final Actual Amounts (Neliative) 

REVENUES: 
Ad valorem taxes $ 24,510,934 $ 24,510,934 $ 24,672,063 $ 161,129 
Other taxes and licenses 10,310,000 10,3 10,000 10,383,484 73,484 
Unrestricted intergovernmental 2,966,200 2,966,200 3,028,277 62,077 
Restricted intergovernmental 4,048,981 4,151,93 1 4,275,819 123,888 
Pennits and fees 3,444,200 3,444,200 5,638,221 2,194,021 
Sales and services 4,519,877 4,519,877 4,638,328 118,451 
Investment earnings 102,780 130,029 367,908 237,879 
Miscellaneous 305,200 361,100 847,885 486,785 

Total revenues 50,208,172 50,394,27 1 53,85 1,985 3,457,7 14 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

General government 10,949,342 11,588,794 9,939,564 1,649,230 
Public safety 21,694,498 22,102,890 19,651,106 2,451,784 
Public works 6,65 8,819 8,286,731 6,610,588 1,676,143 
Solid Waste 3,905,470 3,939,675 3,860,046 79,629 
Cultural and recreation 4,441,758 4,696,462 4,305,698 390,764 

Debt service: 
Principal 2,412,958 3,869,855 3,869,854 I 
Interest and fees 711,653 1,044,779 1,012,079 32,700 
Total expenditures 50,774,498 55,529, 186 49,248,935 6,280,251 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (566,326) (5,134,915) 4,603,050 9,737,965 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfer from other funds 826,200 1,869,049 1,868,375 (674) 
Transfer to other funds (195,756) (738,400) (738,400) 
Bond issuance 1,105,000 1,105,000 
Bond premium 160,105 160,106 
Contingency (64, 118) (219,874) 219,874 
Fund balance appropriated 2,959,035 (2,959,035) 

Total other fInancing sources (uses) 566,326 5,134,915 2,395,08 1 (2,739,834) 

Net change in fund balance $ $ 6,998,131 $ 6,998,131 

Fund balance - beginning of year 27,732,260 

Fund balance - end of year 34,730,391 

A legally budgeted Fire Capital Reserve fund is 
consolidated in the General Fund for reporting purposes: 

rnvestment earnings 1,156 
Fund balance - beginning of year 105,164 
Fund balance - end of year (Exhibit 4) $ 34,836,711 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fmancial statements. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLI NA 
ST AT EMENT OF NET POSIT ION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
June 30, 2018 

Exhibit 6 

Ente r(!rise Funds 
Wa ter and (otemal 

Electric Fund Sewer Fund Totals Service Fund 
ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,66 1,386 51,410,001 $ 60,07 1,387 $ 48,590 
Accounts receivable (net) . billed 3,949,908 1,605,376 5,555,284 84,24 1 
Accounts receivable· unbilled 2,297,373 940, 127 3,237,500 

Due from other funds 79,843 136,496 216,339 
lnventories 1,376,60 1 158,770 1,535,37 1 
Prepaid items 57,355 
Restricted casb and cash equivalents 11,295,846 11,295,846 

Total current assets 16,365,11 1 65,546,616 81,911,727 190,186 

Noncurrent assets: 
Deposit 35, 100 

Capital assets: 
Land and construction in progress 2,841,329 53,385,720 56,227,049 
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 35,279,498 185,820,948 22 1,100,446 
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 38, 120,827 239,206,668 277,327,495 

Total noncurrent assets 38, 120,827 239,206,668 277,327,495 35,100 
Total assets 54,485,938 304,753,284 359,239,222 225,286 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
OPEB deferrals 57,687 64,460 122,147 

Pension deferrals 508,473 613, 120 1,12 1,593 
Total deferred outflows of resources 566,160 677,580 1,243,740 

LlAB [LITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,192,884 5,381,012 8,573,896 790,843 
Due to other funds 766,343 
Customer deposits 700,oJ8 700,oJ8 

Accrued interest payable 15,437 135,493 150,930 
Bonds and notes payable 516,000 2,413,695 2,929,695 

Compensated absences 105,975 113,839 219,814 
Total current liabilities 4,530,334 8,044,039 12,574,373 1,557,186 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Compensated absences 65,482 101,766 167,248 
Total OPEB liability 2,096,750 2,342,959 4,439,709 
Bonds and notes payable 2,877,000 5 1,193 ,839 54,070,839 
Net pension liability 658,6 14 796,26 1 1,454,875 

Total noncurrent liabilities 5,697,846 54,434,825 60, 132,671 
Total liabilities 10,228, 180 62,478,864 72,707,044 1,557,186 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
OPEB deferrals 226,129 252,682 478 ,811 
Pension deferrals 35,377 40,473 75,850 

Total deferred inflows ofresources 26 1,506 293,155 554,661 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 34,727,827 185,599,134 220,326,961 

Unrestricted 9,834,585 57,059,7 11 66,894,296 ( 1,331 ,900) 
Total net position $ 44,562,412 $ 242,658,845 $ 287,22 1,257 $ (I,33 1,900) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fmancial statements. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
For the Year E nded June 30, 2018 

Ex hibit 7 

EnterErise Funds 
Water and Internal 

Electric Fund Sewer Fund Totals Service Fund 
OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services $ 33,9 14,9 19 $ 15,570,135 $ 49,485,054 $ 5,083,423 
Water and sewer taps 481,590 48 1,590 
Other operating revenues 4,448,868 208,673 4,657,541 

Total operating revenues 38,363,787 16,260,398 54,624, 185 5,083,423 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Electric operations 7,285,602 7,285,602 
Electric power purchases 24,260,452 24,260,452 
Water and sewer operations 11,030, 18 1 11,030, 18 1 
Depreciation 2,530,444 9,7 17,197 12,247,64 1 
Health and dental claims 4,908,427 
Health and dental administrative fees 693,462 
Total operating expenses 34,076,498 20,747,378 54,823,876 5,601,889 

Operating income (loss) 4,287,289 (4,486,980) (199,691) (5 18,466) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Investment earnings 93,788 600,550 694,338 
Interest expense (138,567) (1,586,689) (1,725,256) 
Acreage, capacity and capital reimbursement fees 21,362,568 21,362,568 
Gain on sale of capital assets 38,727 38,727 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (44,779) 20,415,156 20,370,377 
Income (loss) before transfers and contributions 4,242,5 10 15,928,176 20, 170,686 (5 18,466) 

Capital contributions 16,500,445 16,500,445 
Change in net position 4,242,510 32,428,62 1 36,67 1,131 (5 18,466) 

Total net position - beginning-as previously stated 40,935,458 211,125,823 252,061,28 1 (8 13,434) 
Adjustment to beginning net position (615,556) (895,599) (1,5 11, 155) 

Total net position - beginning-as restated 40,319,902 210,230,224 250,550,126 (813,434) 

Total net position - ending $ 44,562,4 12 $ 242,658,845 $ 287,221,257 $ (1,331,900) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Exhibit 8 

Enter~rise Funds 
Water and Internal 

Electric Fund Sewer Fund Totals Service Fund 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Cash received from customers $ 37,483,880 $ 15,731,873 $ 53,215,753 $ 5, 161,665 

Cash paid for goods and services (28,1 17,317) (3,859,6 11 ) (3 I ,976,928) (5,304,674) 

Cash paid to or on behalf of employees for services (3,468,468) (4,6 13,924) (8,082,392) 

Increase in customer deposits 53,027 53,027 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 5,951, 122 7,258,338 13,209,460 (143,009) 

NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Interfund loan repayment (advances) (11,470) (81,927) (153,397) 191,599 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 

FINANCING ACTMTIES 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (4,676,8 12) (5,843 ,954) (10,520,766) 

Sale of cap ital assets 63,354 63,354 

Acreage, capacity and capital reimbursement fees 21,362,568 21,362,568 

Principal paid on bond maturities and equipment contracts (498,000) (2,379,869) (2,877,869) 

Interest paid on bond maturities and equipment contracts (140,833) (1,665,4 16) (1,806,249) 

Net casb used by capital and related financing activities (5,3 15,645) II ,536,683 6,221,038 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

lnterest 93,788 600,550 694,338 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 657,795 19,3 13,644 19,97 1,439 48,590 

Balances·beginning of the year 8,003,59 1 43,392,203 51,395,794 
Balances-end of the year $ 8,661,386 $ 62,705,847 $ 7 1,367,233 $ 48,590 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET 

CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating income (loss) $ 4,287,289 $ (4,486,980) $ (199,691) $ (518,466) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by 

operating activities: 
Depreciation 2,530,444 9,7 17, 197 12,247,641 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (879,907) (528,525) (1,408,432) 78,242 

Increase in prepaid expenses (8,9 15) 

(Increase) decrease in inventory (8 1,5 13) 8,640 (72,873) 

Decrease in deferred outflows of resources for pensions 227,236 300,781 528,017 

Decrease in net pension liability (207,941) (275,240) (483,181 ) 

Decrease in deferred inflows of resources for pensions ( 13,923) (18,429) (32,352) 

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities ( 109,15 1) 2,394,799 2,285,648 306,130 

Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated absences 16, 127 1,462 17,589 

Increase in deferred outflows of resources for OPES (57,687) (64,460) ( 122,147) 

Increase in deferred inflows of resouces for OPEB 226,129 252,682 478,811 

Decrease in total OPES liability (39,008) (43,589) (82,597) 

Increase in customer deposits 53,027 53,027 

Total adjustments 1,663,833 11 ,745 ,3 18 13,409,151 375,457 
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 5,951,122 $ 7,258,338 $ 13,209,460 $ (143,009) 

NON·CASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Contributions of capital assets $ $ 16,500,445 $ 16,500,445 $ 

06,500,445) (16,500,445) Acquisition of capital assets through capital contributions 
Net effect of non· cash contributions $ ======~ $ . $ ======~- $ ======~ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2018 

Note I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the Town of Apex have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more significant 
accounting policies: 

<a) Reporting Entity 

The Town, a political subdivision of Wake County, is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor 
and a five member Town Council. There are no component units which are required to be included in these 
financial statements. 

(b) Basis of Presentation 

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities include all the 
nonfiduciary activities of the overall government. All fiduciary activities are reported only in the fund 
financial statements. Eliminations have been made to mjnjmize the double counting ofintemal activities . 
These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the Town. 
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues and other 000-

exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external 
parties. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the 
different business-type activities of the Town and for each function of the Town's governmental activities. 
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and therefore, are clearly 
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include <a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of 
goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program 
revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the Town's funds, 
including the internal service and pension trust funds. Separate statements for each fund category­
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary- are presented. The emphasis of fund fmancial statements is on major 
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and 
enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonrnajor funds. 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated 
with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives 
up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies, result from non-exchange transactions. 
Other non-operating revenues are from ancillary activities such as investment earnings. In addition, acreage 
and capacity fees are considered contributed capital and are restricted until used for capital improvements. 

The Town reports the following major governmental funds: 
General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to account for all 
fmancial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The primary revenue sources are 
ad valorem taxes, state-shared revenues, grants, building permits and fees, refuse collection charges and 
various other taxes and fees. The primary expenditures are for public safety, streets, sanitation, parks and 
recreation, and general governmental services. Additionally, the Town has legally adopted a Fire Capital 
Reserve Fund. Under GASB 54 guidance the Fire Capital Reserve Fund is consolidated in the General Fund. 
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The budgetary comparison for the Fire Capital Reserve Fund has been included in the supplemental 
infonnation. 

Recreation Capital Project Fund - The Recreation Capital Project Fund is used to account for financial 
resources to be used for projects related to the construction or improvement of recreation facilities in the 
Town. 

The Town reports the following major proprietary funds: 
Electric Fund - The Electric Fund is used to account for electric operations. The Electric Fund is composed of 
two sub-funds: Electric Operations and the Electric Substation Project Fund, which are consolidated for 
financial reporting purposes. 

Water and Sewer Fund - The Water and Sewer Fund is used to account for water and sewer operations. The 
Water and Sewer Fund is composed of four sub-funds: Water and Sewer Operations, Water and Sewer Project 
Fund, Wastewater Treatment Plant Project Fund, and Water and Sewer Capital Reserve Fund, which are 
consolidated for fmancial reporting purposes. 

The Town reports the following nonmajor governmental fimds: 
Special Revenue Fund - The Eva Perry Library Fund is used to account for resources that are set aside to be 
used for future specific purposes. 

Capital Project Funds - Capital project funds are used to account for fmancial resources to be used for the 
acquisition or construction of major facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds). The Town has 
four non-major Capital Project Funds: the Street Improvements Capital Project Fund, the Recreation Capital 
Project Reserve Fund, the Transportation Capital Project Reserve Fund and the General Capital Projects Fund. 

Permanent Fund - The Cemetery Permanent Fund is used to account for perpetual care of the municipal 
cemetery. 

Additionally, the Town reports the following fund type: 
Internal Service Fund - The Health and Dental Fund is used to account for health and dental claims of 
employees and certain retirees. 

(c) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the Town are maintained during the year 
using the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

Government-wide, Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements . The government-wide, proprietary 
and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The 
government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, 
regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the Town gives (or 
receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants 
and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the 
taxes are levied. Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility 
requirements have been satisfied. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include I) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services or 
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally 
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dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general 
revenues include all taxes. 

Proprietruy funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with 
a proprietary fund 's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Town's enterprise 
fund are charges to customers for sales and services. The Town also recognizes as operating revenue the 
portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the water and sewer system. 
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and 
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this defmition are reported as 
nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the 
current fmancial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this 
method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related 
fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, 
and compensated absences, whlch are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General 
capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term 
debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources. 

The Town considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year end, except for 
property taxes. Ad valorem property taxes receivable are not accrued as revenue because the amount is not 
susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable for property other than motor vehlcles are materially past 
due and are not considered to be an available resource to finance the operations of the current year. Also, as of 
September 1,2013, State law altered the procedures for the assessment and collection of property taxes on 
registered motor vehlcles in North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law, the State of North Carolina 
is responsible for billing and collecting the property taxes on registered motor vehlcles on behalf of all 
municipalities and special tax districts. Property taxes are due when vehicles are registered. The billed taxes 
are applicable to the fiscal year in whlch they are received. Uncollected taxes that were billed in periods prior 
to September I , 2013 and for limited registration plates are shown as a receivable in these fmancial statements 
and are offset by deferred inflows of resources. 

Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as the utilities sales tax, collected and held by the 
State at year-end on behalf of the Town are recognized as revenue. Sales taxes are considered shared revenue 
for the Town of Apex because the tax is levied by Wake County and then remitted to and distributed by the 
State. Most intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because generally 
they are not measurable until received in cash. Grant revenues which are unearned at year-end are recorded as 
unearned revenues. Under the terms of grant agreements, the Town funds certain programs by a combination 
of specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, when program 
expenses are incurred, there is both restricted and unrestricted net position available to finance the program. It 
is the Town's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by 
categorical block grants, and then by general revenues. 

(d) Budgetary Data 

Budgets are adopted as required by North Carolina General Statutes. An annual budget ordinance is adopted for 
the General, special revenue, permanent. capital reserve capital projects and enterprise funds. All annual 
appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. Project ordinances, whlch may cover more than one year, are adopted 
for the remaining capital project funds . The enterprise fund projects are consolidated with their respective 
operating fund for reporting purposes. The Town's Health and Dental Fund, an internal service fund, operates 

34 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 20 18 

under a fInancial plan that was adopted by the governing board at the time the Town's budget ordinance was 
approved, as is required by the General Statutes. All budgets are prepared using the modifIed accrual basis of 
accounting. 
Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the fund level for all annually budgeted funds and at the 
object level for the multi-year funds. The Town Manager is authorized by the budget ordinance to transfer 
appropriations between functional areas within a fund. Any revisions that alter total expenditures of any fund 
must be approved by the Town Council. During the year several amendments to the original budget became 
necessary. Material amendments were made to the budget of the General Fund to appropriate additional fund 
balance in support of public safety and transportation projects. The effects of other amendments were not 
material. The budget ordinance must be adopted by July I of the fIscal year or the governing board must adopt 
an interim budget that covers that time until the annual ordinance can be adopted. 

(e) Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Jn.flows of Resources, and Fund Equity 

1. Deposits and Investments 

All deposits of the Town are made in board-designated offIcial depositories and are secured as required by G.S. 
159-31. The Town may designate as an offIcial depository any bank or savings association whose principal 
offIce is located in North Carolina. The Town may also establish time deposits in the form of NOW accounts, 
Super NOW and money market accounts, and certifIcates of deposits. 

State law (G.S. 159-30(c) authorizes the Town to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations fully 
guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the State of North Carolina; 
bonds and notes of any North Carolina local goverrunent or public authority; obligations of certain non­
guaranteed federal agencies; certain rugh quality issues of commercial paper and banker's acceptances; and the 
North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT). The Town's investments are reported at fair value. The 
securities of the NCCMT Goverrunent Portfolio, a SEC-registered (2a-7) external inves tment pool is measured 
at amortized cost, wruch is the NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio'S securities are valued at 
fair value. 

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Town pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and maximize investment 
income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are considered cash and cash 
equivalents. 

3. Restricted Assets 

Certain police and fIre safety moneys are classifIed as restricted because its use is restricted by donors or state 
and federal law. Money from the sale of cemetery plots is restricted for use in cemetery perpetual care. 
Unspent inspection funds are also classified as restricted cash because then can be expended only for the 
purposes outlined in State Statute (G.S. 160A-414). The unexpended bond and note proceeds in the Recreation 
Capital Project Fund and the Street Improvement Capital Project Fund are classifIed as restricted assets because 
their use is completely restricted for the purpose for which the debt was originally issued. Amounts received 
for Capital Reimbursement fees are restricted until spent for future capital improvements or debt service on 
existing capital assets. 
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Restricted assets at June 30, 2018 consist of: 

Govemmen tal Activities 

General Fund 
Public Safety 
General Government - lnspections 

Street Improvement Capital Project Fund 
Future projects 

Recreation Capital Project Fund 
Future projects 

Water and Sewer Capital Reserve Fund 
Capital Reimbursement 

Cemetery Fund 
Enviromental Services 

Total Restricted Cash 

4. Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 

$ 275,861 
621,48 1 

1,709,485 

18,467,726 

11 ,295,846 

699,968 

$ 33,070,367 

In accordance with State law (G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a), the Town levies ad valorem taxes on property 
other than motor vehicles on July I ", the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on September I" (lien 
date); however, interest does not accrue until the following January 6th. These taxes are based on the assessed 
values as of the previous January 1 st, 

5. Allowances for Doubtful Accounts 

An allowance for doubtful accounts is maintained on the ad valorem taxes receivable in the General Fund and 
on utility receivables in the Electric Fund and the Water and Sewer Fund. This amount is estimated by 
analyzing the percentage of receivables that are written off in prior years. The direct write-off method is used 
by the Town on all other types of receivables. Under this method, all accounts considered uncollectible at June 
30, 2018 have been charged against operations. 

6. Inventories and Prepaid Items 

The inventories of the Town are valued at cost (weighted average), which approximates market. The Town's 
General Fund inventory consists of expendable supplies that are recorded as expenditures as used rather than 
when purchased. The inventories of the Town's enterprise funds consist of materials and supplies held for 
subsequent use. The cost of these inventories is expensed when consumed rather when purchased. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect amounts applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements and expensed in future periods. 

7. Capital Assets 

Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or more and an 
estimated useful life in excess of one year. Donated capital assets received prior to June 15, 20 15 are recorded 
at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Donated capital assets received after June 15,2015 are 
recorded at acquisition value. All other purchased or constructed capi tal assets are reported at cost or 
estimated historical cost. General infrastructure assets acquired prior to July 1, 2003 consist ofthe road 
network assets and Water and Sewer, as well as Electric assets that were acquired or received substantial 
improvements subsequent to July I , 1980 and are reported at estimated historical cost using deflated 
replacement cost. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance is expensed as incurred. 
Capital assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis as follows: 
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Vehicles and Motorized Equipment 
Electric, Water and Sewer Systems 
Buildings and Improvements 
Land improvements 
Equipment and Furniture 

8. Deferred OutflowslInflows of Resources 

Life 
30 years 

3-10 years 
30-40 years 
10-30 years 

10 to 33 years 
5 to 8 years 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows of Resources, represents a 
consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an expense or 
expenditure until then. The Town has two items that meet this criterion, pension deferrals and other post­
employment benefits (OPEB) deferrals for the 2018 fiscal year. In addition to liabilities, the statement of 
financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate 
financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies 
to a future period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then. The Town has three items that meets the 
criterion for this category - prepaid taxes, pension and OPEB deferrals. 

9. Long-term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund rypes in the fund financial statements, long­
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable goverrunental activities, 
business-rype activities, or proprietary fund rype statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are 
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are 
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are expensed in the reporting 
period in which they are incurred. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund rypes recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as 
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing 
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt 
issuances are reported as other fmancing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual oet 
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

10. Compensated Absences 

The vacation policy of the Town allows employees to carry forward each December 31 of up to thirty (30) days 
earned vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. The Town's policy for compensatory 
time provides for an unlimited accumulation of earned compensatory time, which is vested. 
For the Town's government-wide and proprietary funds, an expense and a liability for compensated absences 
and the salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is earned. The Town has assumed a first-in, first-out 
method of using accumulated compensated time. The portion of that time that is estimated to be used in the 
next fiscal year has been designated as a current liability in the government-wide financial statements. 

The Town's sick leave policy provides for unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave does not 
vest but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the determination of length 
of service for retirement purposes. Since the Town has no obligation for the sick leave until it is actually taken, 
no accrual for sick leave has been made. 
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II . Net position/Fund Balances 

Net position 
Net position in government-wide and proprietary fund fmancial statements is classified as invested in net 
capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted. Restricted net position represent constraints on resources that are 
either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or 
imposed by law through state statute. 

Fund Balances 
In the governmental fund fmancial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications designed to 
disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent. 

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows: 

Non-spendable Fund Balance 

This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) 
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

Cemetery perpetual care - Cemetery resources that are required to be retained in perpetuity for 
maintenance of the cemetery. 

Prepaid items - portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents the year-end 
balance of prepaid items, which are not spendable resources. 

Inventories - portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents the year-end 
balance of ending inventories, which are not spendable resources. 

Restricted Fund Balance 

This classification includes amounts of fund balance restricted by or subject to externally enforceable legal 
restrictions, including, but not limited to creditors, grantors, contributors, or other governments through 
enabling legislation. 

RestrictedforStabilization by State Statute - portion of fund balance that is restricted by State Statute 
[G.S. 159-8(a)]. 

Restricted for public safety - portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source for certain public 
safety expenditures. 

Restricted for inspections - Inspection portion of fund balance that is restricted by State Statute 
[G.S. J60A-4I4)]. 

Restricted for street improvements - portion of fund balance is unexpended debt proceeds and restricted 
until used for capital improvement for which the debt was issued. 

Restricted for recreation improvements - portion of fund balance is unexpended debt proceeds and 
restricted until used for capital improvement for which the debt was issued. 
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Committed Fund Balance 
This classification includes amounts of fund balance that can only be used for specific purposes imposed by a 
resolution approved by majority vote of a quorum of the Town of Apex' s Town Council (highest level of 
decision-making authority). The governing body can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal 
year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a 
similar action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or revise the limitation. 

Committed for cemetery perpetual care - portion of fund balance committed by the Council for 
maintenance of the cemetery. 

Committed for street improvements - portion of fund balance committed by the Council for street capital 
improvements. 

Committed for recreation improvements - portion of fund balance committed by the Council for 
recreational capital improvements. 

Committed for public safety improvements - portion of fund balance committed by the Council for general 
capital improvements. 

Committed for library maintenance - portion of fund balance committed by the Council for Perry Library 
expenditures. 

Committed for LEO pension obligation - portion of fund balance that will be used for the Law 
Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance obligations. 

Assigned Fund Balance 

This classification includes amounts of fund balance that reflect a government's intended use of resources. 
Assignments are created, amended, or eliminated by the Town Council through budget ordinances or 
amendments to previously approved budget ordinances. 

Assigned for recreation improvements - portion of fund balance budgeted by the Council for recreation 
capital improvements, 

Assigned for street improvements - portion of fund balance that has been budgeted by the Council for 
street improvements. 

Assigned for subsequent years expenditures - portion of fund balance that is appropriated in the next 
year' ; budget that is not already classified in restricted or committed. 

Unassigned Fund Balance 

The portion of fund balance that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes or other 
funds. 

The Town has adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the General Fund which states unassigned fund 
balance will be at least 25% of expenditures. For purposes of fund balance classification, expenditures are to be 
spent from restricted fund balance first, followed by committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned. For 
programs with multiple revenue sources, the Town uses the following hierarchy; bond proceeds first, then 
federal funds, State funds, local non-town funds, and finally Town funds. The Finance Director has the 
authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest of the Town. 
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Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension asset, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Local 
Gove=ental Employees' Retirement System (LGERS) and additions to/deductions from LGERS' fiduciary 
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by LGERS. For this purpose, plan 
member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. The Town of Apex's 
employer contributions are recognized when due and the Town of Apex has a legal requirement to provide the 
contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of 
LGERS. Investments are reported at fair value. 

Note 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

Deposits - All of the Town's deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods. Under 
the Dedicated Method, all deposits exceeding the federal depository insurance coverage are collateralized with 
securities held by the Town's agent in the Town's name. Under the Pooling Method, which is a collateral pool, 
all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State Treasurer's agent in the name of the 
State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the Town, these deposits are 
considered to be held by the Town's agent in the Town's name. The amount of the pledged collateral is based 
on an approved averaging method for non-interest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest 
bearing deposits. Depositories using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their 
pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the 
Town or the escrow agent. Because of the inability to measure the exact amount of collateral pledged for the 
Town under the Pooling Method, the potential exists for under-collateralization, and this risk may increase in 
periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of 
financial stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method. The Town 
has no formal policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits, but relies on the State Treasurer to enforce 
standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method fmancial institutions and to monitor them for 
compliance. The Town complies with the provisions ofG.S. 159-31 when designating official depositories and 
verifying that deposits are properly secured. 

At June 30, 2018, the carrying amount of the Town's deposits was $31,127,501 and the bank balance was 
$31,463,062. Of the bank balance, $1,310,205 was covered by Federal depository insurance and $30,152,857 
was covered by collateral held under the pooling method. At June 30, 2018, the Town had $1,925 of petty cash 
on hand. 

Investments - at June 30, 2018, the Town's investments consisted of the following: 

• 
Valuation 

Measurement 
Investments by Type Method Book Value Maturity Rating 
NC Capital Management Trust 
Gove=entPortfolio Amortized Cost $ 45,879,036 N/A AAAm 

NC Capital Management Trust Fair Value 
Term Portfolio Levell 64,388,498 .09 Years Unrated 

Total $ 110,267,534 

All investments are measured using the market approach: using prices and other relevant information 
generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or a group of assets. Level of fair 
value hierarchy: Level I: Debt securities valued using directly observable, quoted prices (unadjusted) in active 
markets for identical assets. 
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Interest Rate Risk: The Town manages its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates 
by limiting maturities of investments to three years or less from the date of purchase. 

Credit Risk: The Town has no fonnal policy regarding credit risk, but h~s internal management procedures 
that limits the Town's investment to the provisions of G.S. 159-30 aod restricts the purchase of securities to the 
highest possible rating whenever particular types of securities are rated. The Town's investment in the NC 
Capital Maoagement Trust Government Portfolio carried a rating of AAAm by Standard and Poor's as of June 
30,2018. The Town's investment in the NC Capital Management Trust Tenm Portfolio is unrated. The Tenm 
Portfolio is authorized to invest in obligations of the U.S. government and agencies, and in high grade money 
market instruments as penmitted under North Carolina General Statutes 159-30 as amended. 

Custodial Credit Risk: For an investment, the custodial risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the 
cQunterparty, the Town will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are 
in the possession of an outside party. The Town has no formal policy on custodial credit risk, but management 
procedures are that the Town shall utilize a third party custodial agent for book entry transactions, all ofwbich 
shall be held in the Town's name. 

Note 3 - RECEIVABLES - ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS 

The amounts shown on the Balaoce Sheet and the Statement of Net Position for receivables for the year ended 
June 30, 2018 are net of the following allowances for doubtful accounts: 

Fund 
General Fund 
Electric Fund 
Water and Sewer Fund 

Allowance for Uncollectible: 
Property Taxes receivable 
Utility Receivables 
Utility Receivables 

$ 89,682 
62,910 
26,261 

Total 178,853 

The Town entered into a loan agreement with Capital Area Preservation, Inc. (CAP) on September 9,2015 for 
the purpose of establishing a loao with CAP for the preservation of a historical house in the amount is $75,000. 
The loan is a period of two years, with an extension for ao additional one year at the sale discretion of the 
Town and is payable and due at the end of the loan term or upon sale of the property to a third party, 
whichever comes fIrst. The loao is non-interest bearing for the initial term of the loan and if the loan is still 
outstanding, then interest shall accrue at four percent per year. 
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Note 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 20 18, was as follows: 

Beginning Ending 
Balances Increases Decreases Balances 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ 64,684,600 $ 28,785,005 239,520 $ 93,230,085 

Construction in progress 12,01 1,1 94 11,357,775 19,440,383 3,928,586 
Total capital assets no t being depreciated 76,695,794 40,142,780 19,679,903 97,15 8,671 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings 41,368,654 6,242,587 47,6 11 ,241 
Other improvements 307,629,896 82,202,350 389,832,246 
Equipment and furniture 6,284,030 685,638 6,969,668 

Vehicles and motorized equipment 10,243,935 1,748,179 569,7 11 11,422,403 
Total capital assets being depreciated 365,526,515 90,878,754 569,711 455,835,558 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings 16,485,48 1 1,445,792 17,93 1,273 
Other improvements 92, 115,665 1 1,665 ,649 103,781,314 
Equipment and furniture 3,125,962 479,151 3,605,113 
Vehicles and motorized equipment 7,257,095 1,027,778 569,711 7,7 15 ,162 

Total accumulated depreciation 11 8,984,203 $ 14,618,370 $ 569,7 11 133,032,862 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 246,542,312 322,802,696 

Governmental act ivity capital assets, net $ 323,238, 106 $ 419,961,367 

Depreciat io n expense was charged to 

functio ns/programs as fo11o\\'5: 
General government $ 907,838 

Public safety 1,283,737 

Public oorks 10,562,0 15 
Environmental protection 163,950 

Cultural and recreational 1,700,830 

Total $ 14,61 8,370 
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Business activi ties Beginning Ending 
ELECTRIC FUND Balances Increases Decreases Balances 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ 2,670,075 $ 128,539 $ $ 2,798,6 14 

Construction in progress 8,750 33,965 42,7 15 
Total capital assets not being depreciated 2,678,825 162,504 2,841,329 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Utility improvements 47,029,572 4,323,561 51,353,133 
Building and land improvements 6,780,804 6,780,804 
Equip ment and furniture 945,484 30,625 976,109 
Vehicles and motorized equipment 2,075,405 160,123 2,235,528 
Total capital assets being depreciated 56,83 1,265 4,514,309 61,345,574 

Less accumulated dep reciation for: 

Utility improvements 19,448,069 1,621,26 1 2 1,069,330 
Building and land improvements 1,829,103 638,298 2,467,40 1 
Equipment and furniture 713,480 40,500 753,980 
Vehicles and motorized equipment 1,544,980 230,385 1,775,365 
Total accumulated dep reciation 23,535,632 2,530,444 26,066,076 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 33,295,633 $ 1,983,865 $ 35,279,498 

Cap ital assets, net $ 35,974,458 $ 38,120,827 

Beginning Ending 
WATER AND S EWER FUND Balances Increases Decreases Balances 

Capital assets Dot being depreciated: 

Land $ 41,008,38 1 $ 9,263,728 $ 13,947 $ 50,258,162 

Construction in progress 2 1,425,543 4,140,164 22,438, 149 3, 127,558 
Total capital assets not being dep reciated 62,433,924 13,403,892 22,452,096 53,385,720 

Capital assets being dep reciated: 

Utility improvements 23 1,645,156 30,5 10, 150 27,000 262,128,306 
Building and land improvements 8,280,776 8,280,776 
[ntangibles 3,490,000 3,490,000 

Equipment and furniture 2,569,766 11 5,069 33,125 2,651,710 

Vehicles and motorized equipment 2,046,712 753,437 124,374 2,675,775 
Total capital assets being depreciated 248,032,4 10 31,378,656 184,499 279,226,567 

Less accumulated depreciation fo r: 
Utility imp rovements 76,313, 179 9,029,061 16,320 85,325,920 
Building and land improvements 964,594 273,122 1,237,716 

Intangibles 3,490,000 3,490,000 
Equipment and furniture 1,525,942 190,908 33, 125 1,683,725 

Vehicles and motorized equip ment 1,568,526 224,106 124,374 1,668,258 

Total accumulated depreciation 83,862,241 9,717,197 173,819 93,405,619 
Total capital assets being depreciated. net 164,170,169 $ 21,661 ,459 $ 10,680 185,820,948 

Capital assets, net $ 226,604,093 $ 239,206,668 
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Construction Commitments 

At June 30, 2018, the Town had contractual commitments as follows: 

Project 
Street [mprovements Projects 
Recreation Capital Projects 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Projects 
Water/Sewer Capital Projects 
Electric Substation Capital Project 

Note 5 - PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS 

(a) Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System 

1. Plan Description 

$ 
Spent to Date 

2,380,953 $ 
1,282,439 

66,152 
3,510,455 

42,715 

Remaining 
Commitment 

871,448 
916,247 

1,079,625 
3,410,824 

The Town of Apex is a participating employer in the statewide Local Governmental Employees' Retirement 
System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of 
North Carolina. LGERS membership is comprised of general employees and local law enforcement officers 
(LEOs) of participating local government entities. Article 3 of North Carolina G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the 
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. Management of 
the plan is vested in the LGERS Board of Trustees, which consists of 13 members - nine appointed by the 
Governor, one appointed by the State Senate, one appointed by the State House of Representatives, and the 
State Treasurer and State Superintendent, who serve as ex-officio members. The Local Governmental 
Employees' Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the 
State of North Carolina. The State's CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary 
infonnation for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 
Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454, or at 
www.osc.nc.gov. 

Benefits Provided. LGERS provides retirement and survivor benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as 
1.85% of the member's average fmal compensation times the member's years of creditable service. A 
member's average final compensation is calculated as the average of a member's four highest consecutive 
years of compensation. Plan members are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 65 with five 
years of creditable service, at age 60 with 25 years of creditable service, or at any age with 30 years of 
creditable service. Plan members are eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 20 years 
of creditable service or at age 60 with five years of creditable service (age 55 for firefighters). Survivor 
benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of members who die while in active service or within 180 days 
of their last day of service and who have either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age (15 
years of creditable service for firefighters and rescue squad members who are killed in the line of duty) or have 
completed five years of service and have reached age 60. Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly 
Survivor's Alternate Benefit for life or a return of the member's contributions. The plan does not provide for 
automatic post-retirement benefit increases. Increases are contingent upon actuarial gains of the plan. 

LGERS plan members who are LEOs are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 55 with five 
years of creditable service as an officer, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service. LEO plan members 
are eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 15 years of creditable service as an officer. 
Survivor benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of LEO members who die while in active service or 
within 180 days of their last day of service and who also have either completed 20 years of creditable service 
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regardless of age, or have completed IS years of service as a LEO and have reached age 50, or have completed 
five years of creditable service as a LEO and have reached age 55, or have completed 15 years of creditable 
service as a LEO iflrilled in the line of duty. Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor's 
Alternate Benefit for life or a return of the member's contributions. 

Contributions. Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 128-30 and may be amended only 
by the North Carolina General Assembly. Town of Apex employees are required to contribute 6% of their 
compensation. Employer- contributions are actuarially determined and set annually by the LGERS Board of 
Trustees. The Town of Apex 's contractually required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2018, was 
8.25% of compensation for law enforcement officers and 7.55% for general employees and firefighters, 
actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance 
the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year. Contributions to the pension plan from the Town of 
Apex were $1,984,665 for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

Refunds of Contributions - Town employees who have terminated service as a contributing member of 
LGERS, may file an application for a refund of their contributions. By state law, refunds to members with at 
least five years of service include 4% interest. State law requires a 60 day waiting period after service 
termination before the refund may be paid. The acceptance of a refund payment cancels the individual's right 
to employer contributions or any other benefit provided by LGERS. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2018, the Town reported a liability of$6,13I,822 for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability. The net pension asset was measured as of June 30,2017. The total pension liability used to calculate 
the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2016. The total pension 
liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2017 utilizing update procedures 
incorporating the actuarial assumptions. The Town's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a 
projection of the Town's long-term share of future payroll covered by the pension plan, relative to the 
projected future payroll covered by the pension plan of all participating LGERS employers, actuarially 
determined. At June 30, 2017, the Town's proportion was 0.40137%, which was an increase of 0.01889% 
from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Town recognized pension expense of $2,021,127. At June 30, 2017 the 
Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the 
following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflm" 

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual eamings on 
pension plan investments 
Changes in proportion and differences between Town 
contnbutions and proportionate share ofcontnbutions 

Town contnbutions subsequent to the measurement date 

Total 
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$ 

of Resources of Res ources 
353,250 $ 173,572 
875,709 

1,488,814 

122,792 

1,984,665 

4,702,438 $ 296,364 
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$1,984,665 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Town contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as an increase of the net pension asset in the year ended 
June 30, 2018. 

Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension 
expense as follows: 

Year ended June 30: 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
Total 

$ 

$ 

280,925 
1,736,266 

864,462 
(460,245) 

2,421,408 

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 20 16 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 
Salary increases 

Investment rate of return 

3.0 percent 
3.50 to 8.10 percent, including inflation and productivity factor 
7.20 percent, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation 

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. general, law 
enforcement officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The current mortality rates are based on 
published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of the U.S. population. The healthy 
mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period January 1, 2010 through December 31,20 14. 

Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are therefore not included 
in the measurement. 

The projected long-term investment returns aod inflation assumptions are developed through review of current 
and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant whitepapers, and historical 
performance of investment strategies. Fixed income return projections reflect current yields across the U.S. 
Treasury yield curve and market expectations of forward yields proj ected and interpolated for multiple tenors 
and over multiple year horizons. Global public equity return projections are established through analysis of 
the equity risk premium and the fixed income return projections. Other asset categories and strategies' return 
projections reflect the foregoing and historical data analysis. These projections are combined to produce the 
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset 
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic 
real rates of return for each major asset class as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following table: 
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Asset Class 
Fixed Income 
Global Equity 
Real Estate 
Alternatives 
Credit 
Inflation Protection 

Total 
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Target Allocation 
29.0% 
42.0% 

8.0% 
8.0% 
7.0% 
6.0% 
100% 

Long-Term Expected Real 
Rate of Return 

1.4% 
5.3% 
4.3% 
8.9% 
6.0% 
4.0% 

The information above is based on 30 year expectations developed with the consulting actuary for the 2016 
asset liability and investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement Systems, including LGERS. The 
long-term nominal rates of return underlying the real rates of return are arithmetic annualized figures. The real 
rates of return are calculated from nominal rates by multiplicatively subtracting a long-term inflation 
assumption of 3 .00%. All rates of return and inflation are annualized. 

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.20%. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the 
current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, 
actuarially determined. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to 
be available to make all projected future benefit payments of the current plan members. Therefore, the long­
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Town's proportionate share of the net pension asset to changes in the discount rate. The 
following presents the Town's proportionate share of the net pension asset calculated using the discount rate of 
7.20 percent, as well as what the Town's proportionate share of the net pension asset or net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.20 percent) or one 
percentage point higher (8.20 percent) than the current rate: 

Town's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability (asset) 

1% Decrease 
(6.20%) 

$ 18,407,868 

Current 
Discount Rate 

(7.20%) 

$ 6,131,822 $ 

1% Increase 
(8.20%) 

4,114,801 

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North 
Carolina. 

(b) Law Enforcement Officers Special Separation Allowance 

1. Plan Description 

The Town of Apex administers a public employee retirement system (the Separation Allowance), a single­
employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the Town's qualified sworn law 
enforcement officers under the age of 62 who have completed at least 30 years of creditable service or have 
attained 55 years of age and have completed five or more years of creditable service. The Separation Allowance 
is equal to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of the base rate of compensation most recently applicable to the 
officer for each year of creditable service. The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or 
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retirement allowances that may be authorized by the General Assembly. Article 12D of G. S. Cbapter 143 
assigns the autbority to establisb and amend benefit provisions to the Nortb Carolina General Assembly. 

All full-time law enforcement officers of the Town are covered by the Separation Allowance. At December 
31,2017, the Separation Allowance's membership consisted of: 

Retirees receiving benefits 
Active plan members 

Total 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

I 
73 
74 

Basis of Accounting: The Town bas cbosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay as you go basis. 
Pension expenditures are made from the General Fund, whicb is maintained on tbe modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Benefits and refunds are recognized wben due and payable in accordance with the terms of the 
plan. 

Tbe Separation Allowance bas no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the following criteria which are 
outlined in GASB Statement 73. At June 30, 2018, $842,349 of committed net position was available to pay 
Separation Allowance obligations. 

3. Actuarial Assumptions 

The entry age normal method was used in the December 31 , 20 16 valuation. The total pension liability in the 
December 31, 2016 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to 
all periods included in tbe measurement: 

Discount rate 
Projected salary increases 

Includes inflation at 

3 .16 percent 
3.50 to 7.35 percent, including inflation and productivity factor 

2.50 percent 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is the weekJy average of tbe Bond Buyer General 
Obligation 20-year Municipal Bond Index determined at the end of each month. 

Mortality rates are based on the RP-2014 Mortality tables projected to the valuation date using MP-2015, 
projected forward generationally from the valuation date using MP-2015 . 

4. Contributions 

The Town is required by Article 12D of G. S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has cbosen 
to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits earned on a pay as you go basis througb appropriations 
made in the General Fund operating budget. There were no contributions made by employees. 
Tbe Town's obligation to contribute to this plan is establisbed and may be amended by the North Carolina 
General Assembly. Administration costs oftbe Separation Allowance are fInanced through investment 
earnings. The Town paid $77,007 as benefits came due for tbe reporting period. 
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources alld Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 20 18, the Town reported a total pension liability of$2,248,394. Tbe total pension liability was 
measured as of December 31, 2017 based on a December 31, 20 16 actuarial valuation. Tbe total pension 
liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of December 30, 2017 utilizing update procedures 
incorporating the actuarial assumptions. For tbe year ended June 30, 2017, the Town recognized pension 
expense 0[$207,125. 

At June 30, 2018 the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
the pension from tbe-J"ll()wing sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Cbanges of assumptions 

Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date 

Total 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

$ 32,5 10 
123,867 

45,805 

$ 202,182 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

$ 
34,952 

$ 34,952 

$45,805 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Town contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as an increase of the net pension asset in the year ended 
June 30, 2019. 

Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension 
expense as follows: 

Year ended June 30: 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

Thereafter 
Total 

$ 

$ 

21,111 
2 1,111 
21 ,111 
21,111 
24,069 
12,912 

121 ,425 

Sensitivity of the Town's proportionate share of the net pension asset to changes in the discount rate. The 
following presents the Town's total pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 3.16%, as well as 
wbat the Town's total pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate tbat is one 
percentage point lower (2.16 percent) or one percentage point higher (4.16 percent) than the current rate: 

Total pension liability 
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1% Decrease 
(2.16%) 

$ 2,453,360 

Current 
Current 

Discount Rate 
$ 2,248,394 

1% Increase 

(4.16%) 
$ 2,060,911 
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Schedule of Changes in Total Pension liability 

Law Enforcement Officers! Special Separation Allowance 

Beginning balance 
Service cos t 
mterest on total pension ~ability 
Difference between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 
Benefit payments 

Ending balance of the total pension liability 

$ 1,929,620 
111,974 
73,484 
38,475 

146,595 
(51,754) 

$ 2,248,394 

Tbe plan currently uses mortality tables tbat vary by age, and bealth status (i.e. disabled and bealthy). Tbe 
current mortality rates are based on publisbed tables and based on studies tbat cover significant portions of the 
U.S. population. The bealthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements. 

Tbe actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period January I, 2010 througb December 31, 2014 . 

(c) Total Expense, Liabilities, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

Following is information related to the proportionate sbare and pension expense for all pension plans: 

LGERS LEOS SA TOTAL 
Pension Expense $ 2,021,127 $ 207,125 $ 2,228,252 
Pension Liability 6,131,822 2,248,394 8,380,2 16 
Proportionate sbare of the net pension liability .40137% N/A 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Differences between expected and actual experience 353,250 32,510 385,760 
Cbanges of assumptions 875,709 123,867 999,576 
Net difference between projected and actual 

earnings on plan investments 1,488,8 14 1,488,814 
Benefit payments and administrative costs paid 

subsequent to the measurement date 1,984,665 45,805 2,030,470 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Differences between expected and actual experience 173,572 173,572 
Cbanges of assumptions 34,952 34,952 
Cbanges in proportion and differences between 

contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions 122,792 122,792 

(d) Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers 

I. Plan Description 

The Town contributes to tbe Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a defined contribution pension plan 
administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits to 
law enforcement officers employed by the Town. Article 5 of G. S. Cbapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and 
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amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law 
Enforcement Officers is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North 
Carolina. The State's CAFR includes the pension trust fund fmancial statements for the Internal Revenue Code Section 
40 I (k) plan that includes the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers. That report may be 
obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-
1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454. 

2. Funding Policy 

Article 12E ofG. S. Chapter 143 requires the Town to contribute each month an amount equal to five percent of each 
officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. Also, the law enforcement officers may make 
voluntary contributions to the plan. The Town made contributions of$248,365 for the reporting year. 

(e) Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for all Other Employees 

All other employees of the Town (excludes Law Enforcement Officers) are members of the Town's 401(k) plan, a 
defmed contribution pension plan as described above. Participation begins six months after the date of employment. In 
a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings. 

The Town contributes each month an amount equal to five percent of eligible employees' salary. The Town made 
contributions of $1 ,042,997 for the reporting year. 

(I) Other Post Emplovment Benefit 

Heallileare Benefits 

1. Plan Description 

The Town administers a single-employer defined healthcare benefit (HCB) plan to cover retirees of the Town who 
participate in the North Carolina Local Government Employees' Retirement System and have met the minimum 15 year 
service requirement with the Town. Employees who have 15-19 years of service at retirement will receive 50% of the 
benefits. Employees with 20-24 years of continuous creditable service with the Town will receive 75% of the benefits 
and those who have 25 or more years of continuous creditable service with the Town at the time of their retirement will 
receive full benefits. The Town's retirees can also purchase coverage for their dependents at the Town's group rates as 
19n9 as they had dependent coverage at the time of retirement. The Town Council may amend the benefit provisions. 
A separate report was not issued for the plan. 

Retired Employees' Years of Creditable Service 

Less than 15 years 

15 - 20 years 

20 - 24 years 

25+ years 
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Coverage Offered 

Not eligible for coverage 

50% employee coverage 

75% employee coverage 

100% employee coverage 
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At June 30, 20 17, the date of the last actuarial valuation (used in these calculations), membership of the plan consisted 
of the following: 

Law 
General Enforcement 

Employees Officers 
Retirees aod dependents receiving benefits 32 4 
Tenninated plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 
Active plan members 360 85 

Total 392 89 

2. Total OPEB Liability 

The Town's total OPEB liability of $28,040,057 was measured as of June 30, 2017 aod was detennined by ao actuarial 
valuation as of that date. 

Actuarial assumptions and other inputs. The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 20 17 actuarial valuation was detennined 
using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement unless 
otherwise specified: 

Inflation 
Salary increases 
Discount rate 
Healthcare cost trend rates 

2.5 percent 
3.5 -7.75 percent, average, including inflation 

3.56 percent 
7.75 percent decreasing to ultimate rate of5 percent 

5 percent by 2023 

The discount rate is based on the yield of the S&P Municipal Bond 20 Year High Grade Rate Index as of the measurement 
date. 

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

BaIaoce at July 1,2017 

Cbaoges for the year 

Service cos t 

Interest 

Differences between expected and actual experience 

Changes in assumptions or other inputs 

Benefit payments 

Netchanges 

BaIaoce at June 30,2018 

Total OPEB Liability 

$ 28,561,721 

$ 

2,225,212 

854,654 

110,047 

(3,373,245) 

(338,332) 

(521,664) 

28,040,057 

Changes in assumptions aod other inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 3.01 % to 3.56%. 

Mortality rates were based on the RP-20 14 Total Data Set for Healthy Annuitants Mortality Table. 
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The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 20 17 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study 
for the period January 20 10 through December 20 14. 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the total OPEB liability of 
the Town, as well as what the Town 's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower (2.56 percent) or I-percentage-point higher (4.56 percent) than the current discount rate: 

Total OPEB liability 

1 % Decrease 
(2.56% ) 

$ 34,584,843 

Discount Rate (3.56% ) 

$ 28,040,057 

1 % Increase 
(4.56%) 

$ 23,049,915 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following presents the total OPEB 
liability ofthe Town, as well as what the Town's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost 
trend rates that are I-percentage-point lower or I-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

Total OPEB liability 

1 % Decrease (6.50 
percent decreasing to 

4.00 percent) 

$ 34,584,843 

Healthcare cost trend rate 
(7.50 percent) 

$ 28,040,057 

1 % Increase (8.50 
percent decreasing to 

6.00 percent) 

$ 23 ,049,9 15 

3. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Town recognized OPEB expense of $2 ,742,06 1. At June 30, 2018, the Town 
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 

Changes of assumptions 

Benefit payments and administrative costs made 
subsequent to the measurement date 

Total 
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Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows of 
of Resources Resources 

$ 98,655 $ 

3,024,048 

672,795 

$ 771,450 $ 3,024,048 
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$672,795 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from benefit payments made and 
administrative expenses incurred subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease of the total pension 
liability in the year ended June 30,20 19. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

2019 $ 337,805 

2020 337,805 

2021 337,805 

2022 337,805 

2023 337,805 

Thereafter 1,236,368 

(g) Other Employment Benefits 

The ToWn has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for members of the Local 
Goverrunental Employees' Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a multiple-employer State-administered cost sharing 
plan funded on a one year-term cost basis. Employees who die in active service after one year of contributing 
membership in the System, or who die within 180 days after retirement or termination of service and have at least one 
year of contributing membership service in the System at the time of death are eligible for death benefits. Lump sum 
death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee's 12 highest months' salary in a row during the 24 
months prior to his/her death, but the benefit may not exceed $50,000 or be less than $25,000. Because all death benefit 
payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan and not by the Town, the Town does not determine the number of 
eligible participants. The Town has no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. The contributions to the 
Death Trust Plan cannot be separated between the post-employment benefit amount and the other benefit amount. 
Contributions are determined as a percentage of monthly payroll based upon rates established annually by the State. 
Separate rates are set for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers. The Town 
considers these contributions to be immaterial. 

Note 6 - DEFERRED INFLOWS/OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred outflows of resources at year-end are comprised of the following : 

LGERS pension 
Contributions to pension plan in the current fiscal year 
Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

LEO pension 
Benefit payments made and administrative expenses 
Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 

OPEB 
Differences between expected and actual experience 
Benefit payments made and administrative expenses 

Total deferred outflows of resources 
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$ 1,984,665 
353,250 
875,709 

1,488,8 14 

45,805 
32,510 

123,867 

98,655 
672,795 
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Deferred inflows of resources at year-end are comprised of the following: 

Prepaid taxes (General Fund) 
Taxes receivable (General Fund) 
Differences between expected and actual experiences-LGERS 
Changes in proportion and differences between employer 

contributions and proportionate share of contributions-LGERS 
Changes in assumptions-LEO 
Changes of assumptions-OPEB 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

Note 7 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

$ 

$ 

Statement of General Fund 
Net Position Balance Sheet 

34,407 $ 34,407 
91,567 

173,572 

122,792 
34,952 

3,024,048 
3,389,771 $ 125,974 

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omission; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Town does not carry flood insurance 
because flood plain maps show insignificant property values within flood plains. In accordance with G.S. 159-
29, the Town's employees that have access to $100 or more at any given time of the Town's funds are 
performance bonded through a commercial surety bond. The Finance Director is individually bonded for 
$100,000. The payroll specialist is bonded for $10,000 and the remaining employees that have access to funds 
are bonded under a blanket bond for $50,000. Other risks are mitigated through various means as detailed 
below. 

Workers' Compensation - The Town is a participant in an insurance pool administered by the North Carolina 
League of Municipalities. This pool is self-sustaining through member premiums and has reinsured through 
commercial companies for claims in excess of the amounts covered through the pool. The Town retains a 
portion of the risk through deductibles up to $25,000. 

Property and general liability - The Town maintains commercial insurance with deductibles up to $25,000. 
There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and settled claims have not 
exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

Health and Dental Claims - The Town self-funds health and dental coverage for all permanent employees. 
Employees can add dependents to this coverage by paying a portion of the premium. All claims are 
administered by a third party, BlueCross and BlueShield of North Carolina. As of June 30, 2018, a reserve of 
$560,846 for health and $43,206 for dental was calculated for claims incurred but not reported and items 
reported but not paid. This total liability is expected to be paid within the next fiscal year. Settlements have not 
exceeded coverages for the past three fiscal years. Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the past 
three years are as: 
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Balance-June 30, 2015 
Claim; reported and changes in estimates for FY2016 
Claims paid in FY2016 

Balance-Ju ne 30, 2016 
Claims reported and changes in estimates for FY20l7 
Claims paid in FY2017 

Balance-June 30, 2017 
Claims reported and changes in estimates for FY2018 
Claims paid in FY2018 

Balance-June 30, 2018 $ 

Health 
Claims 

$ 332,150 
3,05 1,769 

(3,096,751) 
287,168 

3,563,145 
(3,482,805) 

367,508 
4,673,079 

(4,479,741) 
560,846 $ 

Note 8 - CLAIMS, JUDGEMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Dental 
Claims Total 

$ 31,757 $ 363,907 
323,568 3,375,337 

(326,814) (3,423,565) 
28,5 11 315,679 

359,970 3,923,115 
(351,456) (3,834,261) 

37,025 404,533 
383,155 5,056,234 

(376,974) (4,856,715) 
43,206 $==~604;;";o;;,0:;;;52;,,. 

At June 30, 20 18, the Town was a defendant to various lawsuits. In the opinion of the Town's management and 
the Town's attorney, except as noted below, the ultimate effect of these legal matters will not have a material 
adverse effect on the Town's financial position. 

There have been two lawsuits filed against the Towo by a builder for various impact fees during the current 
year. The plaintiff is currently trying to certify as a class any payer of these fees during the prior 10 years. The 
Town's position is that any liability for refund of these fees is limited to amounts received after March 23, 20 15 
per House Bill 436 passed by the North Carolina General Assembly. The Town further proclaims that these 
fees were allowable under prior law and that they do not owe refunds of these amounts. Currently there have 
been motions to dismiss these matters filed by counsel for the Town, but are still pending as of the opinion date 
of these financial statements. If these lawsuits were to prevail there could be a large liability to the 
Town. However, it cannot currently be determined what the liability of the Towo may be, if any, and due to 
this no accrual of the liability is showo in the accompanying financial statements. 

Note 9 - LONG-TERM DEBT 

<a) General Obligation Bonds 

The Town's general obligation bonds serviced by the governmental funds were issued for the acquisition of 
parks and recreation facilities and construction of streets and sidewalks. Those general obligation bonds issued 
to finance the construction of facilities utilized in the operations of the water and sewer systems and which are 
being retired by its resources are reported as long-term debt in the Water and Sewer Fund. All general 
obligation bonds are collateralized by the full faith, credit and taxing power of the Town. Principal and interest 
requirements are appropriated when due. 
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Bonds payable at June 30, 20 18 are comprised of the following individual issues: 

Serviced by the General Fund: 

$1,105,000 April 17,2018 Parks and Recreational Facility refunding bonds 
due in annual installments of varying from $100,000 to $115,000 through 

June 1, 2028 plus interest at 5.0%. 

$23,000,000 April 27, 2018 Public Improvement serial bonds , due in annual 
instaUrnents of varying amounts from $540,000 to $1,905,000 through June 1, 
2038 interest at varying rates from 3.0-5.0%,_ 

$6,500,000 June 25, 2009 Street and Sidewalk Improvements serial bonds, due 

in annual installments of varying amounts from $305,000 to $330,000 
through June 1,2029, interest at varying rates from 3.0-4.125%. 

$4,670,000 March 26,2013 Parks and Recreation refunding bonds, due in 
annual installments of varying amounts from $1 5,000 to $515,000 through 

February 1,2025, interest at varying rates from 2.0-3.0%. 

$6,000,000 March 26,2013 Parks and Recreational serial bonds, due in annual 
installments 0[$300,000 through Februaryl, 2033, interest at varying rates 

from 2.0-5.0"10. 

Serviced by the ~Vater and Sewer Fund: 
$35,000,000 June 19, 2012 Wastewater System, Series 2012 due .in 
annual installments of varying amounts from $685,000-$2,740,000 
through June 1, 2037, interest at varying rates from 2.0-5.0010. 

At June 30, 2018 the Town of Apex bad a legal debt margin of$465 ,265,118. 

$ 1,105,000 

23,000,000 

3,575,000 

3,495,000 

4,500,000 

31,410,000 
$ 67,085,000 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds at June 30, 2018 are as follows: 

Governmental Activities Business-TXEe Activities 
Year Endin~ June 30: Princi2al Interest PrinciEal Interest 

2019 $ 1,860,000 $ 1,289,083 $ 855,000 $ 1,123,975 

2020 1,775,000 1,162,013 915,000 1,106,875 
2021 1,780,000 1,095,150 980,000 1,061 ,125 

2022 1,780,000 1,027,532 1,045,000 1,041,525 

2023 1,780,000 959,000 1,115,000 1,020,625 
2024-2028 8,330,000 3,844,013 6,780,000 4,331,125 

2029-2033 8,845,000 2,333,551 9,315,000 3,033,825 
2034-2038 9,525,000 914,397 10,405,000 967,625 

Total $ 35,675,000 $ 12,624,739 $ 31,410,000 $ 13,686,700 
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(b) Installment Notes 

The Town's installment notes outstanding at June 30, 2018 are as follows: 

Serviced by the Gelleral FUlld: 

$6,000,000 installment obligation with BB&T due in semi-annual instalhnents of $209,897 
principal plus interest at 2.5 1% through 2032 secured by land. 

$6,424,000 instalhnent obligation to the Bank of North Carolina due in annual installments 
ofvarying amounts from $410,800 to $661,219 through 2028 p Ius interest of2.7% secured 
by land and buildings. 

$4,500,000 installment obligation to the Bank of North Carolina due in annual installments 
of vary ing amounts from $125,000 to $340,000 through 2031 secured by land and buildings. 

Serviced by the Water alld Sewer FUlld: 
$1,159,825 installment obligation to the Town of Cary for the Regional Wastewater 
Treatment Plant due in annual installments of$57,99l through 2027 plus interest of 
2.205%, secured by land. 

$8,045,000 installment obligation to the Bank of America for Water and Sewer Improvements 
due in annual installments of varying amounts from $410,800 to $661,219 through 2028 
plus interest of2.7%, secured by water improvements. 

$355,059 installment obligation to the Town of Cary for the Regional 
Wastewater Treatment Plant due in annual installments of $17,753 through 2031 . 
plus interest of2.205%, secured by land. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for installment notes at June 30, 2018 are as follows: 

$ 5,793,103 

4,414,000 

4,230,000 

519,349 

6,040,000 

230,789 
$ 21,227,241 

Governmental Activities Business -T;}::Ee Activities 
Year Endin!l June 30: Princi2al Interest Princi2al Interest 

2019 $ 1,043,793 $ 377,044 $ 609,459 $ 179,620 
2020 1,225,793 349,618 624,459 163,538 
2021 1,217,793 317,240 638,459 147,051 
2022 1,208,793 285,078 654,459 130,187 
2023 1,200,793 253,158 669,458 112,890 

2024-2028 5,864,965 698,113 3,540,585 290,012 
2029-2031 2,675,173 246,091 53,259 2,347 

Total $ 14,437,103 $ 2,526,342 $ 6,790,138 $ 1,025,645 

(c) Revolving Fund Loans 

The Town has a promissory notes issued by the North Carolina Department of Environment, Health, and 
Natural Resources for the construction of a regional wastewater treatment plant and for water system 
improvements. Future revenues of the sanitary sewer system and the water system collateralize the notes. 
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These debts are recorded as long-term debt in the water and sewer fund with principal and interest requirements 
appropriated when due. 

The Town's promissory notes outstanding at June 30, 2018 are as follows: 

Serviced by the Water and Sewer Fund: 
$17,500,000 promissory note issued for the construction of a regional 
wastewater treatment plant. Future revenues of the sanitary sewer system 
collateralize the note due in annual installments of $875,000 beginning May I, 
2015 through May I, 2034 plus interest at 2.22% $ 14,000,000 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for promissory notes at June 30, 2018 are as follow: 

Year Ending June 30: 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

2024-2028 
2029-2032 
2033-2034 

Total 

(d) Revenue Bond 

$ 

$ 

Principal Interest 
875,000 $ 310,800 
875,000 291,375 
875,000 271,950 
875,000 252,525 
875,000 233,100 

4,375,000 874,125 
4,375,000 388,500 

875,000 19,425 
14,000,000 $ 2,641,800 

$7,300,000 Electric Revenue Bond, Series 2009, issued for electrical system 
improvements, due in annual installments of varying amounts from $375,000 to 
$617,000 through 2024, interest at 3.62%. $ 3,393,000 

The Town has been in compliance with the covenants as to rates, fees, rentals and charges in Section 704 of the 
Bond Order, authorizing the issuance of the Electric Revenue Bonds, Series 2009, since its adoption in 2009. 
Section 704(a) of the Bond Order requires that income available for debt service plus 15% of Electric Fund 
Unrestricted Net position as of the last day of the prior fiscal year will not be less than 120% of the long term 
debt service requirement for the current fiscal year. 

The debt service requirement coverage ratio calculation for the year ended June 30, 20 18 is as follows: 

Current revenues 
Current expenses 

Subtotal 
15% of Unrestricted Net Position, 6-30-17 
Income available for debt service 
Debt service, principal and interest 

Paid (Revenue Bond only) 
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 

$ 38 ,457,575 
31,366,310 

7,091,265 
1,327,800 

$ 8,4 19,065 

$ 638,833 
1318% 

Per rate covenants, current expenses do not include depreciation expense of $2,530,444, debt service interest of 
$138,567 and the increase in other post-employment benefits 0[$179,744. 
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The Town has pledged future electric customer revenues, net of specified operating expenses, to repay 
$7,300,000 in electric system revenue bonds issued in May 2009. Proceeds from the bonds provided fInancing 
for electrical system improvements. The bonds are payable solely from electric customer net revenues and are 
payable through 2024. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $3,835,652 . 
Principal and interest paid for the current year and the income available for debt service was $638,833 and 
$8,419,065 respectively. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the revenue bond at June 30, 2018 are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30: 
2019 
2020 
202 1 
2022 
2023 
2024 
Total 

(I) Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

Principal 
$ 516,000 $ 

535,000 
555,000 
575,000 
595,000 
617,000 

$ 3,393,000 $ 

Interest 

122,827 
104,147 
84,780 
64,689 
43,874 
22,335 

442,652 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2018, was as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General obligation bonds 
Plus deferred premium 
Total bonds payable 
Installment notes 
Compensated absences 
Net pension liability (LGERS) 

Net pension liability (LEO) 
Total OPEB liability 

Governmental activity 
long-tenn liabilities 

Business-type activities: 
General obligation bonds 
Plus deferred premium 
Total bonds payable 
Installment notes 
Revenue bond 
Compensated absences 
Net pension liability (LGERS) 

Total OPEB liability 
Business-type activity 

long-tenn liabilities 

Beginning 

Balance 

$ 14,095,000 $ 
465,093 

14,560,093 
9,781,958 
1,397,559 
6,391,684 
1,929,620 

24,039,415 

Increases 

24,105,000 $ 
1,025,793 

25,130,793 
6,000,000 
1,027,135 

370,528 

Decreases 

2,525,000 $ 
63,539 

2,588,539 
1,344,855 

976,579 
1,714,737 

51,754 
439,067 

Ending 

Balance 

Amounts Due 

Within One Year 

35,675,000 $ 
1,427,347 

1,860,000 
102,468 

37,102,347 
14,437,103 
1,448,115 
4,676,947 
2,248,394 

23,600,348 

1,962,468 
1,043,793 
1,011,906 

$ 58, 100,329 $ 32,528,456 $ 7,115,531 $ 83,5 13,254 $ 4,018,167 

$ 32,205,000 $ 
1,481,633 

33,686,633 
22,375,007 
3,891,000 

369,473 
1,938,056 
4,522,306 

$ 66,782,475 $ 

$ 

226,663 

795,000 $ 
74,237 

869,237 
1,584,869 

498,000 
209,074 
483,181 
82,597 

31,410,000 $ 
1,407,396 

32,817,396 
20,790,138 
3,393,000 

387,062 
1,454,875 
4,439,709 

226,663 $ 3,726,958 $ 63,282,180 $ 

60 

855,000 
74,236 

929,236 
1,484,459 

516,000 
219,814 

3,149,509 
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Compensated absences, other post-employment benefits and net pension obligation for governmental activities 
typically have been liquidated in the General Fund. 

Note 10 - NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS 

Governmental Business-type 
Capital assets $ 419,961 ,367 $ 277,327,495 
Less: Long-term debt (36,128,430) (57,000,534) 

Net investment in capital assets $ 383,832,937 $ 220,326,961 

Note II - FUND BALANCE 

The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of General Fund 
balance that is available for appropriation: 

Total fund balance-General Fund 
Less: 

Inventories 
Prepaid items 
Stabilization by State Statute 
Restricted for Public Safety 
Restricted for Construction Management Inspections 
Committed for LEO pension obligation 
Assigned for subsequent year's expenditures 

Remaining fund balance 

$ 

$ 

34,836,7 11 

(29,591) 
(84.823) 

(8 ,742,293) 
(275,861) 
(621,481) 
(842,349) 

(2,357,400) 
21,882,913 

The outstanding encumbrances are amounts needed to pay any commitments related to purchase orders and 
contracts that remain unperformed at year-end. 

Encumbrances - General Fund 
Encumbrances - Electric Fund 
Encumbrances - Water and Sewer Fund 

Note 12 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTMTY 

$ 3,505,371 
758,522 
728,217 

Balances due to/from other funds at June 30, 2018, consist of the following: 

Due to General Fund by the Internal Service Fund $ 
Due to Electric Fund by the Internal Service Fund 
Due to Water and Sewer Fund by the Internal Service Fund 

550,004 
79,843 

136,496 

The Internal Service Fund balances are the result of health claims and administrative costs exceeding transfers 
into the Fund. The other balances result from inventory transactions. 
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A summary of interfund transfers follows: 

General Fund 
General Fund 

From Fund 

Recreation Cap ital Project Fund-Cap ita! Reserve 
Recreation Cap ital Project Fund-Cap ital Reserve 
Transportat ion Capital Project Fund-Capital 
Water!Sewer Capital Reserve Fund 
Water!Sewer Cap ital Reserve Fund 
Street Improvements Project Fund 
Recreation Capital Project Fund 
Electric Fund 
Water/Sewer Fund 

June 30, 2018 

To Fund 
Street Improvements Project Fund $ 
General Cap ital Projects Fund 
General Fund 
Recreation Capital Projects Fund 
General Fund 
WaterlSewer Fund 
WaterlSewer Project Fund 
General Fund 
General Fund 
Electric Substation Cap ita! Project 
Water/Sewer Project Fund 

Note 13 - JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANlZATION 

Amount 
371,000 
367,400 
902,597 

1,971,000 
742,400 

2,347,652 
3,428,000 

29,050 
194,328 

2,394,419 
500,000 

Purpose 
Fund imp rovements 
Fund improvements 
Fund imp rovements 
Fund improvements 
Fund improvements 
Fund improvements 
Fund improvements 
Close capital project 
Close capital project 
Fund improvements 
Fund improvements 

The Town is a member of the North Carolina Eastern Municipal Power Agency (the "Agency"). The Agency 
was formed to enable municipalities that own electric distribution systems to finance, construct, own, operate, 
and maintain generation and transmission facilities through the Agency. The Town receives power from the 
Agency and is contractually allocated a .7056% interest in the Agency, with the balance being shared by the 
thirty-two (32) other local governments. Each participating government appoinls one commissioner to the 
Agency's governing board. The Town is obligated to purchase all of its power supply requirements from the 
Agency. Except for the power sales purchase requirements, no local government participant has any obligation, 
entitlement, or residual interest. The Town's gross purchases of power for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 
were $24,260,452. 

On July 31 , 2015, the Agency completed the sale of most of its electricity generating assets to Duke Energy. 
These proceeds were used to defease the Agency's outstanding revenue bonds. The Agency entered into 
contractual arrangements with its member cities and Duke Energy. Under these arrangements, the Agency will 
supply wholesale power to its members and will purchase tbis power from Duke Energy. In addition to 
payments made for electric power, Agency members will make payments for their share of the debt service on 
the Agency's new revenue bonds. 

Note 14 - SUMMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES 

Federal and State Assisted Programs 

The Town has received proceeds from several federal and state grants. Periodic audits of these grants are 
required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures of grant monies by the 
grantor agencies. Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial. No provision bas been 
made in the accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant moneys. 

Note 15 - JOINTLY OWNED FACILITIES 

Tbe Towns of Apex and Cary jointly own and operate a water treatment plant. An advisory committee, 
consisting of the Mayors of Apex and Cary and the Town Managers of Apex and Cary, advise the Operating 
Agency on all policy matters and select the independent consultants for the project. The Town of Cary is the 
Operating Agency and operates the plant, bires employees, accounts for revenues and expenditures, and 
provides all administrative and executive management of the plant. The water treatment plant is not a separate 
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legal entity and does not prepare separate financial statements. The Town's share of capital costs of the plant 
and its operating expenses are included in the Town of Apex's reporting entity. 

All costs associated with the construction and improvements to the plant are allocated to each party based on its 
share of the water treatment capacity of the plant. The Towns of Apex and Cary have a 23% and 77% share of 
the facility's capacity, respectively. Both parties make payments sufficient to amortize their share of the capital 
costs regardless of the amount of water actually used. Both parties meet their share of all other costs in 
proportion to their actual use of water from the facility. 

The Towns of Apex and Cary are jointly own and operate a wastewater treatment plant. The Town of Apex 
owns approximately from 29-31 % considering the entire plant including outfall facilities. The plant has a total 
budgeted cost of $300,000,000 and the Town of Apex's portion of this is $83,255,307. Through June 30, 2018, 
the Town has capitalized the wastewater treatment plant and related land at a total cost of$82, 175,682. 
At June 30, 2018, the Town has remaining construction commitments of$l ,079,625 related to this project. 

Note 16- CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRlNCIPLESIRESTATEMENT 

The Town implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. Statement 75, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting/or Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. 
The implementation of the statement required the Town to record beginning total OPEB liability and the effects 
on net position of benefit payments and administrative expenses paid by the Town related to OPEB during the 
measurement period (fiscal year ending June 30, 2017). Beginning deferred outflows and inflows of resources 
associated with the implementation were excluded from the restatement. As a result, net position for the 
governmental activities decreased $16,339,453 and $1,5 11 ,155 for the business type activities. 
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Service cost 
Interest 
Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Benefit payments 

Net change in total OPEB liability 
Total OPEB liability - beginning 

Total OPEB liability - ending 

Notes to Schedule 

$ 

$ 

2018 

2,225,2 12 
854,654 
110,047 

(3,373,245) 
(338,332) 

(521,664) 
28,561,721 

28,040,057 

Changes of assumptions: Changes of assumptions and other inputs rellect the effects of changes 
in the discount rate of each period. The foUowing are the discount rates used in each period. 

Fiscal Year Rate 
2018 3.56% 

Note that this schedule will not present 10 years' worth of information until fiscal year 2027. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
TOWN OF APEX'S CONTRIBUTIONS 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

2018 2017 2016 

Contractually required contribution $ 1,984,665 $ 1,771,996 $ \ ,502,800 

Contributions in relation to the 
contractually required contributions \,984,665 1,77\,996 \ ,502,800 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ $ $ 

Town of Apex's covered-employee payroll $ 25,826,440 $ 23,809,047 $22,065,857 

Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 7.68% 7.44% 6.81% 

Note that this schedule will not present 10 years' worth of information until fiscal year 2023. 

2015 2014 

$ \ ,468,206 $ \,380,271 

\,468,206 \ ,380,27\ 

$ $ 

$ 20,582,7\2 $\9,4 17,804 

7. \3% 7. 11% 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
TOWN OF APEX'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABll,ITY (ASSET) 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS* 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 
Apex's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) (%) 0.40137% 0.39248% 0.39693% 0.38363% 0.37310% 

Apex's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) ($) $ 6,131,822 $ 8,329,740 $ 1,781,398 $ (2,262,443) $ 4,497,288 

Apex's covered-employee payroll $23,809,047 $22,065,857 $ 20,582,712 $ 19,417,804 $ 18,242,662 

Apexts proprtionate share of the net pension liability 

(asset) as a perentage ofits covered-employee payroll 25 .75% 37.75% 8.65% -11.65% 24.65% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability 94.18% 91.47% 98.09% 102.64% 94.35% 

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30. 

Note that this schedule will not present 10 years' worth ofinfonnation until fiscal year 2023. 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
JUNE 30, 2018 

LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE 

2018 2017 
Beginning balance $ 1,929,620 $ 1,825,900 
Service cost 1l1 ,974 114,548 
Interest on total pension liability 73,484 64,730 
Difference between expected and actual experience 38,475 
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 146,595 (50,116) 
Benefit payments (51,754) (25,442) 

Ending balance of the total pension liability $ 2,248,394 $ 1,929,620 

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending 
December 31. 

Note that this schedule will not present 10 years' worth of information until fiscal year 2026. 

67 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
SCHEDULE OF TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY 
AS A PERCENTAGE OF COVERED PAYROLL 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENT ARY INFORMATION 
JUNE 30, 2018 

LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE 

Total pension liability 
Covered payroll 
Total pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll 

Notes to the schedules 

2018 
$ 2,248,394 $ 

4,760,797 
47.23% 

2017 
1,929,620 
4,527, 103 

42.62% 

The Town of Apex has no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 
ofGASB Statement 73 to pay related benefits. 

Note that this schedule will not present 10 years' worth of information until fiscal year 2026. 
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Schedule 1 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended J une 30, 2018 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2017 

2018 

Variance Positive 

Bud~et Actual Q:!e8ative) 
REVENUES 
Ad valorem taxes 

Current year $ 24,460,934 $ 24,631,157 $ 170,223 
Prior years 20,000 12,519 (7,481) 
Penalties and interest 30,000 28,387 (1 ,613) 

Total 24,510,934 24,672,063 161,129 

Other taxes and licenses 
Local option sales tax 10,050,000 10,109,296 59,296 
Motor vehicle licenses 200,000 200,305 305 
Rental vehicles tax 60,000 73,883 13,883 

Total 10,310,000 10,383,484 73,484 

Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues 
Utility franchise tax 2,550,000 2,647,424 97,424 
Beer and wine tax 200,000 202,218 2,218 
Solid waste rebates - Wake County 215,000 176,907 (38,093) 
Payments in lieu of taxes 1,200 1,728 528 

Total 2,966,200 3,028,277 62,077 

Restricted intergovernmental 
Powell Bill 1,1 80,000 1,203,921 23,921 
EMS allocation - Wake County 1,617,681 1,636,216 18,535 
Fire district allocation - Wake County 1,092,000 1,114,825 22,825 
Federal grant 49,000 37,491 (1 1,509) 
State grant 44,557 44,557 
Wake County grant 213,250 238,809 25,559 

Total 4,151,931 4,275,819 123,888 

Permits and fees 
Building pennits and inspection fees 3,151,200 5,290,667 2,139,467 
Subdivision approval fee 175,000 176,474 1,474 
Application fees 113,000 158,470 45,470 
Vendor permits 3,000 9,610 6,610 
Fines and penalties 2,000 3,000 1,000 

Total 3,444,200 5,638,221 2,194,021 

Sales and services 
Refuse collection fees 2,975,111 2,987,306 12,195 
Emergency services 25,000 12,000 (13,000) 
Recreation fees 900,700 991,005 90,305 
Recycling revenue 618,066 647,817 29,751 
Planning documents 1,000 200 (800) 

Total 4,519,877 4,638,328 118,451 

Investment earnings 130,029 367,908 237,879 
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2017 

Actual 

$ 22,953,998 
6,599 

34,520 
22,995,1I'Z 

9,406,835 
199,565 
65,499 

9,671,899 

2,529,054 
202,523 
238,028 

1,209 
2,970,814 

1,141,653 
1,524,702 

927,861 
32,740 

7,856 
138,577 

3,773,389 

4,613,309 
176,926 
150,837 

5,710 
12,755 

4,959,537 

2,762,638 
16,800 

877,345 
592,839 

254 
4,249,876 

15 1,491 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended J une 30, 2018 
Witb comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 3D, 2017 

Schedule 1 
2018 2017 

Variance Positive 

Bud~et Actual (Ne~ative) Actual 
Miscellaneous 

ABC revenue $ 185,000 $ 231,343 $ 46,343 $ 207,725 
Sale of fIxed assets 30,000 338,896 308,896 64,365 
Miscellaneous 115,700 215,741 100,04 1 103,009 
Donations 5,500 15,74 1 10,241 74,406 
Insurance Refund 14,900 25,944 11,044 56,159 
Court costs and officer fees 10,000 20,220 10,220 13,965 

Total 361, 100 847,885 486,785 519,629 

Total revenues 50,394,271 53,851 ,985 3,457,714 49,291,752 

EXPENDITURES 
General government · 

Governing body 
Personnel services 57,907 54,305 
Operations 140,526 90,245 

Total 205,782 198,433 7,349 144,550 

Administration 
Personnel services 2,414,882 2,173,531 
Operations 1,544,475 1,423,647 
Capital outlay 187,589 309,952 

Total 4,647,936 4,146,946 500,990 3,907,130 

Finance 
Personnel services 341,135 333,150 
Operations 310,560 479,737 
Capital outlay 42,851 

Total 765,716 651,695 114,021 855,738 

Facility Services 
Personnel services 278,82 1 313,356 
Operations 532,529 486,457 
Capital outlay 372,308 760,909 

Total 1,528,893 1,183,658 345,235 1,560,722 

Planning 
Personnel services 1,531,767 1,437,236 
Operations 246,475 112,733 
Downtown Development 22,035 19,944 
Capital Outlay 54,663 

Total 2,062,935 1,800,277 262,658 1,624,576 
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Schedule 1 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2017 

2018 

Budget Actual 
Variance Positive 

(Negative) 
Construction Management 

Personnel services 
Operations 
Capital outlay 

Total 

Special Appropriations 
Wake County Programs 
Chamber of Commerce 
Apex Historical 
Downtown Merchants 

Total 

Total general government 

Public safety 
Police 

Personnel services 
Operations 
Capital outlay 

Total 

Fire and Rescue 
Personnel services 
Operations 
HAZMA T program 
Capital outlay 

Total 

EMS 
Personnel services 
Operations 
Capital outlay 

Total 

Total public safety 

Public Works 
Public Works & Transportation 

Personnel services 
Operations 

Total 

$ $ 

2,340,032 

37,500 

11,588,794 

12,455,968 

7,741,752 

1,905,170 

22,102,890 

1,161 ,283 
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1,626,348 $ 
163,798 
141,296 

1,931,442 

5,000 
2,113 

20,000 
27,113 

9,939,564 

8,325,308 
1,187,488 

911,854 
10,424,650 

6,33 1,296 
737,446 

19,732 
260,209 

7,348,683 

1,642,655 
235,118 

1,877,773 

19,651,106 

818,905 
222,067 

1,040,972 

408,590 

10,387 

1,649,230 

2,031,318 

393,069 

27,397 

2,451,784 

120,311 

$ 

2017 

Actual 

1,500,834 
220,860 

24,868 
1,746,562 

15,000 
1,759 
5,000 

20,020 
41,779 

9,88 1,057 

7,794,768 
1,294,189 
1,105,626 

10,194,583 

5,577,586 
680,321 

18,847 
1,205,994 
7,482,748 

1,576,381 
230,568 

24,985 
1,83 1,934 

19,509,265 

599,454 
218,337 
817,791 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For tbe Year E nded June 30,2018 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2017 

Scbedule 1 
2018 2017 

Variance Positive 
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual 

Uti lity Engineering & Water Resources 
Personnel services $ $ 1,139,509 $ $ 958,876 
Operations 117,691 178,112 

Capital Outlay 56,993 
Total 1,523,018 1,314,193 208,825 1,136,988 

Streets 
Personnel services 794,3 57 598,465 

Operations 2,166,316 2, 145,645 
Capital outlay 768,534 477,763 

Total 5,006,639 3,729,207 1,277,432 3,22 1,873 

Fleet Services 
Personnel services 340,267 305,765 
Operations 97,064 94,413 

Capital outlay 58,167 
Total 558,531 495,498 63,033 400,178 

Cemetery 
Operations 37,260 30,7 18 6,542 24,941 

Total public works 8,286,73 1 6,610,588 1,676,143 5,601 ,771 

Environmental Protection 
Sanitation 

Personnel services 795,710 746,6 14 

Operations 2,620,866 2,461,125 
Capital outlay 443,470 225,627 

Total environmental protection 3,939,675 3,860,046 79,629 3,433,366 

Cultural and Recreational 
Personnel services 2,312,470 2,192,808 

Operations 1,571,546 1,480,831 
Capital outlay 421,682 828,348 

Total cultural and recreation 4,696,462 4,305,698 390,764 4,501,987 

Debt service 
Principal 3,869,854 3,028,562 
Interest 778,397 858,100 
Bond issuance cost 233,682 28,416 

Total debt service 4,9 14,634 4,881 ,933 32,70 1 3,915,078 

Total expenditures 55,529,186 49,248,935 6,280,251 46,842,524 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (5 ,134,915) 4,603,050 9,737,965 2,449,228 

74 



Schedule 1 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2017 

2018 

Budget Actual 
Variance Positive 

(Negative) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers out 

General Capital Project $ 
Street Project 

Operating transfers in 
Street Project Fund 
Recreation Project Fund 
Recreation Reserve Fund 
Transportation Reserve Fund 

Bond issuance 
Bond premium 
Contingency 
Fund balance appropriated 

Total other fmancing sources (uses) 

(367,400) $ 
(371,000) 

29,224 
194,828 
902,597 
742,400 

1,105,000 
160,105 

(219,874) 
2,959,035 
5,134,915 

Net change in fund balance $ ====== 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of Year 

FUND BALANCE - End of Year 

75 

(367,400) $ 
(371,000) 

29,050 (174) 
194,328 (500) 
902,597 
742,400 

1,105,000 
160,106 1 

219,874 
(2,959,035) 

2,395,081 (2,739,834) 

6,998,131 $ 6,998,131 

27,732,260 

34,730,391 

2017 

Actual 

$ (317,500) 
(1,247,500) 

1,638,049 

73,049 

2,522,277 

25,209,983 

$ 27,732,260 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
FIRE CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the year ended J une 30, 2018 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 20 17 

Schedule 2 
2018 

Variance 
Positive 

Budget Actual (Negative) 
REVENUES 

lnvestment earnings $ 200 $ 1,156 $ 956 

EXPENDITURES 
Reserved for fuhire expenditures 200 200 

Net change in fund balance $ 1,156 $ 1,156 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of year 105,164 

FUND BALANCE - End of year $ 106,320 
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20 17 

Actual 

$ 550 

550 

104,614 

$ 105,164 



TOWN O F APEX, NORTH C AROLINA 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

RECREATION FUND 
SCHEDULE O F REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

F rom inception to June 30, 2018 

Schedule 3 
Project Actual 

Author - Prior Current Total to 
ization Year Year Date 

REVENUES 
Investment earuings $ 4,000 $ 7,648 $ 69,284 $ 76,932 
Donations 40,000 40,000 
Intergovernmental 965,500 33,674 226,941 260,615 
Miscellaneous 6,200 6,287 6,287 

Total revenues 975,700 87,609 296,225 383,834 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay-improvements 36,8 15,009 4,0 13,213 8,285,252 12,298,465 
Less closed projects 11 ,0 16,076 3,658, 192 7,357,834 11 ,0 16,026 

Total expenditures 25 ,798,933 355,02 1 927,4 18 1,282,439 

Revenues under expenditures (24,823,233) (267,412) (63 1,193) (898,605) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in (out) 

Recreation reserve 7,203,466 2,182,976 1,971,000 4, 153 ,976 
General fund 400,000 400,000 400,000 
General fund (752,978) (1 94,328) (194,328) 

Bonds issued 20,0 10,243 10,243 20,000,000 20,0 10,243 
Bond premium 752,978 752,978 752,978 
Issuance of debt 8,225,600 2,225,600 6,000,000 8,225,600 

Sub-total other fInancing sources (uses) 35,839,309 4,818,819 28,529,650 33,348,469 
Less closed projects 11 ,0 16,076 3,571,929 7,444,097 11 ,0 16,026 

Total other fmancing sources (uses) 24,823,233 1,246,890 2 1,085,553 22,332,443 

Net change in fund balance $ $ 979,478 $ 20,454,360 $ 2 1,433,838 
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Special Revenue Funds 
Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally 

restricted to expenditures for particular purposes. 

Perry Library Fund - used to account for funds restricted for improvement 
and maintenance of Eva Perry Library building. 

Capital Projects Funds 
Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction 

of major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary and 
trust funds. 

Street Improvements Projects Fund - used to account for construction and 
improvements to streets and sidewalks. 

Recreation Reserve - used to account for development fees restricted for 
construction and improvement of parks and recreation facilities . 

Transportation Reserve - used to account for development fees restricted for 
construction and improvement of streets. 

General Capital Projects Fund - used to account for construction and 
improvements to facil ities used in the Town's governmental activities. 

Permanent Fund 
Permanent funds are used to report resources that are restricted to the extent 

that only earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support the 
Town's programs. 

Cemetery Fund - used to account for money received from sales of plots and 
related interest income. Only the interest portion of the fund can be used 
to maintain the cemetery. 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
June 30, 2018 

Statement 4 

Special Revenue Capital Projects 

Street 
Peny Improvements Recreation 

Libra!}' Project Reserve 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 117,422 $ 3,845,019 $ 5,857,424 
Restricted cash 1,709,485 
Wake County taxes receivable 
Grants receivable 175,321 

Total assets $ 117,422 $ 5,729,825 $ 5,857,424 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ $ 43,931 $ 

FUND BALANCES 
Restricted 1,709,485 
Committed 117,422 3,976,409 
Assigned 5,857,424 

Total fund balance 117,422 5,685,894 5,857,424 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 117,422 $ 5,729,825 $ 5,857,424 
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Permanent 
Capital Projects Fund 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Transportation General Cemetery Governmental 
Reserve Projects Total Fund Funds 

$ 741,859 $ 1,044,609 $ 11,488,911 $ 403 ,629 $ 12,009,962 
1,709,485 699,968 2,409,453 

36,650 36,650 36,650 
175,321 175,321 

$ 778,509 $ 1,044,609 $ 13 ,410,367 $ 1,103,597 $ 14,631 ,386 

$ 13,475 $ 1,488 $ 58,894 $ $ 58,894 

1,709,485 699,968 2,409,453 
1,043,121 5,019,530 403,629 5,540,581 

765,034 6,622,458 6,622,458 
765,034 1,043,121 13 ,3 51 ,473 1,103,597 14,572,492 

$ 778,509 $ 1,044,609 $ 13,410,367 $ 1,103,597 $ 14,631 ,386 

81 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Statement 5 

Special Revenue Capital Projects 

Street 
Perry Improvements Recreation 

Libr~ Project Reserve 
REVENUES 

Motor vehicle licenses $ $ $ 
Subdivision recreation fees 4,158,264 
Transportation impact fees 
Payments in lieu of streets 684,504 
Intergovernmental 1,1 13,959 
Sales and services 
Miscellaneous 46 
Investment earnings 1,276 36,144 57,035 

Total revenues 1,276 1,834,653 4,215,299 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay-improvements 2,927,925 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 1,276 (1,093,272) 4,215,299 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 371,000 
Transfers out (29,050) (2,873,597) 
Bond issuance 3,000,000 
Bond premium 11 2,711 

Total other financing sources (uses) 3,454,661 (2,873,597) 

Net cbange in fund balances 1,276 2,36 1,389 1,341,702 

FUND BALANCES - Beginning of year 116,146 3,324,505 4,515,722 

FUND BALANCES - End of year $ 117,422 $ 5,685,894 $ 5,857,424 
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Permanent 
Capital Projects Fund 

Total 
General Nonmajor 

Transportation Capital Cemetery Governmental 
Reserve Projects Total Fund Funds 

$ 345,058 $ $ 345,058 $ - $ 345,058 
4,158,264 4,158,264 

466,957 466,957 466,957 
684,504 684,504 

1,1 13,959 1, 113,959 
(9,300) (9,300) 

46 46 
9,356 8,138 110,673 12,0 19 123,968 

821,371 8,138 6,879,461 2,719 6,883,456 

83,204 3,011,129 3,0 11 ,129 

821,371 (75,066) 3,868,332 2,719 3,872,327 

367,400 738,400 738,400 
(742,400) (3,645,047) (3,645,047) 

3,000,000 3,000,000 
112,7 11 112,711 

(742,400) 367,400 206,064 206,064 

78 ,971 292,334 4,074,396 2,719 4,078,39 1 

686,063 750,787 9,277,077 1,100,878 10,494,101 

$ 765,034 $ 1,043,121 $ 13,351,473 $ 1,103,597 $ 14,572,492 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

PERRY LmRARY FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the year ended J une 30, 2018 

With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2017 

Schedule 6 
2018 

Variance 
Positive 

Bud~et Actual Q:::!egative) 
REVENUES 

Investment earnings $ 230 $ 1,276 $ 1,046 

EXPENDITURES 
Building maintenance and repair 230 230 

Net change in fund balance $ 1,276 $ (1,276) 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of year 116,146 

FUND BALANCE - End of year $ 117,422 

84 

2017 

Actual 

$ 607 

607 

115,539 

$ 116,146 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 

STREET IMPROVEMENTS FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

From inception to June 30,2018 

Schedule 7 
Project Actual 

Author - Prior Current Total to 
ization Year Year Date 

REVENUES 
Developer reimbursements $ $ 25,146 $ 46 $ 25,192 
Payments in lieu of streets 65,000 1,327,958 684,504 2,012,462 
Intergovernmental 5,166,500 548,896 1,1 13,959 1,662,855 
Investment earnings 178,2 15 170,870 36,144 207,014 

Sub-total revenues 5,409,715 2,072,870 1,834,653 3,907,523 
Less closed projects 534,215 208,308 325,907 534,215 

Total revenues 4,875,500 1,864,562 1,508,746 3,373,308 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay-improvements 12,470,665 1,615,084 2,927,925 4,543,009 
Less closed projects 2,160,183 772,602 1,387,854 2,160,456 

Total expenditures 10,310,482 842,482 1,540,071 2,382,553 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (5,434,982) 1,022,080 (31,325) 990,755 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in (out) 

General Fund 2,016,900 1,662,394 357,000 2,0 19,394 
General Fund (32,711) (29,050) (29,050) 

Transportation Capi tal Reserve 1,854,020 1,058,597 14,000 1,072,597 
Bonds issued 3,048,825 84,523 3,000,000 3,084,523 
Bond premium 173,916 61,205 112,711 173,916 

Sub-total other financing sources (uses) 7,060,950 2,866,719 3,454,66 1 6,321,3 80 
Less closed projects 1,625,968 797,324 828,917 1,626,24 1 
Total other financing sources (uses) 5,434,982 2,069,395 2,625,744 4,695,139 

Net change in fund balance $ $ 3,091,475 $ 2,594,419 $ 5,685,894 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
RECREATION CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - CAPITAL RESERVE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 20 17 

Schedule 8 
2018 2017 

Variance 
Positive 

Budllet Actual (Nellative) Actual 
REVENUES 

Subdivision recreation fees $ 2,000,000 $ 4,158,264 $ 2, 158,264 $ 4 ,0 14,222 
Investment earnings 10,000 57,035 47,035 16,985 

Total revenues 2,010,000 4,215,299 2,205,299 4,031 ,207 

EXPENDITURES 
Reserved for future expenditures 2,786,075 (2,786,075) 

Revenues over expenditures (776,075) 4,215,299 4,991,374 4 ,03 1,207 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out 

General Fund (902,597) (902,597) (1,638,049) 
Recreation Project (1,971,000) (1,971 ,000) (422,697) 

Fund Balance Appropriated 3,649,672 3,649,672 
Total other financing sources (uses) 776,075 (2,873,597) 3,649,672 (2,060,746) 

Net change in fund balance $ 1,341 ,702 $ 1,341 ,702 1,970,461 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of year 4,515,722 2,545,261 

FUND BALANCE - End of year $ 5,857,424 $ 4,515,722 
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ScheduJe 9 

REVENUES 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
TRANSPORTATION CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - CAPITAL RESERVE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2017 

2018 
Variance 
Positive 

Budget Actual (Negative) 

Motor vehicle licenses 
Transportation impact fees 
lnvestmenteantings 

$ 400,000 $ 345,058 $ (54,942) $ 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Reserved for future expenditures 

Revenues over expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING USES 
Operating transfers out 

General Fund 
Street Project Fund 
Total other ftnancing uses 

Net change in fund balance 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of year 

FUND BALANCE - End of year 

340,000 
2,400 

742,400 

742,400 

(742,400) 

(742,400) 

$ 

$ 

87 

466,957 ' 126,957 
9,356 6,956 

821,371 78,97 1 

821,371 78,97 1 

(742,400) 

(742,400) 

78,971 $ 78,971 

686,063 

765,034 $ 

2017 

Actual 

133,551 
568,047 

2,814 
704,412 

704,412 

(306,200) 
(306,200) 

398,2 12 

287,851 

686,063 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
GENERAL PROJECTS FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
From inception to June 30, 2018 

Schedule 10 
Project Actual 

Author - Prior Current Total to 
ization Year Year Date 

REVENUES 
Investrnent earnings $ 7,500 $ 12,845 $ 8,138 $ 20,983 
Less closed projects 7,500 7,500 7,500 

Total revenues 5,345 8,138 13,483 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay-improvements 6,409,822 5,296,980 83,204 5,380,184 
Less closed projects 5,380,185 5,296,980 83,204 5,380,184 

Total expenditures 1,029,637 

Revenues under expenditures (1,029,637) 5,345 8, 138 13 ,483 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 

General Fund 1,852,322 1,484,922 367,400 1,852,322 
Fire reserve 50,000 50,000 50,000 

Issuance of debt 4,500,000 4,500,000 4,500,000 
Sub-total other fInancing sources 6,402,322 6,034,922 367,400 6,402,322 

Less closed projects 5,372,685 5,372,684 5,372,684 
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,029,637 662,238 367,400 1,029,638 

Net change in fund balance $ - $ 667,583 $ 375,538 $ 1,043 ,121 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
PERMANENT FUND 

CEMETERY FUND 
SCHEDULE O F REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2017 

Schedule 11 

REVENUES 
lnvesunentearnings 
Sale of plots 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Reserved for future expenditures 

Net change in fund balance 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of year 

Budget 

$ 9,000 $ 
(9,000) 

$=== 

2018 
Variance 
Positive 

Actual (Negative) 

12,019 $ 3,019 $ 
(9,300) (300) 
2,719 2,7 19 

2,719 $ ==.;;2,.;,,7,;,;19;,. 

1,100,878 

2017 

Actual 

5,763 
(3 ,000) 
2,763 

2,763 

1,098, 115 

FUND BALANCE - End of year $ ===,!I ,=1 0=3£,5=97~ $ ===,!1,,;,;1O=0,=8:;78;., 
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

Enterprise Funds 
Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated 

in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the 
Town is that the costs of providing goods and services to the general public 
on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges . 

Electric Fund - used to account for the costs of providing electric service. 
T he Town also maintains a subfund to account for the construction of 
an electric substation. 

Water and Sewer Fund - used to account for the costs of providing water 
treatment and distribution and wastewater collection and treatment. The 
Town also maintains subfunds to account for water and sewer capital 
projects and development fees restricted to use for system improvements. 

Internal Service Funds 
Internal service funds are used to account for providing goods and services 

to other funds or departments of the Town. This allows the Town to 
centralize certain services and then allocate them on a full cost­
reimbursement basis . 

Health and Dental Fund - the Town self insures routine health and dental 
claims and uses this fund to centralize costs and allocate them to 
various departments based on the number of employees. 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
ELECTRIC OPERATIONS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET EXPENDITURES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP) 

For the Year Ended J une 30, 2018 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 3D, 20 17 

Sch edule 12 2018 
Variance 
Positive 

Budget Actual Q:!egative) 
REVENUES 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services 

Sale of electricity $ 33,700,000 $ 33 ,801,097 $ 10 1,097 $ 
Reconnection fees 28,000 39,275 11 ,275 

Penalties 70,000 74,547 4,547 
Total 33,798,000 33,9 14,919 116,919 

Other operating revenues 
Sales tax revenues 2,350,000 2,358,578 8,578 
Underground charges 1,875,000 "1,757,849 (117,151) 

Pole rental 13 ,000 (13,000) 
Pole relocation 
Sale of capital assets 10,000 (10,000) 

Miscellaneous 10,000 145,997 135,997 

Electric meters 11 0,000 186,444 76,444 
Total other operating revenues 4,368,000 4,448,868 80,868 

Total operating revenues 38,166,000 38,363,787 197,787 

Nonoperating revenues: 
Investment earnings 25,000 52,509 27,509 

Total revenues 38 ,191,000 38,416,296 225 ,296 

EXPENDITURES 
Personnel services 3,840,693 3,480,198 360,495 
Operations and maintenance 1,724,907 1,282,080 442,827 
Purchases of electricity 24,550,000 24,260,452 289,548 
Electric sales tax 2,415,000 2,372,391 42,609 

Total 32,530,600 31,395, 121 1,135,479 

Debt service 
Principal retirement 498,000 498,000 
Interest 140,855 140,833 22 

Total debt service 638,855 638,833 22 

Capital outlay 5,417,539 4,642,847 774,692 
Total expenditures 38,586,994 36,676,801 1,9 10,193 

Revenues over (under) expenses (395,994) 1,739,495 2,135,489 
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2017 

Actual 

32,145,570 
30,930 
70,335 

32,246,835 

2,243,9 16 
1,520,134 

10,200 
29,424 
25,426 
21,726 

152,044 
4,002,870 

36,249,705 

34,921 
36,284,626 

3,514,873 
1,206,180 

24,380,180 
2,283,729 

31,384,962 

481,000 
158,257 
639,257 

3,832,8 18 
35,857,037 

427,589 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
ELECTRIC OPERATIONS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET EXPENDITURES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2017 

Schedule 12 2018 

Budget Actual 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in (out) 

Electric Substation Project $ (2,900,000) $ (2,394,419) $ 
Contingency (16,627) 
Appropriated fund balance 3,312,621 

Total other ftnancing sources (uses) 395,994 (2,394,419) 
Revenues and other sources under 
expenditures and other uses $ (654,924) $ 

Reconciliation from budgetary basis 
(modified accrual) to full accrual: 

Reconciling items: 
Capital outlay 4,642,847 
Depreciation (2,530,444) 
Payment of debt principal 498 ,000 
Intrafund transfers 2,394,419 
Disposition of capital assets 
(Increase)/decrease in accrued vacation and compensatory pay (16,127) 
Decrease in accrued interest 2,266 
Increase!(decrease) in deferred outflows of resources - pensions (227,236) 
(Increase)/decrease in net pension liability 207,941 
Decrease in deferred inflows of resources - pensions 13,923 
Increase in deferred outflows of resources - OPEB 57,687 
Increase in deferred inflows of resources - OPEB (226, 129) 
Increase/(decrease) in total OPEB liability 39,008 

Electric substation project 
Investment earnings 41 ,279 

Net income $ 4,242,5 10 

93 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

505,581 
16,627 

p ,312,621) 
(2,790,413) 

(654,924) 

$ 

$ 

2017 

Actual 

427,589 

3,832,818 
(2,391,200) 

481,000 

(2,082) 
5,952 
2,188 

563,398 
(675,867) 

67,960 

(183,189) 

6,529 
2,135,096 



TOWN OF APEX, NORT H CAROLINA 
WATER ANDSE~RFUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) 

For the Year Ended June 30,2018 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 20 17 

Schedule 13 2018 201 7 
Variance 
Positive 

Budget Actual (Negative) Actual 
REVENUES 

Operating revenues 
Charges for services $ 14,700,808 $ 15,570, 135 $ 869,327 $ 13,818,534 

Other operating revenues 
Water and sewer taps 300,000 48 1,590 181,590 352,125 
Water tank rentals 190,000 171,119 (18,88 1) 172,421 
Miscellaneous 40,000 37,554 (2,446) 48,088 

Total other operating revenues 530,000 690,263 160,263 572,634 
Total operating revenues 15,230,808 16,260,398 1,029,590 14,391,168 

Nonoperating revenues: 
Investment earnings 60,000 138,619 78,619 66,380 
Sale of capital assets 15,000 63,354 48,354 10,306 

Total nonoperating revenues 75,000 201,973 126,973 76,686 
Total revenues 15,305,808 16,462,371 1,156,563 14,467,854 

EXPENDITURES 
Water & Sewer Administration 

Personnel services 144,709 143,062 1,647 
Operations and maintenance 279,520 207,126 72,394 

Total 424,229 350, 188 74,041 

Sewer Treatment 
Personnelsennces 842,358 823,819 18,539 823,542 
Operations and maintenance 1,060,006 868,903 191, 103 829,536 
Contracted treatment services 1,572,31 8 1,548,603 23,715 1,492,976 

Total 3,474,682 3,24 1,325 233,357 3,146,054 

Sewer Maintenance 
Personnel services 2,163,994 1,687,543 476,451 1,883,866 
Operations and maintenance 1,452,985 823,993 628,992 677,368 

Total 3,616,979 2,5 11,536 1,105,443 2,561 ,234 

Water Treatment 
Operations and maintenance 392,000 230,714 161,286 28 1,607 
Water purchases 2,012,100 1,806,314 205,786 1,585,963 

Total 2,404,100 2,037,028 367,072 1,867,570 

Water Maintenance 
Personnel services 1,98 1,701 1,973,435 8,266 1,698,430 
Operations and maintenance 997,716 763,463 234,253 827,369 

Total 2,979,417 2,736,898 242,519 2,525,799 

Debt service 
Interest 1,665,424 1,665,416 8 1,714,968 
Principal retirement 2,379,880 2,379,869 11 2,310,869 

Total debt service 4,045,304 4,045,285 19 4,025,837 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
WATER AND SEWER FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 20 17 

Schedule 13 2018 2017 
Variance 
Positive 

Budget Actual (Negative) Actual 

Capital outlay 
Water/Sewer administration $ 65,000 $ $ 65,000 $ 
Sewer treatment 242,775 223,976 18,799 388,720 
Sewer maintenance 788,085 680,683 107,402 603,081 
Water maintenance 929,022 768,327 160,695 1,836,347 
Water treatment 5 14,850 30,804 484,046 468,754 

Total capital outlay 2,539,732 1,703,790 835,942 3,296,902 
Total expenditures 19,484,443 16,626,050 2,858,393 17,423,396 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (4,178,635) (163,679) 4,014,956 (2,955,542) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in I(out) 

Water/Sewer Reserve 2,347,652 2,347,652 1,996,916 
Water/Sewer Project Fund (500,000) (500,000) 

Fund balance appropriated 2,372,77 1 (2,372,771) 
Contingency (41,788) 41,788 

Total other financing sources 4,178,635 1,847,652 (2,330,983) 1,996,916 

Revenues and other sources over 
expenditures and other uses $ 1,683,973 $ 1,683,973 (958,626) 

Reconciliation from budgetary basis (modified accrual) 
to full accrual: 
Capital outlay 1,703,790 3,296,902 
Capital contributions 16,500,445 18,565,595 
lntrafund transfers (1,847,652) (1,996,916) 
Depreciation (9,717,197) (8,168,782) 
Decrease in accrued interest 4,490 4,516 
Amortization of premiums on bonds issued 74,237 74,236 
Payment of debt principal 2,379,869 2,3 10,869 
Increase/(decrease) in deferred outflows of resources - pensions (300,782) 707,543 
(lncrease)/decrease in net pension liability 275,241 (842,018) 
Decrease in deferred inflows of resources - pensions 18,430 79,025 
Disposition of capital assets (24,627) (3,623) 
Increase in accrued vacation pay (1,462) (1,842) 
Increase in deferred outflows - OPES 64,460 
Increase in deferred inflows - OPEB (252,682) 
lncrease/(decrease) in total OPEB liability 43,589 ( 177,141) 
Water/Sewer Capital Project Fund 

Interest income 109,418 39,275 
Waste Water Treatment Plant Capital Project Fund 

Interest income 22,275 11 ,608 
Capital Reserve Fund 

Capacity fees 3,214,570 8,560,069 
Acreage fees 248,597 2,724,425 
Capital reimbursement fees 17,899,401 
Interest income 330,238 105,115 
Miscellaneous 65,615 

Net Income $ 32,428,621 $ 24,395,845 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
ELECTRIC SUBSTATION PROJECT 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) 
From Inception to June 30, 2018 

Schedule 14 

REVENUES 
Lnvestrnenteantings 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay - improvements 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 

Electric Fund 
Water/Sewer Fund 

Total other flnancing sources 

Revenues and other financing sources 
over expenditures 

$ 

$ 

Project 
Author -
ization 

50,000 

4,332,726 
4,332,726 

(4,282,726) 

4,174,363 
108,363 

4,282,726 

-

96 

$ 

$ 

Prior 
Years 

56,767 

8,750 
8,750 

48,017 

1,091,121 
108,363 

1,199,484 

1,247,50 1 

$ 

$ 

Actual 
Current 

Year 

41,279 

33,965 
33,965 

7,314 

2,394,419 

2,394,419 

2,40 1,733 $ 

$ 

Total to 
Date 

98,046 

42,715 
42,7 15 

55,331 

3,485,540 
108,363 

3,593,903 

3,649,234 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
W A TERISEWER PROJECT FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) 
From Inception to J une 30, 20 18 

Schedule 15 
Project Actual 
Author - Prior Current Total to 
ization Years Year Date 

REVENUES 
Investrnentearnings $ 335,000 $ 310,190 $ 109,418 $ 419,608 

Less closed projects 275 ,000 264,999 264,999 
Total revenues 60,000 45,191 109,418 154,609 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay - improvements 32,343,082 19,361,517 3,922,869 23,284,386 
Bond issuance costs 16,100 60,905 60,905 

Sub-total expenditures 32,359,182 19,422,422 3,922,869 23,345,291 
Less closed projects 20,208,682 18,722,698 1,56 1,187 20,283,885 
Total expenditures 12,150,500 699,724 2,361,682 3,061,406 

Revenues under expenditures (12,090,500) (654,533) (2,252,264) (2,906,797) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 

Water/Sewer Capital Reserve 23 ,358,906 18,743,952 3,428,000 22,17 1,952 
Water/Sewer Fund 500,000 500,000 

Bond Proceeds 8,000,000 8,045,000 8,045,000 
Revolving loan proceeds 665,276 665,276 665,276 

Sub-total other financing sources 32,024, 182 27,454,228 3,928,000 31 ,382,228 
Less closed projects 19,933,682 20,018,886 20,018,886 
Total other financing sources 12,090,500 7,435,342 3,928,000 11,363,342 

Revenues and other financing sources 
over expenditures $ - $ 6,780,809 $ 1,675,736 $ 8,456,545 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT PROJECT FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) 
From Inception to June 30, 2018 

Scbedule 16 
Project Actual 

Author - Prior Current Total to 
izat ion Years Year Date 

REVENUES 
Investment earnings $ $ 316,635 $ 22,275 $ 338,910 
Miscellaneous 404 404 

Total revenues 317,039 22,275 339,314 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay - improvements 2,147,463 2,064,025 217,295 2,28 1,320 

Less closed projects 2,056,463 2,064,025 15 1,144 2,2 15,169 
Total expenditures 91,000 66, 151 66, 151 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (91,000) 317,039 (43,876) 273,163 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 

Water/Sewer Capital Reserve 2,147,463 3,878,734 3,878,734 
Less closed projects 2,056,463 2,215, 169 2,2 15,169 
Total other financing sources 91,000 1,663,565 1,663,565 

Revenues and other financing sources 
over (under) expenditures $ - $ 1,980,604 $ (43,876) $ 1,936,728 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
W ATERISEWER CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2017 

Schedule 17 
2018 2017 

Variance 
Positive 

Budllet Actual (Negative) Actual 
REVENUES 

Capacity fees $ 4,300,000 $ 3,2 14,570 $ (1,085,430) $ 8,560,069 
Capital Reimbursement 17,899,401 17,899,401 
Acreage fees 248,597 248,597 2,724,425 
Miscellaneous 65,6 15 
Investment earnings 60,000 330,238 270,238 105,115 

Total revenues 4,360,000 21,692,806 17,332,806 11,455,224 

EXPENDITURES 

Revenues over expenditures 4,360,000 21,692,806 17,332,806 11 ,455,224 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in (out) 

Water/Sewer Fund (2,347,652) (2,347,652) (1,996,9 16) 
Water/Sewer Project Fund (3,428,000) (3,428,000) (5,696,660) 

Fund Balance Appropriated 1,415,652 (1,4 15,652) 
Total other financing sources (uses) (4,360,000) (5,775,652) (1,415,652) (7,693,576) 

Net change in fund balance $ 15,917, 154 $ 15,917,154 3,761,648 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of year 19,740,453 15,978,805 

FUND BALANCE - End of year $ 35,657,607 $ 19,740,453 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 

HEALTH AND DENTAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 

IN NET POSITION - FINANCIAL PLAN AND ACTUAL (Non - GAAP) 
For the year ended J une 30, 2018 

With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 20 17 

Schedule 18 
2018 2017 

Variance 
Financial Positive 

Plan Actual (Negative) Actual 
REVENUES 

Health premiums $ 3,444,073 $ 3,761,553 $ 317,480 $ 3,526,6 10 
Dental premiums 228, 178 278,841 50,663 253,144 
Employee health contributions 1,007,956 877,656 ( 130,300) 837,48 1 
Employee dental contributions 188,628 165,373 (23,255) 176,2 12 

Total revenues 4,868,835 5,083,423 214,588 4,793,447 

EXPENDITURES 
Health claims-employees 2,89 1,312 3,700,763 (809,45 1) 3,224,280 
Dental claims-employees 363,256 366,116 (2,860) 350,498 
Administrative fees-emp loyees 879,996 662,695 217,30 1 857,457 
Health claims-retiree 720,220 585,640 134,580 258,525 
Dental claims-retiree 1,020 4,677 (3,657) 958 
Administrative fees-retiree 13,031 82,478 (69,447) 58,242 

Total expenditures 4,868,835 5,402,369 (533,534) 4,749,960 

Revenues over expenditures $ (318,946) $ (3 18,946) 43,487 

Reconciliation from fInancial plan basis 
(modified accrual) to full accrual: 

Reconciling items: 
Increase in reserve for incurred 

but not reported ("IBNR") claims (199,520) (88,854) 

Change in net position $ (518,466) $ (45,367) 
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Schedule 19 

Fiscal Year 

2017-20 18 $ 
20 16-20 17 
20 15-20 16 
2014-20 15 
20 13-2014 
2012-2013 
201 1-2012 
20 10-2011 
2009-2010 
2008-2009 
2007-2008 

$ 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF AD VALOREM TAXES RECEIVABLE 
June 30, 2018 

Uncollected 
Balance 

June 30, 2017 Additions 

$ 24,666,208 
25,654 
16,349 
11,481 
17,229 
10,328 
8,618 

10,105 
10,971 
18,564 
13,228 

142,527 $ 24,666,208 

Less: Allowance for uncollectible accounts 

Ad valorem taxes receivable - net 

Reconciliation with revenues: 

Ad valorem taxes - General Fund 
Reconciling items: 

Less: Penalties and interest 
Add: Adjustments and releases 

Total collections and credits 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

Collections, 
Adjustments 
and Releases 

24,63 1,157 
10,165 
3,776 

846 
489 
275 
107 
179 
212 
179 

13,228 
24,660,613 

27,672,063 

(28,387) 
16,937 

$ ==2:;;7~,6;,;6~0~,6,;:13~ 

Uncollected 
Balance 

June 30,2018 

$ 35,051 
15,489 
12,573 
10,635 
16,740 
10,053 
8,5 11 
9,926 

10,759 
18,385 

148,122 

89,682 

$ 58,440 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
ANALYSIS OF CURRENT TAX LEVY 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule 20 
Total Le:2: 

Property 
excluding 

Town - Wide Registered Registered 
Property Total Motor Motor 
Valuation Rate Levy Vehicles Vehicles 

Original levy: 
Property taxed at current rate $ 6,465,849,474 0.38 $ 24,570,228 22,529,455 $ 2,040,773 
Penalties 14,383 14,383 

Total 6,465,849,474 24,584,611 22,543,838 2,040,773 

Discoveries: 
Prior year taxes 103,608 103,608 

Total 6,465,849,474 24,688,219 22,647,446 2,040,773 

Abatements (5,792,368) 0.38 (22,011) (22,011) 

Total property valuation $ 6,460,057, 106 

Net levy 24,666,208 22,625,435 2,040,773 

Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2018 35,051 24,486 10,565 

Current year's taxes collected $ 24,631,157 $ 22,600,949 $ 2,030,208 

Current levy collection percentage 99.9% 99.9% 99.5% 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 

AND MATURITY SCHEDULE 
June 30, 2018 

Schedule 21 

UTILITIES OTHER TOTAL 

Principal Principal Principal 
Fiscal and and and 
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2018-2019 $ 855,000 $ 1,978,975 $ 1,860,000 $ 3,149,083 $ 2,715,000 $ 5,128,058 
2019-2020 915,000 2,021,875 1,775,000 2,937,013 2,690,000 4,958,888 
2020-2021 980,000 2,041,125 1,780,000 2,875,150 2,760,000 4,916,275 
2021-2022 1,045,000 2,086,525 1,780,000 2,807,532 2,825,000 4,894,057 
2022-2023 1,1 15 ,000 2,135,625 1,780,000 2,739,000 2,895,000 4,874,625 
2023-2024 1,1 85,000 2,161,025 1,790,000 2,687,913 2,975,000 4,848,938 
2024-2025 1,260,000 2,176,775 1,785,000 2,620,850 3,045,000 4,797,625 
2025-2026 1,340,000 2,193,775 1,580,000 2,353,250 2,920,000 4,547,025 
2026-2027 1,420,000 2,233 ,575 1,585,000 2,288,500 3,005,000 4,522,075 
2027-2028 1,575,000 2,345,975 1,590,000 2,223 ,500 3,165,000 4,569,475 
2028-2029 1,665,000 2,388,725 1,765,000 2,336,425 3,430,000 4,725, 150 
2029-2030 1,760,000 2,433,775 1,620,000 2,134,819 3,380,000 4,568,594 
2030-2031 1,8 55,000 2,475,975 1,620,000 2,086,219 3,475,000 4,562,194 
2031 -2032 1,955,000 2,501,775 1,805,000 2,222,619 3,760,000 4,724,394 
2032-2033 2,080,000 2,548,575 2,035,000 2,398,469 4,115,000 4,947,044 
2033-2034 2,185,000 2,570,375 1,905,000 2,207,419 4,090,000 4,777,794 
2034-2035 2,740,000 3,037,975 1,905,000 2,147,888 4,645,000 5,185,863 
2035-2036 2,740,000 2,928,375 1,905,000 2,088,356 4,645,000 5,016,731 
2036-2037 2,740,000 2,835,900 1,905,000 2,028,825 4,645 ,000 4,864,725 
2037-2038 1,905,000 1,966,913 1,905,000 1,966,9 13 

$ 31,410,000 $ 45,096,700 $ 35,675,000 $ 48,299,743 $ 67,085,000 $ 93,396,443 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 

This part of the Town of Apex's comprehensive annual financial report presents 
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the 
financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information 
says about the Town's overall financial health. 

Financial Trends - Tables 1 - 5 
These tables contain trend information to help the reader understand 
how the Town's financial performance and well-being have changed 
over time. 

Revenue Capacity - Tables 6 - 9 
These tables contain information to help the reader assess the Town's 
most significant revenue sources, property taxes and electric sales. 

Debt Capacity - Tables 10 - 13 
These tables present information to help the reader assess the afforda­
bilityof the Town's current levels of outstanding debt and its ability to 
issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information - Tables 14 -15 
These tables offer demographic and economic indicators to help the 
reader understand the environment within which the Town's financial 
activities take place. 

Operating Information - Tables 16 - 18 
These tables contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader 
understand how the information in the Town's financial report relates 
to the services it provides and the activities it performs. 





TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

(OOO's omitted) 
Table I 

2009 WQ Wl 20 12 W1 20 14 20 15 20 16 1Ql1 ~ 

Governmental acti vities 
Net investment in capital assets $ 137,055 $ 139, 181 $ 138,025 $ 145,697 $ 146,483 $ 150,821 $ 172,23 1 $ 208,352 $ 298,896 $ 383,833 
Restri cted 1,2 16 1,076 4,138 4,019 5,25 1 7,352 6,090 10,486 8,279 10,340 
Unrestricted 16,858 18, 11 8 15,8 10 14,16 1 15,473 14,699 14,2 16 13,406 17,797 13,270 

Total governmental activities net position $ 155,128 $ 158,375 $ 157,973 $ 163,877 $ 167,207 $ 172,872 $ 192,537 $ 232,244 $ 324,972 $ 407,443 

Business-type activities 
Net investment in capital assets $ 102,374 $ 104,584 $ 104,380 $ 102,749 $ 104,939 $ 135,200 $ 147,820 $ 181,185 $ 202,626 $ 220,327 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 47,097 48,354 53,767 62,759 65,28 1 46,298 46,393 44,345 49,435 66,894 

Total business-type activities net position $ 149,47 1 $ 152,938 $ 158,147 $ 165,508 $ 170,220 $ 181,498 $ 194,213 $ 225,530 $ 252,06 1 $ 287,22 1 

0 
Primary government -...J 

Net investment in capital assets $ 239,429 $ 243,765 $ 242,405 $ 248,446 $ 25 1,422 $ 286,021 $ 320,05 1 $ 389,537 $ 501,522 $ 604, 160 
Restricted 1,216 1,076 4,138 4,019 5,251 7,352 6,090 10,486 8,279 10,340 
Unrestricted 63,955 66,472 69,577 76,920 80,754 60,997 60,609 57,75 1 67,232 80,164 

Total primary government net position $ 304,600 $ 3 11 ,3 13 $ 3 16, 120 $ 329,385 $ 337,427 $ 354,370 $ 386,750 $ 457,774 $ 577,033 $ 694,664 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

(OOO's omitted) 
Table 2 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 20 15 2016 2017 2018 
Expenses 
Governmental activities 

General government $ 7,642 $ 7,042 $ 7,380 $ 7,987 $ 7,941 $ 8,761 $ 9,235 $ 9,851 $ 10,069 $ 10,584 
Public Safety 10,607 10,971 11,994 12,878 13,836 14,692 15,491 16,623 19,644 21,076 
Public Works 6,035 5,917 6,427 7,023 7,350 6,644 8,854 8,697 13,241 16,514 
Environmental Protection 3,053 3,097 3,163 3,304 3,270 3,532 3,794 4,006 3,394 3,642 
Culture and recreation 3,541 3,551 3,786 3,963 4,272 4,38 1 4,811 5,336 5,519 5,750 
Interest on long-term debt 858 1,083 935 862 917 974 944 822 764 1,073 

Total governmental activities expenses 31,736 31,661 33,685 36,017 37,586 38,984 43,129 45,335 52,631 58,639 
Business-type activities 

Water and Sewer 11,131 11,462 11,124 11,473 13,304 14,196 15,498 18,485 20,140 34,215 
Electric 25,308 26,702 27,223 28,330 28,335 29,530 31,674 31,179 34,154 22,334 

Total business-type activities expenses 36,439 38,164 38,347 39,803 41,639 43,726 47,172 49,664 54,294 56,549 
Total primary government expenses $ 68, 175 $ 69,825 $ 72,032 $ 75,820 $ 79,225 $ 82,710 $ 90,301 $ 94,999 $ 106,925 $ 115,188 

-0 
Program Revenues 00 

Governmental activities 
Charges for services: 

General government $ 653 $ 559 $ 918 $ 891 $ 1,218 $ 1,840 $ 2,557 $ 3,501 $ 4,960 $ 5,638 

Public Safety (I) 275 1,020 51 14 14 11 15 17 12 
Culture and recreation 565 616 858 1,097 1,706 1,553 2,324 323 4,892 5, 149 

Public Works 417 301 169 299 228 398 636 2,953 1,487 1,152 
Environmental Protection 2,310 2,340 2,389 2,465 2,574 2,683 2,814 3,029 3,351 3,629 

Operating grants and contributions 1,363 1,276 1,168 2,3 15 3,189 2,897 3,008 3,073 3,773 4,276 

Capital grants and contributions 6,605 4,555 4,277 10,174 5,074 6,472 23,058 38,469 92,297 98,076 

Total governmental activities program revenues 11,913 9,922 10,799 17,292 14,003 15,857 34,408 51,363 110,777 117,932 

Business-type activities 
Charges for services: 

Water and Sewer 10,184 11,106 12,964 28,901 15,797 16,448 12,949 13,374 14,457 16,260 

Electric 26,739 27,514 29,686 13,809 29,069 31,599 32,646 33,299 36,224 38,364 
Capital grants and contributions 3,462 2,825 805 4,362 2,603 6,478 14,977 34,121 29,850 37,863 

Total business-type activities program revenues 40,385 41,445 43,455 47,072 47,469 54,525 60,572 80,794 80,531 92,487 
Total primary government program revenues $ 52,298 $ 51,367 $ 54,254 $ 64,364 $ 61,472 $ 70,382 $ 94,980 $ 132, 157 $ 191,308 $ 210,419 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

2.QQ2 2010 2Q!l 2012 NU 2014 20 15 ~ 2017 WJ..£ 

Net (expense}/reve nue 

Governmental activities $ (19,824) $ (21,739) $ (22,886) $ ( 18,726) $ (23,583) $ (23, 127) $ (8,721) $ 6,028 $ 58,146 $ 59,293 
Business-type activities 3,946 3,281 5, 108 7,269 5,830 10,799 13,400 31,130 26,237 35,938 
Total primary government net expenses $ ( 15,878) $ (18,458) $ (17,778) $ (11,457) $ (1 7,753) $ (12,328) $ 4,679 $ 37, 158 $ 84,383 $ 95,231 

General Revenues and Other Changes in 
Net Position 

Governmental activities 
Taxes 

Property taxes 14,245 14,475 14,722 15,063 17,837 18,969 19,547 20,676 22,987 24,665 
Sales taxes 5,100 4,843 5,189 6,293 6,665 7,2 19 7,959 8,753 9,407 10,109 
Motor vehicle licenses 134 136 136 143 148 202 168 176 329 345 
Miscellaneous taxes 55 28 35 36 42 47 51 56 65 271 

Unrestricted grants and contributions 2,075 1,996 2,104 2,4 15 2, 122 2,176 2,859 2,971 2,971 3,028 
Investment earnings 539 89 83 48 53 25 24 95 202 562 
Miscellaneous 338 1,398 214 63 1 375 553 398 364 475 536 

0 
Transfers (400) 

'" TataJ governmental activities 22,486 22,965 22,483 24,629 27,242 28,791 3 1,006 33,09 1 36,436 39,5 16 
Business-type activities 

Investment earnings 9 17 187 177 93 115 51 71 133 264 694 
Miscellaneous 5 28 10 54 30 39 
Transfers 400 

Total business-type activities 918 187 177 93 120 479 81 187 294 733 
Total primary government $ 23,404 $ 23,152 $ 22,660 $ 24,722 $ 27,362 $ 29,270 $ 31,087 $ 33,278 $ 36,730 $ 40,249 

Change in Net Position 
Governmenta l activities $ 2,662 $ 1,226 $ (403) $ 5,903 $ 3,659 $ 5,664 $ 22,285 $ 39, 11 9 $ 94,582 $ 98,809 

Business-type activities 4,864 3,468 5,285 7,362 5,950 11,278 13,481 31,3 17 26,531 36,671 
Total primary government $ 7,526 $ 4,694 $ 4,882 $ 13,265 $ 9,609 $ 16,942 $ 35,766 $ 70,436 $ 121 ,113 $ 135,480 

Notes 

(I) Merger with Apex EMS completed March 20 10. 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

Table 3 

Property Sales Franchise Motor Vehicle Beer & Wine Rental Vehicle 
Fiscal Year Tax Tax Tax Licenses Tax Tax Total 

2009 14,247,333 5,099,936 1,796,991 133,842 134,653 35,625 21 ,448,380 

2010 14,484,023 4,842 ,500 1,886,159 134,137 44,581 27,850 21 ,419,250 

2011 14,728,071 5,189,227 1,682,919 136,292 142,249 32,452 21,911,210 

2012 15,094,213 6,292,886 1,962,575 143,276 163,556 36,518 23,693,024 

2013 17,818,627 6,664,708 1,811,003 147,239 156,234 42,333 26,640,144 

2014 19,041,293 7,218,751 1,839,512 210,725 173,957 46,941 28,531 ,179 

~ 

0 2015 19,577,741 7,959,043 2,471,056 176,038 195,186 51,335 30,430,399 

2016 20,708,708 8,752,692 2,567,708 179,814 187,787 56,331 32,453 ,040 

2017 22,995,117 9,406,835 2,529,054 333,116 202,523 65,499 35 ,532,144 

2018 24,672,063 10,109,296 2,647,424 545,363 202,218 73 ,883 38,250,247 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

(OOO's omitted) 

Table 4 

2009 2010 2011 (I) 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

General Fund 
Reserved $ 2,848 $ 2,959 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Unreserved 15,488 12,2 13 
Nonspendable 80 80 111 101 142 166 115 114 
Restricted 3,046 4,379 4,154 5,877 5,377 7, 179 7,569 9,640 
Committed 677 776 842 
Assigned 620 1,533 1,538 1,500 1,012 1,826 2,358 
Unassigned 12,623 11,608 13,983 14,299 15,190 15,467 19,377 21,883 

Total General Fund $ 18,336 $ 15,1 72 $ 16,369 $ 17,600 $ 19,786 $ 2 1,777 $ 21,721 $ 25,3 15 $ 27,837 $ 34,837 

All other governmental funds 
Reserved $ 686 $ 702 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Unreserved, reported in; 

~ Special revenue funds 591 552 
Capital project funds 10,395 6,790 
Pennanent funds 370 374 
Nonspendable 714 718 716 717 713 712 709 700 

Restricted 759 2,595 20,177 

Committed 4,068 2,205 5,727 1,920 3,509 3,999 5,476 8,507 

Assigned 696 1,114 2,749 3,138 2,934 2,833 5,202 6,622 

Unassigned (31) 
Total all other governmental funds $ 12,042 $ 8,41 8 $ 5,478 $ 4,006 $ 9,192 $ 6,534 $ 7,156 $ 10,139 $ 11,387 $ 36,006 

Notes: 

(Il Beginning fi scal year 20 11 , fund balance has been reclassified based on GASB 54 guidelines. 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

(OOO's omitted) 
Table 5 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 
Revenues 

Ad valorem taxes $ 14,247 $ 14,484 $ 14,728 $ 15,094 $ 17,819 $ 19,041 $ 19,577 $ 20,709 $ 22,995 $ 24,672 
Other taxes and licenses 5,269 5,004 5,358 6,473 6,854 7,477 8,186 8,989 9,672 10,729 
Unrestricted intergovernmental 2,075 1,996 2,104 2,415 2, 122 2,176 2,859 2,97 1 2,971 3,028 
Restricted intergoverrunental 1,717 2, 14 1 2,22 1 3,667 4,280 3,285 4,341 3,555 4,306 5,617 
Pennits and fees 803 886 1,410 1,746 2,5 15 3,078 4,652 5,945 10,461 10,948 
Sales and services 3,117 3,192 3,957 3,055 3,211 3,410 3,691 3,874 4,380 4,629 
Investment earnings 538 89 73 38 32 25 24 95 201 562 
Miscellaneous 349 1,568 221 648 425 585 413 397 560 848 
Total revenues $ 28,115 $ 29,360 $ 30,072 $ 33, 136 $ 37,258 $ 39,077 $ 43,743 $ 46,535 $ 55,546 $ 61,033 

Expenditures 

General government $ 7,034 $ 6,551 $ 6,510 $ 6,892 $ 6,945 $ 7,636 $ 8,251 $ 8,864 $ 8,688 $ 9,238 
Public safety 9,804 10,156 11,202 11,676 12,757 13,462 14,487 15,534 17,1 73 18,479 
Public works 1,994 1,569 1,872 2,255 2,460 1,692 3,578 2,593 5,124 5,727 

Environmental protection 3,025 2,933 2,987 3,137 3,177 3,426 3,680 3,887 3,208 3,417 
tv Cultural and recreation 3,006 2,716 2,675 2,792 2,999 3,323 3,555 3,682 3,674 3,884 

Capital projects 8,700 6,602 3,989 4,636 5,532 6,855 8,718 6,928 9,994 14,918 

Debt Service 
Principal 1,275 1,635 1,652 1,655 1,809 2,134 2, 134 2,667 3,028 3,870 
Interest 815 1,087 1,040 835 882 816 732 817 886 1,012 
Bond issuance costs 139 

Total expenditures $ 35,653 $ 33,249 $ 31,927 $ 33,878 $ 36,700 $ 39,344 $ 45,135 $ 44,972 $ 51 ,775 $ 60,545 

Excess of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (7,538) (3,889) . (1 ,855) (742) 558 (267) (1,392) 1,563 3,771 488 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Issuance of debt 18,570 8,302 502 5,000 2,226 4,500 6,000 
Payment to refund debt (2,900) (8, 190) (4,903) (6,421) 
Bonds issued 6,000 6,424 24,105 
Premium on bond issuance 123 267 1,026 
Bond issuance costs (214) 
Transfers in 380 2,163 331 780 548 3,729 3,932 4,578 
Transfers out (380) (2,163) (33 1) (780) (548) (400) (3,804) (3,932) (4,578) 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 18,480 (2,900) 11 2 502 6,364 (400) 2,229 4,425 31,131 

Net change in fund balances $ 10,942 $ (6,789) $ (1,743) $ (240) $ 6,922 $ (667) $ 837 $ 5,988 $ 3,771 $ 31,619 

Debt service as a percentage of non capital 7.8% 10.2% 9.6% 8.5% 9.1% 9.1% 7.9% 9.2% 9.4% 10.7% 
expenditures 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Table 6 

Fiscal Tax Rate 
Year per $100 Assessed Value as 

Ended Public Service Other Personal Total Taxable Assessed Estimated Actual a Percentage of 
June 30 Real Property Property Motor Vehicles Property Assessed Value Value Taxable Value Actual Value 

2009 3,707,876,267 27,617,055 299,181,894 152,538,313 4,187,213,529 .34 4,113,056,003 101.8% 

2010 3,753,659,201 28,803,053 289,511,177 156,402,451 4,228,375,882 .34 4,153,302,698 101.8% 

2011 3,822,880,479 28,566,184 293,770,882 169,973,631 4,315,191,176 .34 4,146,984,435 104.1% 

2012 3,895,366,651 28,331,495 314,564,526 176,398,505 4,414,661,177 .34 4,194,168,725 105.3% 

2013 3,993,835,605 28,357,179 351,764,850 197,998,753 4,571 ,956,387 .39 4,345,890,22 1 105.2% 

2014 4,134,621,000 27,413,463 484,8 15,641 193,348,102 4,840,198,206 .39 4,621 ,102,309 104.7% 

- 2015 4,373,110,017 27,414,807 418,989,744 174,630,304 4,994,144,872 .39 5,176,357,789 96.5% 
w 

2016 4,587,815,785 35,243,115 462,157,692 196,820,588 5,282,037,180 .39 5,330,064,454 99.1% 

2017 5,290,258,644 34,099,710 500,589,928 193,783,561 6,018,731,843 .38 6,478,754,334 92.9% 

2018 5,733,300,011 37,843,842 535,295,790 153,617,463 6,460,057,106 .38 6,958,604,933 92.8% 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
June 30, 2018 

Table 7 
Combined Tax 

Fiscal Town of Wake Rate Per $ 100 
Year Apex County of Assessed Value 

2009 (I) .34 .534 .874 

2010 .34 .534 .874 

2011 .34 .534 .874 

20 12 .34 .534 .874 

2013 .39 .534 .924 

20 14 .39 .578 .968 

2015 .39 .578 .968 

2016 .39 .6145 1.0045 

2017 .38 .6005 .9805 

20 18 .38 .615 .995 

Notes: 

( I I A revaluation of all property is required every eight (8) years by State Statute. Revaluation occurred 
in 2009. 

114 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
June 30, 20 18 

Table 8 

Taxes Levied Collected within the 
Fiscal Year for the Fiscal Total Fiscal Year of the Le~ 

Ended Year Adjusted Percentage of Collections in Total Collecrions to Date 

June 30 (Original Levy) Adjustments Levy Amount Original Levy Subsequent Years Amount Percentage of Levy 

2009 14,246,248 (19,2 18) 14,227,030 14,096,582 99. 1 11 2,241 14,208,823 99.9 

20 10 14,47 1,733 (1 1,030) 14,460,703 14,349,613 99.2 100,447 14,450,060 99.9 

201 1 14,724,826 (6,227) 14,7 18,599 14,598,65 1 99.2 110,019 14,708,670 99.9 

20 12 15,080,2 17 (4, 167) 15,076,050 14,946,582 99.1 94,599 15,04 1,181 99.8 

~ 
2013 17,8 19,954 (5,34 1) 17,814,613 17,681,021 99.3 123,538 17,804,559 99.9 

u. 

20 14 18,937,765 ( 1,107) 18,936,658 18,869,293 99.6 50,626 18,919,919 99.9 

20 15 19,525,453 (5,777) 19,5 19,676 19,482,708 99.8 26,333 19,509,041 99.9 

2016 20,668,145 (7,038) 20,661,107 20,645,326 99.9 3,209 20,648,535 99.9 

2017 22,979,65 1 (3,562) 22,976,089 22,953,997 99.9 10,165 22,964, 162 99.9 

20 18 24,666,208 24,666,208 24,63 1,157 99.9 24,63 1,157 99.9 



-'" 

Table 9 

Taxpayer 
CSP Community Owner LLC 
DDR 1st Carolina 
Village at Broadstone Station LLC 
CRLP Creekside Hills Drive LLC 
CFK Apex Land Co LLC 
TRT DDR Beaver Creek 
EMC Corporation 
BELL HNW Exchange Apex LLC 
Lake Cameron LLC 
Standard Pacific of the Carolinas 
HH Trinity Apex Investments LLC 
Metropolitan Development @Apex LLC 
JDN Real Estate Apex 
WakeMed Property Services 
Target Corporation 

Totals 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS AND ELECTRIC RATEPAYERS 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

Taxable Assessed 
Value 

$ 94,209,277 

$ 

60,247,793 
34,882,270 
34,856,268 
33,740,578 
32,58 1,866 
31,00 1,975 
30,050,939 
30,025,246 
28,215,589 

409,811 ,801 

2018 

Rank 
I 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 

Percentage of 
Total Taxable 

Assessed Value 
1.46% 
0.93 
0.54 
0.54 
0.52 
0.50 
0.48 
0.47 
0.46 
0.44 

Taxable Assessed 
Value 

$ 63,317,954 

$ 

69,259,823 

19,651,943 

36,139,730 

23,755,976 

30,338,72 1 
29,402,584 
27,528,998 
22,877,475 
17,736,018 

340,009,222 

Total Assessed Valuation ~ $ 6,460,057, 106 $ 4,145,01l ,1l 7 

2009 

Rank 
2 
1 

9 

3 

7 

4 
5 
6 
8 
10 

Percentage of 
Total Taxable 

Assessed Value 

1.67% 

0.47 

0.73 
0.7 1 
0.66 
0.55 
0.43 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS AND ELECTRIC RATEPAYERS 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

2018 2009 
Percentage of Percentage of 

Consumption Annual Electric Total Electric Consumption Annual Electric Total Electric 
Electric RateEa~er kWh Charges Rank Charges kWh Charges Rank Charges 
Wake County Public Schools 10,200,210 $ 1,074,412 1 3.17 7,175,872 $ 880,919 1 3.45% 
Town of Cary 14,458,400 766,285 2 2.26 
Food Lion 3,110,520 212,640 3 0.63 2,949,960 201,161 3 0.79% 
Cambridge Village of Apex 2,026,344 192,751 4 0.57 
Harris Teeter 2,424,576 189,406 5 0.56 2,862,440 243,097 4 0.95% 
Lowes Foods 2,406,720 185,121 6 0.55 2,620,480 215,696 5 0.84% 
Lowe's Home [mprovement 2,25 1,360 182,906 7 0.54 2,573,920 141,039 7 0.55% 
Target Corporation 2,863,560 168,708 8 0.50 4,333,320 189,807 2 0.74% 
Wake Med Property Services 2,040,320 165,828 9 0.49 1,714,560 144,138 9 0.01 
Time Warner Cable 1,946,136 165,178 10 0.49 
Kroger 2,600,320 221 ,552 6 0.87% 
Home Depot 2,084,960 195,984 8 0.77% 
Regal Entertainment Group 1,162,960 117,312 10 0.46% 

-.l 

Totals $ 3,303,235 $ 2,550,705 

Total Sales of Electricity = $ 33,914,919 $ 25,527,476 



TOWN OF APEX, NO RTH CAROLINA 
RA nos OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Table 10 
QQvemmental Activities Business-TYl2e Activiliel! 
General General Total Percentage 

Fiscal Obligation Installment Obligation Installment ReVe[lUe Primary ofpersonal Pee 

Year Bonds Financings Bonds Financin~ Bonds Government Income (I) CaEita 

2009 2 1,1 14,167 8,665,000 1,058,678 1,038,605 7,300,000 39, 176,450 2.5 1,123 

20 10 17,061,476 8,190 ,000 486,315 980,904 6,925,000 33,643,695 2.4 953 

2011 15,903,785 7,815,000 30,000 1,278,264 6,442,250 31,469,299 2.5 824 

2012 14,76 1,094 7,811,652 35,614,283 12,109,011 6,1ll,000 76,429,040 5.8 1,939 

2013 20,518,562 7,143,146 36,778,577 18,417,633 5,716,000 88,573,918 6.2 2, 162 

2014 19,002,695 6,474,495 36,019,342 18,181,189 5,284,000 84,961,721 5.4 2,074 

2015 17,516,827 8,122,600 35,260,105 24,628,745 4,836,000 90,364,277 5.4 1,994 

2016 16,030,960 11,390,520 34,500,869 23,945,875 4,372,000 90,240,224 5.1 1,899 

20 17 14,560,093 9,781,958 33,686,633 22,m,007 3,891,000 84,294,691 4.6 1,702 

20 18 37,102,347 14,437,103 32,817,396 20,790,138 3,393,000 108,539,984 5.2 2,015 

Notes: 
(J) See Table 14 for personal income data 

11 8 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Table 11 
Percentage of 

Estimated 
General Actual Taxable 

Fiscal Obligation Value of 

Year Bonds Property (11 

2009 22,172,845 0.47% 

2010 17,547,791 0.43% 

201 1 15,933,785 0.37% 

20 12 50,375 ,377 1.20% 

2013 57,297,139 1.32% 

2014 55,022,037 1.19% 

2015 52,776,932 1.02% 

2016 50,531,829 0.95% 

2017 48,246,726 0.74% 

2018 69,919,743 1.00% 

Notes: 

(II See Table 6 for estimated taxable values of property. 

(21 See Table 14 for estimated population data. 

119 

Per 

Capita (21 

635 

497 

417 

1,278 

1,399 

1,282 

1,165 

1,063 

974 

1,298 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES BONDED DEBT 

As of June 30, 2018 

Table 12 

Goverunental Unit 

Debt repaid with property taxes: County 
Wake County General Obligation Bonds 

Town of Apex governmental activities debt 

Total direct and overlapping debt 

Notes: 

(I) Percentage based on total assessed property values. 

(2) Excludes bonded debt for business-type activities. 

Estimated 
Debt Percentage 

Outstanding Applicable (I ) 

$ 1,762,270,000 4.48% 

120 

Estimated 
Share of 

Overlapping 
Debt 

$ 78,949,696 

51,539,450 

$ 130,489, 146 



Table 13 

2009 2010 

Debt Limit $ 33 1,60 1 $ 338,270 

Total net debt applicable to limi t $ 27,035 $ 25,400 

Legal debt margin $ 304,566 $ 312,870 

Total net debt applicable to the limit 
as a percentage of debt limit 8. 15% 7.5 1% 

~ 

tv 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Current Year Calculation) 

Wl 20 12 2013 20 14 2015 N!Q 

$ 345,2 15 $ 353,173 $ 365,756 $ 387,216 $ 399,53 1 $ 422,562 

$ 23,860 $ 22,710 $ 26,993 $ 25,477 $ 25,639 $ 27,421 

$ 32 1,355 $ 330,463 $ 338,763 $ 361,739 $ 373,892 $ 395,141 

6.9 1% 6.43% 7.38% 6.58% 6.42% 6.49% 

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year- 2014 

Assessed value 

Debt limit - 8% of assessed value 
Total debt applicable to limit 
Legal debt margin 

20 17 

$ 48 1,498 

$ 24,342 

$ 457, 156 

5.06% 

]Jill 

$ 5 16,805 

$ 51,540 

$ 465,265 

9.97% 

$ 6,460,057,106 

516,804,568 
5 1,539,450 

$ 465,265, 11 8 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Table 14 
Personal Per Capita 

Fiscal Income Personal Unemployment 
Year Population (1) (OOO's) Income (1 )(2) Rate (3) 

2009 34,891 1,434,160 41,104 6.9 

2010 35,288 1,416,659 38,931 6.8 

2011 38,180 1,266,507 33,172 6.3 

2012 39,4 12 1,321,445 33,529 5.8 

2013 40,970 1,465,538 35,771 5.4 

2014 42,920 1,570,597 36,594 5.1 

2015 45,317 1,676,820 37,002 4.0 

2016 47,525 1,848,057 38,886 3.5 

2017 49,541 1,926,451 38,886 3.2 

2018 53,862 2,094,478 38,886 2.9 

Notes: 
(1) Town of Apex Planning Department. 
(2) Apex Chamber of Commerce demographics, Bureau of Economic Analysis Apex and US Census Bureau. Information 

for 2017-2018 not available. 
(3) North Carolina Department of Commerce - Department of Employment Security. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

Table IS 
2018 2009 

Percentage 
Estimated of Total Estimated Percentage of 
Number of Town Number of Total Town 

Taxpayer Employees ( I) Rank --- Employment Employees (I) Rank Employment 
Wake County Public Schools 1763 6.84% 900 I 5.53% 
Dell Inc. (EMC) 500 3 1.94% 345 3 2.12% 
Apex Tool Group 526 2 2.04% 363 2 2.23% 
Town of Apex 417 4 1.62% 291 5 1.79% 
AT! Industrial Automation 350 5 1.36% 
Super Target 250 6 0.97% 325 4 
Costco 239 7 0.93% 
Bland Landscaping 138 9 0.54% 171 6 1.05% 
Tipper Tie, Inc. 117 8 0.45% 135 8 0.83% 
Polyzen 103 10 0.40% 
NC Department of Corrections 139 7 0.85% 
Henry Wurst, Inc. 77 9 0.47% 
Hare Pipeline 71 10 0.44% 

Totals 4,403 2,817 

Total Employed in Apex (2) 25,782 16,284 

Notes: 
(1) Estimated employees by taxpayer based on Town of Apex, Economic Development and employer verification­

Town's Finance Department. 
(2) Total employed in Apex from Employment Security Commission "Local Area Unemployment Statistics" or LAUS. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

EMPLOYEE POSITION AUTHORIZATION BY DEPARTMENT (I) (2) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
lune 30, 2018 

Table 16 

Fiscal Admin- Public 

Year istration Planning Safety (l) 

2009 36 12 III 

2010 36 12 136 

2011 37 12 136 

2012 37 12 140 

2013 38 12 148 

2014 39 15 147 

2015 40 16 156 

2016 41 16 158 

2017 47 17 188 

20 18 49 17 196 

Notes: 

(I) Pennanent employees only, does not include temporary or seasonal employees. 

(2) As of June 30th of each year. 

(l ) Employees of Apex EMS included in 20 I O. 
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Streets 

8 

8 

8 

9 

10 

10 

II 

II 

\3 

16 

Public Parks & 

Works Recreation 

4 19 

4 19 

4 20 

2 20 

2 21 

2 24 

5 24 

5 24 

7 27 

7 27 



Fleet & Environmental Water/ Construction Year 

Facilities Protection Sewer Electric Management Total 

7 16 32 24 22 291 

7 16 32 24 21 315 

7 16 31 25 20 316 

7 16 32 27 21 323 

7 16 34 29 22 339 

8 16 35 29 23 348 

8 17 34 28 24 363 

8 17 34 28 24 366 

10 17 34 32 19 411 

10 31 37 33 19 442 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Table 17 

Fiscal Year 
Function 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Police 
Physical arrests 843 925 746 639 758 516 504 464 484 484 
Parking violations 144 77 124 216 193 215 235 256 426 394 
Traffic violations 7,864 8,137 8,004 5,882 5,787 7,074 6,047 6,904 8,169 7,414 

Fire 
Number of calls answered 2,007 2,211 2,433 2,214 2,567 2,635 2,881 2,822 3009 3034 

Highways and streets 
Street resurfacing (miles) 2.9 0 0.9 3.8 8.6 0 9.9 0.0 20.1 22.2 

Environmental Protection 
Number of households served 10,983 11,254 11,432 11,717 12,036 12,476 13,689 14,604 15,445 16,257 
Solid waste collected (tons/day) 35.03 34.77 31.73 28.71 29.77 27.06 30.62 32.68 34.89 37.71 
Recyc1abJes collected (tons/day) 7.26 8.03 9.98 7.47 7.62 8.53 9.91 11.03 10.82 10.89 
Mulching and composting (tons/day) 13.83 14.19 13.55 15.16 17.01 15.71 16.80 17.92 17.89 16.71 

Cultural and recreation 
Number of program/activity participants 36,414 39,691 40,919 42,731 45 ,709 49,022 59,808 63 ,396 60,958 63 ,978 

~ 

N 

'"' 
Water 

Number of customers 13,021 13,058 13,251 13,587 14,042 14,103 14,770 15,459 17,209 18,697 
Average daily consumption 2.83 2.98 2.86 2.95 2.81 3.08 3.3 3.37 3.58 3.79 
(millions of gallons) 

Wastewater 
Number of customers 12,607 12,616 12,771 13,071 13,240 13,840 14,485 15,207 16,949 18,431 . 

Average daily sewage treatment 2.43 2.49 2.26 2.32 2.72 2.78 2.68 2.79 2.85 3.38 
(millions of gallons) 

Electric 
Number of customers 13,964 13,952 14,109 14,540 15,389 16,016 16,682 17,314 18,936 20,363 
Average daily consumption 700,674 773,613 710,423 765,975 744,098 780,614 833,966 846,098 877,824 939,159 
(kilowatt-hours) 

Source: Town of Apex - Finance, Police, Fire, Parks & Recreation. and Public Works departments 



TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Table 18 

Fiscal Year 
2009 2010 201 1 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 201S 

Function 

Public safety 

Police 

Stations I I I I 2 

Patrol Units 40 40 45 47 50 49 SO SO SI S2 

K-9 Units 0 0 0 0 0 0 I 2 2 

Fire stations 3 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 5 

Streets 

Streets (mi les) IIS.7 120.69 122.29 127.12 129.15 132.37 140.04 151.04 171.14 193.14 

Streetlights 2,311 2,325 2,465 2,582 2,582 2,713 2,775 2,846 3,391 3,479 

Parks and Recreation 

Parks acreage 430.IS 452.51 452.51 452.51 452.51 452.51 544.51 544.51 544.51 55S 

Parks 9 9 9 9 9 9 10 10 10 II 

Tennis courts (Adult & Youth) S S S S S S 20 20 20 20 

Community centers I 
~ 

Cultural Arts Center N ..... 
Lakes 

Water 

Water lines (miles) 155 165 170 170 IS2 194 207 215 269 293 

Maximum daily treatment capacity 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 

(mill ions of gallons) 

Electric 

Number of delivery points (substations) 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 

Miles of service lines (I) 276 279 315 355 355 537 554 569 569 6S1 

Sewer 

Sanitary sewer lines (miles) 175 175 IS6.5 IS9 I S9 I S9 207 239 249 2S0 

Maximum daily treatment capacity 4.6 4.6 4.6 3.8 4.8 5.9 4.7 5.3 5.3 6.0 

(millions of gallons) 

Sources: 

Town of Apex - Finance, Police, Fire, Parks and Recreation, and Public Works departments. 

Notes: 
(I) Beginning 2014, infonnation based on current GIS records. 
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Joyce and 

Company, 
CPA 

104 Brady Court, Cary, Norlh Carolina 2751 I 
Phone 919-466-0946 Fax 91 9-466-0947 

Cel1ified Public Accountants 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and On Compliance and Other Matters 
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 

Accordance with Goverllmellt Auditing Standards 

To the Honorab le Mayor and 
Members of the Town Coun ci l 
Town of Apex, North Carolina 

Independent Auditor's Report 

We have aud ited, in accordance with the auditing sta ndards generally accepted in the United ,States of 
America and the standards applicable to the financial aud its contained in Government Auditing Sr(fndards 
issued by the Comptro ller General of the United Slales, the accompanying financial statements of th e 
gove rnmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the Town of Apex, Norih Carolina, as of and fo r the year ended June 30, 2018 and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which co llectively comp rises the Town of Apex's basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 1,2018. 

Internal Control Ovel' Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of th e financial statements, we cons id ered the Town of Apex's 
internal contro l over financial repOt1in g ( interna l contro l) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressi ng our opinion on the financial statements, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opin ion on the effect iveness of the Town of Apex's internal control. 
Accordi ngly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town 's intemal control. 

A deficiency in internal co ntrol exi.sts when the des ign or operation ofa control does not allow 
management or employees. in the normal course of performing their assigned functions , to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis . A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal cont rol, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the ent ity's financial statements will not be prevented , or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal contro l that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attent ion by those cha rged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limi ted purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify al l deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that \\'e consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified . 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As pari of obtain ing reasona ble assurance about whether the Town of Apex's financial statements are free 
of ma teria I J1l isstatement, we performed tests of its com pi iance with cel1a in prov is ions of laws, 
regulations .. contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. Howeve r, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of ou r audit and, according ly, we do nol express 
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such an opi n ion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of no ncomp li ance or other matters that 
are required to be repolied un de r Government A u(titing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of th is repoli is solely to descr ibe the scope of our testi ng of internal con trol and comp liance 
an d the resu lt of th at tes ting, and not to provide an op inion on the e ffectiveness of the entity's interna l 
control or o n compl iance. Thi s report is an integra l pali of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's intern a l contro l and compliance. 
Accord ing ly, this communica tion is not sui tab le for any othe r purpose. 

Cary, NOlih Carolina 
Nove mber 1,20 18 



Joyce ancl 

Company, 
CPA 

104 Brady Courl, Cary. NOit h Caroli na 2751 1 
Phone 919-466-0946 Fax 919-466-0947 

Report on Compliance fo r the Major Federal Programs; 

Ce rtitied Public Accountants 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Uniform Guidance 
and the State Single Audit Implementation Act 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To th e Honorab le Mayor and 
Members of Ihe Board of Commiss ion ers 
Town of Apex, NOl1h Caro lina 

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Programs 
We have aud ited the Town of Apex, Nort h Carol ina, compl iance with the types of compliance 
requirem ents described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for Governmental 
Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local Governmenl Commissio n, that could have a direct and 
materia l effec t on the Town of Apex's maj or fede ral program for the year ended June 30, 20 18. The 
Town of Apex's rnaj or federal program is identified in the summary of aud itor's res uits sectio n o f the 
accompany in g sc hedule of findin gs and questioned costs. 

Manage ment 's Responsibility 
M anagement is responsible for co mpl iance with th e requirements of laws, regulations, co ntracts, and 
grant s appli cab le to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibil ity is to express an opinion on compliance for the T own of Apex 's major federal programs 
based o n our aud it of the ty pes of compli ance req uirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
complian ce in accordance with audi ti ng s tanda rd s generally accepted in the United States o f America: th e 
standards appl ica ble to finan cia l aud its contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptro ller Gene ral of the Un ited S ta tes; and the audit req uirements of Titl e 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Adminis!ra!ive Requiremel1ts, Cos! Principles, (tnd Audit Requirl!lJIel1lsjiJr 
Federed AlFords (Unilo rm Guidance) , and the State Single Audit Im pleme ntatio n Act. Th ose standard s. 
the Unifo rm Guidance, and the State S in g le Audit Impl ementati on Act require that we plan and perfo rm 
th e audit lO obtain rensonab le assu rance about whether noncompliance with the types of co illpliance 
requirements re ferred to above that cOlild have a direc t and material effect on a major federa l program 
occ urred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Town of Apex 's com pli ance 
with th ose requirements and performin g such other procedures, as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 

We beli eve that o ur au dit pro vi des a reasonable basis for Ollr opi nion on co mpliance for the maj o r federal 
program. However, ou r audit does no t prov ide a lega l determination o f the T own of Apex's com pliance. 

Opinion on the !Vlaj or Federal Programs 
In o ur o pini o n, the Town of Apex co mpl ied, in a ll mater ia l respects, w ith the types o f comp l iance 
requ iremen ts refe rred to above that co uld have a d irec t and material effect o n its major fed era l program 
for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management of the Town of Apex is responsibl e for estab li shin g and mainta in ing effective interna l 
con trol over comp li ance w ith the types of comp lia nce requirements referred to above. In plannin g and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Town of Apex's interna l contro l over compliance 
w ith the types of requ irements that could have a direct and material effect on a major fe dera l program to 
determin e the audi ting procedures that are appropriate in the c ircumstances for the pu rpose of express ing 
o ur opinion on compliance fo r each maj or federa l program and to test and rep0l1 o n interna l con tro l over 
compliance in accordance with th e Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of express ing an op ini on 
on the effective ness of internal control ove r compl iance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness o f the Town' s inte rn al control ove r comp li ance. 

A deficie ncy in internal contro l ove r comp liance ex ists when the desi gn or operat ion ofa control over 
compliance does not a llow management or emp loyees, in the norma l co urse of perform ing the ir assigned 
funct ions, to prevent, or detect a nd correct, noncomp liance wi th a type of comp li ance requireme nt of a 
federa l program o n a timely bas is. A mate ri al wea kness in inte rnal contro l over comp li ance is a 
deficien cy, or a combination of deficiencies, in interna l control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonab le poss ibility that material nonco mpliance with a type of comp li ance requirement ofa federal 
program w ill not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significa nt defi c iency in 
internal control over compliance is a defi ciency, or combinat ion of defi ciencies, in internal control over 
co mpliance w ith a type of compliance requ irement of a federa l program that is less severe than a material 
wea kness in interna l control over compliance, yet important enough to me rit a ttenti on by th ose charged 
with governance. 

O ur cons ide ra tion of internal con tro l ove r compliance was for the limited purpose desc ribed in the first 
paragraph o f thi s sec tion and was not des igned to identify a ll defic ienc ies in in terna l contro l over 
co mplian ce that might be significant deficiencies or materia l weaknesses . We did not identi fy any 
de ficiencies in internal control over compliance th at we consider to be materi al wea knesses. However, 
material weakn esses may exist that have not been identified . 

The purpose of this repOli o n in terna l control over complia nce is solely to desc ri be the scope of ou r 
test in g of in tema I contro l over cam pi iance and th e res u Its of that test ing based on the requiremen ts o f th e 
Uniform Guidance. Accord in gly, this report is not s uitable for any other purpose. 

Cary, Nort h Carol ina 
Nove mber 1,20 18 



Joyce and 

Company, 
CPA 

104 Brady Court, Cary, North Carolina 275 11 
Phone 919-466-0946 Fax 9 19-466-0947 

Repor t on Compliance for th e Major State Program; 

Cetiified Public AccOLmtants 

Report on Internal Control Over Co mpliance in Accordance with OMB U niform Guidance 
and the S tate Single Audit Implementation Act 

To the H onorab le Mayor and 
Members of the Town Council 
Town of Apex, North Ca ro lin a 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Repo,'t on Com pliance for the Majo,' State Program 
We have audited th e Town of Apex, North Carol ina, compli ance with the types of com pliance 
requirements desc ribed in the Alldil MClI1ualfor Governmenlal Audilors in Norlh Carolina, iss ued by the 
Loca l Government Com mi ssion, that could have a direct and material effect on the Town of Apex's major 
state program for the yea r ended June 30, 20 18, The Town of Apex's maj or state program is identifi ed in 
th e summa ,) ' o f auditor's result s sec tion o f the accompanying schedule of fi ndings and questi oned costs, 

Management's Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compli ance with th e requirement$ of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants app licabl e to its state program . 

Audito,"s Res ponsibility 
O ur res ponsibi lity is to express an opini on on compl ian ce for the Town of Apex 's major state program 
based on alii' audit of the types o r compli ance req uirements referred to above. We co nducted oLll' audit o r 
complianc e in accordance with auditing s tandards genera lly accepted in th e United States of America ; th e 
standards app li cable to finan c ial audits contained in Governmenl AudilillgSlandards , issued by th e 
Comptroll er Ge ne ral o r th e United S ta tes; and app li cab le sec ti ons of OMS Titl e 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulat ions Part 200, Ull tform Admil1isrralil'e Requireme11ls, Cost Principles, (f1U1 Audit Requin!J1If! lIIsjiJr 

Federal JlIl'(lrds (Uniform Guidance) as described in th e Audil Manual for Gove/'llll/enlal AudilOI'S ill 
Norlh Carolil/a, and the State S ingle A udit Implementat ion Act. Those s tandards, the Uniform Gu idance, 
an d the State S ing le Au dit Impl ementatio n Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about wh ether nonco mpliance with the types of comp liance requirement s referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major state program occurred. An audit includes 
examini ng, on a test basis, evid ence about the Town of Apex's compl iance with those requireme nt s and 
pe rformi ng such other procedures, as we cons idered necessa ,y in the ci rcumstances. 

We believe that o ur aud it provid es a reasonable basis fo r our opin ion on compliance for the maj or state 
progra m . However, our audit does not prov ide a lega l determination of the Town of Apex 's compl iance. 

Opinion on th e Major State P,'ogram 
In our opini on, th e Town of Apex comp li ed, in a ll material res pects, with the types of compli ance 
requirement s refelTed to above that co uld ha ve a direc t and material effect on its major state program for 
the yea r ended June 30,2018 . 

Repol't on Inte rnal Co ntrol Over Compliance 
Management orthe Town of Apex is responsible for establ ishing and maintaining effec tive internal 
contro l over compl iance with [he types of compliance requirements referred to above. In plan ning and 
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performing our audit ofcompliance, we considered the Town of Apex's internal control over compliance 
with the types of requirements that cou ld have a direct and material effec t on a major state program to 
determine the aud it ing procedures that are appropriate in the circ umstances fo r the purpose of express in g 
our opi nion on comp l iance for each major state program and to test and repo l1 011 internal control over 
compl iance in accordance with OMB Un i form Gu id ance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of interna l control over comp liance. According ly, we do not express an op ini on on 
the effectiveness of the Town's internal control over comp liance. 

A deficiency in interna l co ntro l over comp li ance exists when the design or o peration ofa control over 
compliance does not a llow management or emp loyees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct , noncompl iance with a type of co mpliance requ irement of a 
state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in interna l control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or a comb in ation of defic ienc ies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement ofa state program wil lnol 
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A sig nificant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or conib ination of defic iencies, in internal control over compliance with a 
type of compl iance requirement of a state program that is less severe than a material weakness in in terna l 
contro l over comp liance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal contro l over co mpliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to ident ify all deficiencies in interna l control over 
co mpliance th at might be signifi cant deficiencies or materi a l weaknesses. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compl iance that we consider to be material weaknesses . However, 
materia l weaknesses may exist th at have not been identified. 

The purpose of thi s repol1 on inte rnal control over com pliance is so lely to describe the scope of our 
testi ng of interna l co ntro l over compliance and the results of that testing based on th e requ irements of 
OMB Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitab le for any other purpose. 

Cary, North Carolina 
Novem bel' I, 20 18 



Town of Apex, North Carolina 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Section I. Summary of Auditor 's Results 

Financial Statements 
Type of auditor's report issued: Umnodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
• Material weakness(es) identified? 

• Significant deficiency (s) identified that are not 
considered to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial statement noted 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major federal program: 
• Material weakness(es) identified? 

• Significant deficiency (s) identified that are not 
considered to be material weaknesses? 

yes x 

yes x 

yes x 

yes x 

yes x 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major state program: Umnodified 

Identification of major federal programs: U.S. Department of Transportation­
Highway Planning and Construction 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B Programs: $750,000 

no 

none reported 

no 

no 

none reported 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee: yes _X __ no 

State Awards 
Internal control over major state program: 

• Material weakness(es) identified? 

• Significant deficiency (s) identified that are not 
considered to be material weaknesses? 

yes x 

yes x 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major state program: Umnodified 

Identification of major state program: Powell Bill 

Section II. Financial Statement Findings 
None reported 

Section ill. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
None reported 

Section IV. State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
None reported 
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Item 2016-1 

TOWN OF APEX 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT ITEMS 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Purchase orders dated after service dates 
Status: Corrected 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE A WARDS 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 

Federal GrantorfPass- Federal Pass - Through! Federal (Direct Pass-Through 
Through GrantorfProgram CFDA Slate Granlor's and Pass-Through: Slate 10 Local 
Pro&!am Title Number Number Ex~ndilures Ex~enditures Subreci~ienls Ex~endilures 

FEDERAL GRANTS: 
US DeQartment ofTransQQrtatiQn 

Passed through NC Department of Transportation 
Highway Planning and Constrllction 20.205 WBS Element 44112.I.FDI $ 71,658 $ $ $ 13,315 
Highway Planning and COllstrucrion 20.205 WBS Element 42379. I.FD3 I 325,907 232,946 
Highway Planning and Consln/crion 20.205 WBS Element 42379.I.FD30 716,394 404,561 
Highway Planning and Conslrllctioll 20.205 WBS Element 44527.1.21 221414 9,606 

Total Highway Planning and Construction 1,136,37 3 660,428 

US DeQartment Qf HQ!!!~land Sec uri!}': 
Passed through NC Department of Public Safety FEMA-4285-DR-NC 

Disaster Grants-Public Assistance 97.036 1 83~IS20-00 

(Presidentially Declared Disasters) 23,602 6,739 

US Department ofJustice 
Direct Program 

Bureau of Justice Assistance 
Bullet ProD/Vest Partnership Program 16.607 8, 187 8,187 

Total assistance-federal programs 1,168,162 6,739 608,615 

STATE G RANT : 
~C DeQartment ofTrans)2QrtatiQ!l 

Powell Bill Fund N/A 1,203,921 

Total assistance $ 1,168,162 $ 1,210,660 $ $ 668,615 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures QfFederal and State Financial Awards 

Basis o/Presentation - The accompanying schedule o f expenditures of federal and state awards includes the federal and state grant activity o f the Town of Apex under 

the programs of the federal government and the State of North Carolina for the year ended June 30, 20 18. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance 

with the requirements of Tille 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Unifonn Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Town of Apex, it is not intended 

to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of tbe Town of Apex. 

SZlmmary of Significant AccoulZting Policies· The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards is presented on the modified accrual basis of 

accounting, with the exception oflhe Department of Homeland Security Grant CFDA No. 97.036, Disaster Grants·Public Assistance. The expenditures reported for 

that grant are those for wh ich reimbursement were approved during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. Additional expenditures of federal funds of$23 ,602 and stale 

funds of$6,739 had been incurred as of June 30, 2017 but reimbursement was approved after that date. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles 
contained in Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types o f expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. The Town of Apex has elected not to use 

the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 
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